(a)

A meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL will be
held in the CIVIC SUITE, PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S
STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on MONDAY, 19 NOVEMBER
2012 at 7:00 PM and you are requested to attend for the transaction of
the following business:-

APOLOGIES
MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on
15th October 2012.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary or
other interests in relation to any Agenda ltem — see Notes below.

HOUGHTON AND WYTON CONSERVATION AREA - CHARACTER
ASSESSMENT AND BOUNDARY REVIEW (Pages 9 - 30)

To consider a report by the Head of Planning and Housing Strategy.

Copies of the Boundary Review and Character Assessment
documents are appended to Members’ copies only. Hyperlinks to
each document are as follows —

http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/SiteCollectionDocuments/HDCCMS/Do
cuments/Planning%20Documents/Conservation%20Areas/Houghton%20and
%20Wyton%20Conservation%20Area%20Boundary%20Review.pdf

http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/SiteCollectionDocuments/HDCCMS/Do
cuments/Planning%20Documents/Conservation%20Areas/Houghton%20and
%20Wyton%20Character%20Assessment.pdf

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - OTHER APPLICATION:
CHANGE OF USE FROM DERELICT LAND TO STAFF CAR PARK
FOR RAMSEY SPINNING INFANTS SCHOOL - LAND REAR OF 3
TO 11 SCHOOL LANE, RAMSEY (Pages 31 - 44)

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

Brampton (Pages 45 - 68)

Erection of two, two bedroom semi-detached dwellings — land at and
including 2 Mandeville Road,



(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Little Paxton (Pages 69 - 92)
Erection of dwelling — land at 5 Hall Close.
Ramsey (Pages 93 - 108)

Erection of occupational dwelling and double garage for existing farm
and fishery — Hollow Head Farm, Hollow Lane.

Sawtry (Pages 109 - 140)

Replacement of PP 09010780UT for industrial development (B2/B8) —
Black Horse Farm, Old Great North Road.

St. Neots (Pages 141 - 154)

Proposed new dwelling — land at The Lord John Russell, Russell
Street.

Warboys (Pages 155 - 170)

1200867FUL — Change of use from agriculture to equestrian etc, -
land south of Broadpool Farm, Fenside Road.

To consider reports by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

APPEAL DECISIONS (Pages 171 -172)

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - 1ST JULY
- 30TH SEPTEMBER 2012 (Pages 173 - 176)

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

LATE REPRESENTATIONS

To be published on the website — www.huntingdonshire.qov.uk
on 16th November 2012.

LATE REPRESENTATIONS (Pages 177 - 194)

Dated this 9th day of November 2012



Notes

A

B.

Ay

Head of Paid Service

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

(1)

(2)

3

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and
unless you have obtained dispensation, cannot discuss or vote on the
matter at the meeting and must also leave the room whilst the matter is
being debated or voted on.

A Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest if it

(a) relates to you, or
(b) is an interest of -

(i) your spouse or civil partner; or
(i) a person with whom you are living as husband and wife; or
(i) a person with whom you are living as if you were civil partners

and you are aware that the other person has the interest.
Disclosable pecuniary interests includes -

(a) any employment or profession carried out for profit or gain;

(b) any financial benefit received by the Member in respect of expenses
incurred carrying out his or her duties as a Member (except from the
Council);

(c) any current contracts with the Council;

(d) any beneficial interest in land/property within the Council's area;

(e) any licence for a month or longer to occupy land in the Council's area;

(f) any tenancy where the Council is landlord and the Member (or person
in (2)(b) above) has a beneficial interest; or

(g9) a beneficial interest (above the specified level) in the shares of any
body which has a place of business or land in the Council's area.

Other Interests

(4) If a Member has a non-disclosable pecuniary interest or a non-pecuniary

interest then you are required to declare that interest, but may remain to
discuss and vote.

(5) A Member has a non-disclosable pecuniary interest or a non-pecuniary

interest where -

(a) a decision in relation to the business being considered might reasonably

be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial standing of you or a
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close
association to a greater extent than it would affect the majority of the
council tax payers, rate payers or inhabitants of the ward or electoral area
for which you have been elected or otherwise of the authority's
administrative area, or



(b) it relates to or is likely to affect any of the descriptions referred to above,
but in respect of a member of your family (other than specified in (2)(b)
above) or a person with whom you have a close association

and that interest is not a disclosable pecuniary interest.

Please contact Ms C Deller, Democratic Services Manager, Tel No. 01480
388007/e-mail: Christine.Deller@huntsdc.qov.uk. If you have a general
query on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence
from the meeting, or would like information on any decision taken by the
Panel. However, if you wish to speak at the Panel's meeting regarding a
particular Agenda Item please contact Carolyn Chegwidden - Tel No.
01480 388420 before 4.30pm on the Friday preceding this meeting.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be
directed towards the Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers
except during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website —
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy).

If you would like a translation of
Agenda/Minutes/Reports or would like a
large text version or an audio version
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and
we will try to accommodate your needs.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest
emergency exit.




33.

34.

35.

Agenda ltem 1

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PANEL held in the Civic Suite, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street,
Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on Monday, 15 October 2012.

PRESENT: Councillor D B Dew — Chairman.

Councillors Mrs M Banerjee,
Mrs B E Boddington, P L E Bucknell, G J Bull,
E R Butler, N J Guyatt, R B Howe,
Mrs P J Longford, A J Mackender-Lawrence,
R G Tuplin, P K Ursell and R J West.

APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were
submitted on behalf of Councillors
W T Clough, S M Van De Kerkhove and
P D Reeve.

IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor D M Tysoe .

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 17th September
2012 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor P L E Bucknell declared a non-pecuniary interest in Minute
No. 35 (c) having regard to his close association with a respondee to
consultation on the application and chose to leave the Civic Suite
during discussion and voting thereon.

Councillor G J Bull declared a non-pecuniary interest in Minute No. 35
(f) and (i) and chose to leave the Civic Suite during discussion and
voting thereon.

Councillor R B Howe declared a non-pecuniary interest in Minute No.
35 (c), chose to remain in the meeting but did not vote on the
application.

Councillor R J West declared a non-pecuniary interest in Minute No.
35 (a) by virtue of his association with the applicant and chose to
leave the Civic Suite during discussion and voting thereon.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

The Planning Service Manager (Development Management)
submitted reports (copies of which are appended in the Minute Book)
on applications for development to be determined by the Panel and
advised Members of further representations (details of which also are
appended in the Minute Book) which had been received in connection
therewith since the reports had been prepared. Whereupon, it was



RESOLVED

(a)

(c)

Change of use from store to tea room, building
adjacent 8 Church Road, Gratham - 12/01368/FUL
and 12/1369/ADV

(See Minute No. 34 for Members’ interests.)

(Ms V Hunt, objector, addressed the Panel on the
applications.)

that the applications be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Head of Planning and Housing
Strategy to include those listed in paragraph 8 of the
report now submitted and additionally to provide —

. for the installation of obscure fixed glass in the
window on the side elevation to prevent over-
looking of number 2 Breach Road, Grafham and
for the inclusion of a note on the Decision Notice
to draw to the applicant’s attention the legal
obligations in respect of this condition; and

. for the hours of operation to be reduced to
require the tea rooms to be closed to the public
on Bank or Public Holidays in addition to
Sundays.

Erection of agricultural building for free range hens
with new vehicular access, hardstanding and feed
bins, land south of Manor Farm, Winwick Road,
Hamerton and Steeple Gidding — 12/01228/FUL

(Councillor D Tysoe, Ward Councillor, Mr N Saunders,
objector and Mr | Pick, agent addressed the Panel on
the application.)

(i) that the application be approved subject to
conditions to be determined by the Head of
Planning and Housing Strategy to include those
listed in paragraph 8 of the report now submitted;
and

(i)  that the Head of Planning and Housing Strategy
be authorised to formulate an additional condition
requiring the applicant to make arrangements, to
the satisfaction of the local planning authority, for
the storage and disposal of manure.

Installation of two wind turbines each 36.4 metres
high (to mid point of hub) and 46 metres high to
blade tip (maximum total height) with three 9.6
metre length blades plus ancillary development to
replace two GAIA turbines (permitted under
10/00736/FUL) amended description, Hamerton Zoo
Park, Hamerton Road, Steeple Gidding, Huntingdon
—12/00670/FUL



(See Minute No. 34 for Members’ interests.)

(Councillor D Tysoe, Ward Councillor, Councillor Mrs F
Anderson, Hamerton and Steeple Gidding Parish
Meeting and Mr A Swales, applicant addressed the
Panel on the application.)

that the application be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Head of Planning and Housing
Strategy to include those listed in paragraph 6 of the
report now submitted.

At 8.20pm, the Panel adjourned and Councillor N Guyatt left the
meeting at this point.

Upon resumption at 8.25pm

(d)

(e)

(f)

Erection of end terraced house with on-site car
parking, 20 Caldecote Road, Eynesbury -
12/01178/FUL

that the application be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Head of Planning and Housing
Strategy to include those listed in paragraph 8 of the
report now submitted.

Retrospective Planning to install new sawdust silo
and retain old silo on-site, Sundown Straw
Products, Station Road, Tilbrook — 12/01109/FUL

that the application be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Head of Planning and Housing
Strategy to include one non-standard condition relating
to the retention of installed noise attenuation measures
and informatives relating to permitted development
tolerances and the maintenance of noise attenuation
measures.

Change of use of former public house to dwelling,
including first floor extension and conversion of
barn to granny annexe and retention of garage,
Royal Oak, 106 Main Street, Yaxley 12/00452/FUL
and 12/00453/LBC

(See Minute No. 34 for Members’ interests.)

(Mr C Wheeler, objector and Mr D Rayner, applicant
addressed the Panel on the application.)

(i)  that application No. 12/00452/FUL be refused for
the following reasons -

. the proposed 1st floor extension constitutes
an overly large edition to the listed building
with an assertive dormer window and
unsympathetic building materials (concrete
roof tiles and plastic rain water goods) that



would dramatically change its scale, form
and appearance to the extent that the
special historic and architectural interest of
the building as a designated heritage asset
would be substantially harmed. As such
the proposal is contrary to the National
Planning Policy Framework 2012, policy
ENV6 of the East of England Plan 2008,
policy En2 of the Huntingdonshire Local
Plan 1995, policy E3 of the
Huntingdonshire Development
Management DPD: Proposed Submission
2010 and Policy DM27 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 -
Development Management Policies, 2012;
and

the unauthorised garage proposed to be
retained within the curtilage of the listed
building is incongruously modern in relation
to its historic context, causing detrimental
harm to the setting of the listed building and
failing to preserve the character and
appearance of this part of the Yaxley
Conservation Area. The harmful effects of
this garage are amplified by the fact that it
has been built adjacent to an identical but
authorised structure, thus blurring the
boundary between the historic listed
building and its curtilage and the adjacent
modern development. As such, the
proposal is contrary to the National
Planning Policy Framework 2012, policies
ENV6 and ENV7 of the East of England
Plan 2008, policies En2, En5, En6, En9
and En25 of the Huntingdonshire Local
Plan 1995, policies E1 and E3 of the
Huntingdonshire Development
Management DPD: Proposed Submission
2010 and policies DM13 and DM27 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 -
Development Management Policies, 2012.

(i)  that application No. 12/00453/LBC be refused for
the following reasons —

¢

the proposed 1st floor extension constitutes
an overly large edition to the listed building
with an assertive dormer window and
unsympathetic building materials (concrete
roof tiles and plastic rain water goods) that
would dramatically change its scale, form
and appearance to the extent that the
special historic and architectural interest of
the building as a designated heritage asset
would be substantially harmed. As such
the proposal is contrary to the National
Planning Policy Framework 2012, policy

4



(9

ENV6 of the East of England Plan 2008,
policy En2 of the Huntingdonshire Local
Plan 1995, policy nE3 of the
Huntingdonshire Development
Management DPD: Proposed Submission
2010 and Policy DM27 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 -
Development Management Policies, 2012;
and

. the range of proposed external and internal
alterations to the fabric of the listed building
that are listed on the drawings and
described on the submitted heritage
statement are insufficiently precise and
ambiguous. This precludes an accurate
assessment of the effects of the works on
this special historic and architectural
interest of the building as designated
heritage asset. In the absence of a
satisfactory schedule of works it is deemed
that the applicant has failed to demonstrate
that the proposals would not cause
significant harm to the special and historic
and architectural interest of the building.
As such the proposal is contrary to the
National Planning Policy Framework 2012,
policy ENV6 of the East of England Plan
2008, policy En2 of the Huntingdonshire
Local Plan 1995, policy E3 of the
Huntingdonshire Development
Management DPD: Proposed Submission
2010 and policy DM27 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 -
Development Management Policies 2012.

Change of use from commercial to residential to
include converting and extending existing building
to form annexe to No. 70 High Street, 64 High
Street, Earith — 12/01315/FUL

(Mr M Hall, agent, addressed the Panel on the
application.)

that the application be refused for the following
reason:-

the application is described as including an
“annexe” but the proposal does not reasonably
constitute “annexe” accommodation to No. 70
High Street by reason of its scale, degree,
physical detachment from No. 70 and the
existence of all necessary facilities for day to day
existence and, in this regard, it has the character
of a self-contained dwelling. The bulk, mass and
attractive appearance of the proposed extension
to the existing building to provide the proposed
“annexe” would fail to preserve the character and

5



(h)

(i)

appearance of the Earith Conservation Area and
would harmfully impinge on the setting of the
Grade |l Listed Building (Nos. 66/68). For these
reasons, the proposal is contrary to the National
Planning Policy Framework 2012, policies ENV6
and ENV7 of the East of England Plan 1995,
policies En2, En5, En6, En9 and En25 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, policy CS1 of
the Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009, policies
E1 and E3 of the Huntingdonshire - Development
Management Plan DPD: Proposed Submission
2010 and policies DM13 and DM27 of the
Huntingdonshire  Local Plan to 2036
Development Management Policies, 2012.

Hard Tennis Court and Associated
Embankment/Landscaping, The Cottage, 25 Main
Road, Stonely — 12/01111/FUL

(Councillor K Hutchinson, Kimbolton & Stonely Parish
Council, addressed the Panel on the application.)

that the application be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Head of Planning and Housing
Strategy to include matters relating to time limit, hard
and soft landscaping and to prohibit the installation of
floodlighting.

Erection of an industrial (B1) building, Fen Road
Industrial Estate Fen Road, Pidley-cum-Fenton —
12/01266/FUL

(See Minute No. 34 for Members’ interests.)

(Mr D Mead, agent addressed the Panel on the
application.)

that the application be refused for the following reasons -

. the proposal would be contrary to the provisions
of policy SS1 of the East of England Plan —
Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy, May
2008, policies E8 and En17 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan, 1995, policy CS1 of
the Local Development Framework Core Strategy
2009, policies E8, P2 and P7 of the Development
Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010,
draft policy 7 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan
to 2036 — draft strategic options and policies,
2012 and policy DM5 of the Huntingdonshire
Local Plan to 2036 - Draft Development
Management Policies, 2012 in that the proposal
relates to non-essential development in the
countryside. The proposal would represent a
significant expansion and consolidation of
development on the edge of the village which
would be detrimental to and, have an adverse



impact on, the character and appearance of the
site and the locality in general. The proposal
would be contrary to the principles of
sustainability in that the remote location of the
site would result in the majority of journeys to and
from the development being made by private car;
and

the proposal would be contrary to the provisions
of policy E10 of the Development Management
DPD Proposed Submission 2010 and policy DN6
of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 — Draft
Development Management Policies, 2012 in that
the proposal has not demonstrated that adequate
parking, turning, loading and un-loading space, to
the standards of the local planning authority, to
serve the existing industrial units and the
proposed units are available within the curtilage
of the site. The lack of appropriate vehicle
provision within the curtilage of the site could
result in vehicles parking on or reversing onto
Fen Road to the detriment of the safety of traffic
and pedestrians using this road.

Erection of a bungalow and associated access,
land between 37 and 39 Blenheim Road, Ramsey —
12/00980/0UT

(Mr W Allwood, agent, addressed the Panel on the
application.)

that the application be refused for the following
reasons:-

*

that the proposal by reason of its location and
relationship to the existing frontage dwellings
would not be sensitive to the form and character
of the existing built environment and would
thereby have an adverse impact on the character
of the townscape of this part of Ramsey and it
would impair views out of the adjacent Ramsey
Conservation Area, contrary to the National
Planning Policy Framework 2012, policies ENV6
and ENV7 of the East of England Plan — Revision
to the Regional Spatial Strategy, May 2008,
policies En5 En9 and H35 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan, 1995, policy HL5 of
the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration 2002,
policy CS1 of the Huntingdonshire Core Strategy
2009, policies E1 and E3 of the Huntingdonshire
Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 and policies DM13 and DM27
of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 -
Development Management Policies 2012; and

the proposal would result in an unacceptable loss
of amenity to adjacent residents by reason of
increased noise and disturbance that would be
caused by vehicles travelling along the access to

7



36.

the dwelling and manoeuvring close to the
boundaries with the neighbouring properties
contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework 2012, policy H31 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, policy H7 of
the Huntingdonshire Development Management
DPD: Proposed Submission 2010 and policy
EN14 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036
— Development Management Policies, 2012.

APPEAL DECISIONS

The Planning Service Manager (Development Management) reported
on the outcome of eight appeals against refusal of planning
permission by the District Council (a copy of his report and a
summary of the cases with wider implications for the planning process
are appended in the Minute Book).

The Panel’'s attention was drawn to the circumstances of decisions in
Great Gransden and St. Neots in which the Inspector, in dismissing
appeals for proposed development, had placed greater weight on the
residential amenity of neighbouring householders rather than the
development of commercial or economic enterprises.

In relation to an appeal against development at Hemingford Abbots,
the Planning Service Manager (Development Management) reminded
Members how important it was to justify each term used in every
reason given for refusal of an application by referring to the
Inspector's comments in respect of the failure by the Council to
adequately substantiate a reason for refusal relating to the felling of
trees.

Chairman



Agenda ltem 3

COMT 29 OCTOBER 2012
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (ENVIRONMENTAL 13 NOVEMBER 2012
WELLBEING)

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 19 NOVEMBER 2012
CABINET 22 NOVEMBER 2012

THE HOUGHTON AND WYTON CONSERVATION AREA
CHARACTER ASSESSMENT AND BOUNDARY REVIEW

(Report by Head of Planning & Housing Strategy)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to describe the technical and consultation
processes that have informed the proposed Boundary Review and Character
Assessment of the Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area, and recommend
to Cabinet that both documents are supported for formal adoption.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The key current legislative and policy background that underpins the process
of undertaking a Conservation Area boundary review are set out in:

e The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
e The National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

2.2 Section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
places duties on local planning authorities:

e To designate as Conservation Areas any “areas of special architectural
or historic interest the character or appearance of which it is desirable
to preserve or enhance” (Section 69).

e To “from time to time to review the past exercise of functions under this
section and to determine whether parts or any further parts of their
area should be designated as conservation areas.” (Section 69 (2)).

e To formulate and publish proposals for the preservation and
enhancement of its Conservation Areas (Section 71).

2.3 Paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)
states that “when considering the designation of Conservation Areas, local
planning authorities should ensure that an area justifies such status because
of its special architectural or historic interest, and that the concept of
conservation is not devalued through the designation of areas that lack
special interest.”



24

25

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

In 2011 Huntingdonshire District Council received a request from Houghton
and Wyton Parish Council to undertake a review of the existing Houghton and
Wyton Conservation Area (see Appendix 1). This review required an analysis
to identify the extent and special interest of the area, which was considered
through the preparation of a Conservation Area Character Assessment and
related Boundary Review proposals.

The analysis considered the whole of the existing Conservation Area, and
also included additional areas, particularly in the context of St Ives West
strategic direction of growth identified in the Core Strategy (adopted 2009).

THE CONSERVATION AREA CHARACTER ASSESSMENT AND
BOUNDARY REVIEW

The Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area was originally designated on 14
October 1974. The boundary of the area was drawn tightly around building
groups and did not reflect a thorough or justified examination of the wider
area’s historic merit or development. It was consequently amended on 18
February 1980.

In 2003, the Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area boundary was
considered as a case study under criteria established within the District
Council’'s adopted “The Review of Conservation Area Boundaries in
Huntingdonshire” document. The case study concluded that the
Conservation Area boundary could be amended to include areas of special
interest to the north of the A1123 to include historic fields to the south of
Thicket Road and parts of Houghton Hill to the north of Thicket Road.

In 2011, at the request of Houghton and Wyton Parish Council, the case
study was re-examined in reference to current best practice, and to take
account of potential new development in the area. A thorough re-
examination of the earlier Conservation Area boundary review concluded that
the 2003 case study had accurately identified the special interest of areas
intended for inclusion within any revised boundary. The case study was
therefore taken forward through a formal boundary review process, leading to
the creation of the Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area Boundary Review
document which has been subject to public consultation.

The enlarged area proposed within the Houghton and Wyton Conservation
Area Boundary Review document (see Appendix 2) reflects the findings of an
updated Conservation Area Character Assessment that was prepared as part
of the boundary review process. A Conservation Area is defined as a
‘Designated Heritage Asset’ and the policies related to these are a material
consideration which must be taken into account in development management
decisions. The Conservation Area Character Assessment describes the
nature, extent and importance of the historic environment. It provides
guidance to residents, developers and agents to assist them to prepare
development proposals that seek to sustain and enhance the Conservation
Area.

10



3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

The content of the Character Assessment complies with the 2011 English
Heritage guidance and seeks to convey the special architectural and
historical interest of the Conservation Area through maps, photographic
illustrations and written text. Specific references are made to:

e The essential characteristics of the Conservation Area including
settlement pattern, important views, focal points and landmark
buildings.

e Detailed assessments of the character of distinct areas or zones
within the conservation area.

e The historic development of the villages and their listed buildings.

e The contribution of green open spaces, trees and gardens to the
special interest of the Conservation Area.

The amended Conservation Area boundary addresses the historic interest of
the settlement, as well as reflecting the setting of the villages and significant
views and vistas. It is proposed that some areas of more recent
development within the village should be excluded from the Conservation
Area as these do not meet the criteria for continued inclusion. The proposed
new Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area boundary is shown in
Appendix 2.

PUBLIC CONSULTATION

The District Council consulted on the draft Conservation Area Character
Statement and Boundary Review proposals for 8 weeks from 6 July to 31
August 2012. The consultation commenced with a staffed exhibition at the
Houghton and Wyton Village Fete on Saturday 7 July 2012. Consultation
letters were sent to the residents at 65 addresses affected by the proposed
boundary changes, and 13 stakeholder consultees including local Members.

The District Council’s Conservation Team ran two public exhibitions in the
Houghton Memorial Hall on 17 and 18 of July 2012. These were advertised
by the Parish Council and through the HDC website. The events were based
on the consultation documents, and also exhibited historic maps and other
relevant information.

The consultation documents were advertised and posted on the HDC website,
and responses could be made through the District Council’'s website based
consultation portal, which further advertised the consultation documents to
some 3,500 correspondents and statutory consultees. Hard copies of the
draft documents and consultation response forms were placed in the
Huntingdon Customer Service Centre, Huntingdon and St Ives Libraries.

11



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

CONSULTATION RESPONSES

The consultation process generated 26 responses which were received via
telephone, letter, email and through the Councils’ website consultation portal.
A summary of all the feedback received may be found as Appendix 3 at the
back of this report. A Map indicating the areas suggested by respondents for
addition or omission from the revised conservation area is Appendix 4. All
the responses have been reviewed and suggested amendments to the
proposed boundary assessed against the criteria for inclusion within a
conservation area:

Many respondents suggested more than one amendment to the conservation
area boundary. Ten additional areas and two lanes (see Appendix 2) were
put forward for inclusion within the conservation area. These areas were
once again re-assessed to establish whether they met the criteria for
inclusion within a conservation area, the test being whether those areas
possess special historic or architectural interest or contribute to the special
historic or architectural interest of the Conservation Area.

Proposed Additional Areas — results of re-assessment
Area One: The How, St Ives

One response proposed that The How and its grounds be included within the
Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area. The How is a small country house
set within extensive grounds just north of what were previously the clay
quarries of The How Brick Works.

Response to Representation

The building is not listed and was previously determined to have insufficient
special interest for inclusion within the St lves Conservation Area. No special
historic relationship between The How and Houghton and Wyton could be
found and therefore it shall not be included within the Houghton and Wyton
Conservation Area.

Area Two: Field to the east of Houghton Grange (BBSRC field)

Eight responses proposed that the former BBSRC field should be included
within the Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area. This field was formerly
located within the St Ives town boundary and was assessed in 2007 in
respect of inclusion within the St Ives Conservation Area. Although it was
proposed for inclusion in the draft proposals, this was challenged during the
consultation phase of the St Ives boundary review because respondents
argued that it did not have special interest or make a significant contribution
to the setting of St Ives. Upon re-assessment at that time it was agreed that
there was insufficient special interest and therefore the decision was made
not to include this field within the St lves Conservation Area.

12



Response to Representations

5.6 The significance of this field has been re-assessed for inclusion within the

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area. The field now lies within the
Houghton and Wyton parish boundary as a result of a change in the parish
boundaries following the creation of the Wyton on the Hill administrative area
in 2009. The field has historically been farmland in the parish of St lves but
was developed in part as a Poultry Research Station in the late 1950s.

No new evidence to support an assessment of special interest has been put
forward by respondents, or revealed in the investigations of District Council’s
Conservation team. The question is therefore whether the land makes a
significant contribution to the setting of the Conservation Area, which is one
of the key criteria in assessing whether boundary changes can be justified.
This is principally assessed by identifying views from within the Conservation
Area which include the land under consideration. The BBSRC field is
shielded from the Conservation Area by The Thicket to the south and by the
deep hedgerows of the Houghton Grange estate. The land is not visible
from the Great Ouse valley or from Thicket Road.

It is therefore considered that, under the criteria required within the
Conservation Area boundary review process, the field does not contribute to
the special interest of the Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area and
should not therefore be included within the boundary.

Area Three: The Thicket

Three responses suggested that The Thicket be included within the
Conservation Area.

Response to Representations

The Thicket is already included within the St Ives Conservation Area
reflecting its historic connection with St Ives. It is considered that The Thicket
should remain a part of St Ives Conservation Area.

Area Four: Field north of Houghton Grange

One response suggested that the field located opposite Houghton Grange
should be included in the Conservation Area. This field is now situated
within the parish of Wyton on the Hill; the eastern boundary of this field
marks the historic boundary between Houghton and Wyton and St Ives. The
western boundary is characterised by the trackway and approaches to
Houghton Hill Farm.

Response to Representation
Historic map evidence suggests that the field, which was previously sub
divided into three, has been farmland since the late 1700s. Crop marks

indicate the presence of former ridge and furrow earthworks in the south
eastern corner but these have long since been ploughed out. The field has

13



5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

no special interest that would justify its inclusion within the Houghton and
Wyton Conservation Area.

Area Five: Triangle of land centred on the site of the former Black Eagle
Windmill

Five responses suggested that the site of the former Black Eagle Mill and
surrounding fields bounded by the A1123, B1090 and Cottage Lane be
included within the Conservation Area. The Black Eagle Windmill was a post
mill situated on the crest of Houghton Hill. One door lock from the Black
Eagle Windmill bearing the date of demolition (1902) is kept in the National
Mills Archive reference collection and a second lock and key is held in the
Norris Museum post-medieval collection. The mill was painted by the artists
Henry Woods and David Woodlock.

Response to Representations

Apart from the mill mound, nothing remains of the windmill itself. The miller’s
house and a small barn survive, the house being Grade Il listed. The
surrounding land is farmland of no special interest. The building is listed and
therefore has special interest in itself, but the loss of the windmill has
removed the special interest of its historic context to the conservation area
and therefore, on balance, the mill house should not be included within the
Conservation Area.

Area Six: Hill Estate

One response suggested that The Hill Estate should be included within the
Conservation Area due to historic interest, trees and green space worthy of
protecting. The estate was built between 1949 and 1965 and is of a typical
post war character and appearance. The grassy central area and mature
trees are a valuable amenity resource for residents.

Response to Representation

The Hill Estate is an interesting survival from the post war period but it
stands separate from the principal historic area of Houghton and does not
have the special interest that would contribute to the character and
appearance of the wider conservation area. The area is not suitable for
inclusion within the Conservation Area boundary.

Area Seven: Former gravel quarries, now lakes, to north of A1123

Two responses suggested that these ponds should be included within the
Conservation Area for their landscape value.

Response to Representations

Although the lakes provide general habitat and landscape value they were
created from gravel workings less than 5 years ago and have no special

14



5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

historic interest that would justify their inclusion within the Conservation
Area.

Area Eight: Common land to the south west of Houghton Hall

One response suggested that the area of common land to the south west of
Houghton Hall should be included within the Conservation Area. The
common land and meadows to the south east of Houghton Hall are already
proposed for inclusion within the Conservation Area due to their contribution
to the special interest of Houghton and Wyton.

Response to Representation

Upon re-assessing this area it became apparent that the land corresponds to
a shared ‘common’ marking the convergence of Ware Lane, St Ives Road,
Ruddles Lane, Mere Way and Meadow Lane. This important historic
gateway to Houghton and Wyton, and the associated meadows to the south,
remain identifiable to travellers along the A1123 as an area of green space
incorporating wide grassy verges and mature hedgerows. The common land
contributes to the special interest of the Conservation Area and is therefore
proposed for inclusion within the Conservation Area boundary.

Area Nine: Common Land to west of Splash Lane

One response suggested the inclusion of a small area of common land to the
west of Splash Lane which has an historic link with the villages but which has
been separated from Wyton by the A1123.

Response to Representation

Unfortunately, the historic and physical relationship to the village has been
lost and there is not a justification for it to be included within the
Conservation Area.

Area Ten: North bank of the River Great Ouse, west of Wyton

Five responses suggested that the north bank of the River Great Ouse west
of Wyton should be included within the Conservation Area. The southern
bank and water meadows are included within The Hemingfords Conservation
Area.

Response to Representations

There are long views across the meadows from The Hemingfords but from
the southern bank of the river the character of the land beyond the north
bank is of arable land mostly screened by willow trees and natural
vegetation. The river bank landscape forms part of the setting to the
Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area but it has insufficient special
interest in its own right to be included in the Conservation Area.

15



5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

Ruddles Lane and Splash Lane

One response suggested that Ruddles Lane and Splash Lane should be
included within the Conservation Area.

Response to representation

Splash Lane is an historic trackway which has been separated from Wyton
by the A1123 and its physical and contextual relationship to the village has
been lost. Ruddles Lane is also an ancient trackway that has also been
severed from its historic context by the A1123. However, it retains a physical
relationship with the common land north of Houghton and contributes to an
understanding of the significance of Ware Lane which makes an important
contribution to the historic development of Houghton and Wyton. Due to this
significance, a 60m length of Ruddles Lane which abuts the common land
north of Houghton is proposed to be included within the Conservation Area.

Areas Proposed For Exclusion — results of re-assessment

Two responses suggested that the proposed Conservation Area boundary
should be reduced in size to exclude Houghton Grange, and Houghton Hill in
its entirety.

Houghton Grange

One respondent suggested that Houghton Grange and its grounds should not
be included for the following reasons:

. The site adds no appreciable spatial quality from a longer distance
due to screening from belts of trees on three sides

) The site does not form part of a key settlement edge

. The existing trees are already protected with Tree Preservation
Orders

) Much of the historic quality of the site has been lost through the
piecemeal development of outbuildings and laboratories which are
now in disrepair

) The site has no archaeological significance

. Opportunities for economic regeneration and character

enhancement are already fully covered by the approved residential
development

16



Response to Representation

5.29 Having re-assessed Houghton Grange and its grounds it has been concluded
that it should remain as part of the proposed Conservation Area for the
following reasons:

The belts of trees surrounding Houghton Grange are part of a
planned landscape which defines an historic estate and contributes
to the special interest of the Conservation Area.

The site marks the furthest eastward expansion of Houghton when
wealthy Victorian and Edwardian patrons bought large parts of
Houghton Hill to establish their country houses and estates. This
makes an important contribution to the special interest of the
Conservation Area.

The Conservation Area designation is not being made solely to
protect veteran trees. The protection afforded by the designation will
allow future management of the site to better reveal the significance
of surviving heritage assets.

A recent Archaeological Evaluation Report' suggests limited
survival of cut features due to landscaping for the Houghton Grange
gardens and due to later BBSRC activity. This does not lessen the
special interest of the estate as a whole.

Designation will continue protection of the character and
appearance of the historic environment after the approved
development is complete.

Houghton Hill

Response to representation

5.30 Houghton Hill has been shaped by the eastward expansion of Houghton in the
19th Century when wealthy Victorian and Edwardian patrons bought large
parts of Houghton Hill to establish their country houses and estates. The
estate grounds were planned and modified to enhance the natural
landscape. This makes an important contribution to the special interest of the
Conservation Area and therefore the proposed part of Houghton Hill shall be
included.

1 Oxford Archaeology East, unpublished archaeological evaluation report No 1046. HER
Event No.ECB 2283 (2008).

17



5.31

5.32

5.33

6.1

7.1

Consultation feedback - other matters for consideration
County Wildlife Sites

The Wildlife Trust expressed concern that including Wildlife Trust managed
land in the Conservation Area would result in unnecessary bureaucracy and
disrupt day to day running of the sites, due to the additional protections
afforded to trees by the designation of a Conservation Area. The Wildlife
Trust asked the Local Authority to consider whether there were any
additional benefits to having the County Wildlife Sites included within the
Conservation Area.

Response to Representation

The District Council’s Trees and Landscape Team confirms that long term
agreements which allow for a five year management plan for coppicing tree
works would be acceptable. The Wildlife Trust land proposed for inclusion
within the Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area has special interest in its
own right but is also important in providing the historic landscape setting for
the built environment. It shall therefore be included within the Conservation
Area as proposed.

General feedback

Invaluable feedback was provided by local historians and other consultees
who made suggestions regarding aspects of the historical content of the draft
Conservation Area Character Statement and Boundary Review documents,
which have been amended and refined as a result.

CONCLUSIONS

The production of the Character Assessment and Boundary Review
documents for the Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area contributes to
the legal obligations of Huntingdonshire District Council as the local planning
authority, and reflects the Authority’s support for local heritage assets and
their contribution to the quality of life of this and future generations.

RECOMMENDATION
That Cabinet endorses the revised Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area

Character Assessment and Conservation Area Boundary Review and
recommends that both documents are supported for formal adoption.

18



BACKGROUND PAPERS

Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPG 2007

Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape Assessment SPG 2007

Conservation Area Boundary Review Policy Document, Huntingdonshire District Council,
January 2003.

National Planning Policies Framework, DCLG, 2012.

Understanding Place: Conservation Area Designation Appraisal and Management,
English Heritage, 2011.

HDC Internal Conservation Team Document: Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area
Review Ranging Survey, 2003. (Full text in Boundary Review document, annex 1).

HDC Internal Conservation Team Document: Houghton and Wyton Conservation Area
Review Site Survey, 2003, revised 2011. (Full text in Boundary Review document, annex
2)

CONTACT OFFICER
Nick Armour, Conservation Officer - 01480 388416

Nick.Armour@Huntingdonshire.gov.uk

19



=
RS

S PRAINY SO
& %;wl&m«ov Qh..hl% L

74!

S ‘.Q.uﬁ.

spunopyayy &

Aaug puoyuiisy \2Y

& o s

)

AR

[ mopeq

mmﬂ___ _____@ : o %

MOpESJ| PJOJBUIWEH

¢ |
H N / \ o m oA .
N == ) i -5
2 S il
St P — , - ) ; AL
R SR R : iy oisousupipod

B T T
i T

2
;-«igv
&

A

—oy  PINLseA IS

A

Ly sbuei!
a5t d ubunoH
o, PP

38In0g oD

|

T

{

&
’/
=l

Y .f{

& I uh
Sy
4@:-\

Pield Butkeid

wigy
Jouep MoN

100mng
oAllg

Pioi3 Buideg

wnypeis
soeliny

~ uonmumig
| |

e
52

NS
YA

Alepunog ealy UoIeAIRSUOD) BunsIX3 *| xipuaddy




=

.«\.

g
SN
e G

NG

Mopes|\ piojBujwey

s w4

SIbE
10

%59

& / v

1>

NS
/ \F.rn%\..w&
T

o

I

hisiss

T

oy seans

o

L

ahiod7

| egymonet e

—uy  MPRINLESAIS

S uolyBnoy

puess; |
spooameg |

ueaeieg pue
8

4/b, uoyBnoy \\1,

)

i

q

Bu

v p4oiBuiway

T Juoyney
i

jway
/

'S
&
/&

— == —__ Ul

Y

i
A

elwioye)

a.%_w
R uowwo)
1eysa1aul

e
o}

ppisise3
ewpon

/

4

y VIR o
SR NI :@o"\
v%mom\\kzw\h hes TR

s

- h& ;s e Llls P |
g ¥ o f we?
sugous ., g g L 7
8> Jousp ]
oot Nmm Iy
3 5
osn o
R & »
T &N g 5
/2 n N e
iy [F gl
Neo—— ,, SR
= G
|I'H uowyBroy 1\“ iy " Tiwgbiooz | W L T A 1 w,  ned
3 puBAaH 2L o Pletd tuikeid i
5 i
Q, = i
N o B[ | e
Pletd Butkesd 8860 Peyal: = wg )
N y SpUBIMEN 7
/> smolMalL 2O
Dy
o
11EH S
g waey &! Sy
aAllg Jouep MaN
ProLs Bukeid 7 Aj f
wnjperg > i
sl - @ 5 by = el
i
L \
yyyyyy $ i X
somrins (3 R |
e & i
e MWL) ouerfespon:
] mcn_ﬂmn_,. - f/k S wﬂuf“
s, )
Yed 2
e .
L Ay A doid - dd
N LMUCDOM ealy CO_H©>\_®mCOU Ummo 0ld ‘¢ X_UCG \v4




'sanss| Jayjo oN (9

"Juswiwod oN (g

"JuswIwod oN (1

Jo¥OIUL 8y 8pnjou] (g

"1081109 s Azepunoq pasodoud yuiyj Jou sao( (g
‘abueyo Atepunoq spoddng (|

V/N

W04 SjuaWwo))

‘'sanss| Jayjo oN (9

"JUBJUOD UO SjudBWWOI ON (G

‘|ng@sN spUBWINI0P Y9 Spul (¢

‘pasodoud jou s sIy} Aym spuelsiapun ng aueT] sa|ppny apnjoul pino) (¢
"1984109 s1 Azepunoq pasodoud syuiy] (g

‘abueyo Alepunoq spoddng (|

V/N

wlio4 sjuswwo)d

"}sea 0} adeospue| pue }sam 0} abejuody JaALl apnjou] (9
"SJUBWILIOD 8J0W Ul puss [IM (S

‘|ng@sN spUBWINO0P YO Spul (1

19b.e| aq pinoys (¢

1081109 s1 Alepunoq pasodoud )uiy) Jou sao( (Z
‘abueyo Alepunoq spoddng (|

V/N

wlio4 sjuswwo)d

"SINO0J0D BUI| }081100Ul SMOYS A8Y] "6 pue g sdew mainay Arepunog
UO PapnjoXxa pue papn|oul 8g 0} SeaJe Jo SIN0jod Bunenuaiayip a|gnoJ) sey Jsjed

abej|iA UOKM —
J9||eD auoyds|a] |

|

JuspIsay

uonoy

BuisLy sanssj Jo Alewwng

ssalppy

‘ou

19

juspuodsay

AUVININNS SISNOdSHY - 338HL XIANIddV

"9peW JoU JUSWNJ0P 0] JUBWpUBWY — Z
"apeW JUsWNoop 0} JUsWpuaWwy — |

:Alewwng uonoy

UOIJR}NSUOD MBIASI BAIY UOIJRAISSUOD UOJAN\ pue uojybnoH

22



‘'eZ1 LY Buoje oiely Buiseasoul JuswdojoAsp mMau JNOge SUISdU0D SBH e
' degy usalg), Jo uonosyoud
apinoid 0} abuels) uoybnoH Jo 1sea 0} p|al} JO UOISNOUl 88S 0} &Yl PINOAA  ®
‘sabueyd Alepunog jsow Yyim saaiby e
WD WOl 9S0|D pJeAA JO UoISnjoxa 0] uonoalqo ou ane e

[lews eln

(88019
pJEA\ ‘SIUBpISaY)

BuonT
SI\ pue JN

"7 BaJe JO UOISIAIPgNS 0} UoisiAal Buimoys dew |euonippy

"S9A| 1S Jo Juswdojansp pasodoud ssalppe pinoys Juswssasse Jajoeley?) (9
"Juswwod oN (g

"[NJ@sSN sjUsSWNo0p Y9 spuld (¥

"paNIWOo 89 pinoys uojybnoH Jo 1ses ayj 0] eale ay] (g

1081409 sI Azepunoq pasodoud yuiyy jou sao(q (g

‘Apealje ybnouas Biq sI )l se sabueyo Alepunoq pesodoid poddns jou saoq (|

V/N

wlio4 sjuswwo)d

‘peoy 19301y 03 sjuswarocidwi 9| 'S Jo uonejuswsa|dwi ainsug (9
"JUSJUOD UO SJUBWIWOod oN (G
"9AIJeWIOJUI PUB 9|gepeal SJUaWnoop o) spuld (1
"JuswIwod oN (g
"108.1409 sI Arepunoq pasodoud syuiyj (g
‘'ysued
MBH 03 uonoajold Jsyealb Bulalb 0] suesw e se abueys Aiepunog spoddng (|

V/N

wlio4 sjuswwo)

23



‘Inj@sn sjuswiNoop 9 spuld (¢

‘anjeA adeospue| 1o} papn|oul 8q pINOYs €21 LY 9y}
JO YpIOU 8y} 0} pa}edo| saye| 984y} ay) Se 10a4looul sI Azepunoq pasodoud syuiy] (g
‘sebueyo pasodoud suoddng (g|

¢d9vVOM+H

|eyod

(sque))
JuswIuoJIAUg
|eany

8y} JO u01}98)0.d
ay} Joj ubredwe)

‘Alepunoq vy ay) buibueyo spuoddns 3440 (1 uoneynsuo)| Q| poomapiy ‘9 JN
‘Iny@sn spuswinoop 9 spuld (¢
"Jo81400 s| Arepunog syuiyL (¢ 1 49VOM+H
‘sebueyd Arepunoq pasodoud spoddng (g
"}saJajul |ea0] Jo |eyod
sbBuipjing jo uonosajoud ayy ul Bunsisse Jo Aem e se mainal Alepunoq vy sioddng (| uoleynsuo)| 6 SOYAS 'O JN
"WISIINO} |e20| pue apIsAlunod
ay} uodn sjoeduwlil 8sIaApE PIOAB pue JuswdojaAsp Jayuny |04JU0d 0}
JBpIO Ul BAOQE Pajou seale ||e apnjoul 0} Azepunoq 9 8y} Buluapim sesodoud
V9 spJojbuiweH
3y} ydjew 0} asnQ 1ealc) ay} Jo yueq uisyuou ay} Buipnjoul sysabbng
‘suoljeloosse
ysnig-ouewoy Yim xoel} OLI0JSIY B Se papn|oul 8q pjnoys aue yse|ds
"OLI0}SIY SI dueT s9|ppny jey) S9JON
‘2lay} spisl} sy}
SS0.0 ey} sAkemyoed) pue syjed ‘saA0lp d10)SIY JO 8ouasald ay) sejedipul pue
uoisnjoul 1o} pasodoud usaqg sey £z LV 98U} JO yuou pue| a1 AlaA jey) sajoN
"BOJE UOIJBAISSUOD 9Y) 0] Buijes adeospue| juepoduwi
ue s| pue Jiej e pey ‘@buels) uojybnoH 0} paxul| Ajjeauolsiy st ‘smopeaw
wioJ} 9|qISIA S ) se papn|oul 8q pjnoys abuels) uoyybnoH Jo i1ses pjaly 8yl
"9)e)sd 9snoH ||IH uojybnoH sy yum diysuoneal (InH uowybnoH
olI0)sIY J08}§a4 0} PapN|oul 89 p|Noys spjal} Bulpunouins pue (I 8|be3 uapIsay)
‘uoljoayold Jo Ayuom aoeds usalb
pue saaJ} ‘}saJajul O1I0ISIY Sey ) Se papnjoul 8q ajeisT ||IH ey} sisebbng lews e g aold Jiejsely

24



pue|bug |einieN

wea| suoneladQ

asN pueT
UIAIBIN
" JUBWIWIOD OU, S8Y)eW a10jaJay) pue uleouod sasneo jey) Buiyjou aas ue) lews e 9} uaqoy alwer JN
sisnu |
"JBJU0D PINOM SIU} S}JouUaq JayLn} Jeym pue 9 ayj UIY)IM SaAIesal aJIPIM By Ll
ainjeu ayj Buipn|oul 1o} suoseal 0} UaAIB 8q UOIJBIBPISUOD Jaypun) sjsanbay e
"s9)Is 8y} Jo Buiuuni Aep 0y Aep 1dnisip pue Aoelonealng Alessadoauun ul }nsal 199110
PINOM T BaJE Ul puUB| Isni] aJIIPIIA\ @Y} Buipnjoul Jey) suJaouod sassaldxy e UOIBAISSUOD)
‘'suoseal ajl|p|m pue adeospue| 2110)sIy 10}
Sa)Is JsnJ L SJIPIIM 8y} Buipnjoul Ul }salajul 8y} puejsiopun sisni| SHIPIM YL lews eiN G| SWEI|IN Uelg
‘Ayo100g Al1oysiH
[e007 UOIAAN
pue uoyybnoH
"JusWaleIS JaloeleyD ayj Ul JUSIUOD JLI0)SIY By} so)yea
JO sjuswale aAaldiaiul pue |enjoe) buipiebal sabueyd Jo Jaquinu e sasodold [lews ein {1 SJIN pue JN
"aueT] abepod pue ¢z LY ‘06019
Aq papunoq I\ 8]6e3 Jawlo) uo paquad pugl Jo aibuel) e Buipnjoul sjsebbng e
'/ | @bed (¢ xauue) Bulleaquinu 8snoy Ul JoLIS Ue saljuap| e lews e € | swelp H Y AID
‘InJosn sjuawnoop YO spuld (¥
‘eale [|I|N 9|6e3 pue Yd9vOM+H
aueT yse|ds ‘€z 1V @Ul JO Ylou ayj 0} pue| UoWwwo9 JO uoisnjoul ay} sysebbng (g
1081409 sI Auepunoq pasodoud ay} syuiy] (g |[euod
‘anpJano Buo| - Azepunoq y9 ay) buibueys suoddng (| uoneynsuo)| ¢zl Bie1o 7 sIN
‘Inyasn sjuawnoop VO spuld (¥ €d9vOM+H
"MOJ|O} 0] SJUBWIWOD Jayun4 (¢
"J08.1109 sI Azepunoq pasodoud ay} 3uiy} Jou seo( (g |[euod JayjeamALig|n
‘a1epdn ue Jo} anpiano Buoj - Aiepunoq ) 8y} buibueys spoddng (| uoneynsuo)| || ‘H SIN

25



VO 9y} Ulyim smoiabpay olosiy
pajeloosse Jiay) pue Aem Jo sjybil o11gnd SnoLBA JO UoISn|oul 8Y) SBW0J|OAA

GHdaVOMEH
"d)IS 8jlIplIM Aunod asnQ
18319 JaAly dew 03 ainjie} pue siold |eolydelbodAy ajqissod snolea saljuap| pue
‘allysuopbununy
10 ued siy) ssouoe AjIA0suu0o adeospue| usyibuails 0} Jepio dvo0 €290 [IouN0YD
ul abuel9 uoybnoH jo ises pjaly OYSAg Jewloy ayy Buipnjoul spuswwoosy "obplqwe) Auno) squen
"'900¢ WY saiunwwo) [edny ‘IIH 8nIse)
pue JusWUOJIAUT |elnieN 8y} Japun sannp AysiaAipolq iyny Buidiay Agaiay) ‘lleH a4iys 192110
spJojbuiweH a8y pue SaA| 1S ‘UOJAAA pue uolybnoH JO Seale UOIBAISSUOD ‘UnoD apsen Aoljod Buluueld
snonBiIuod a1y} 8y} ulyum spseuaq Alisiaalpolq ajeas-adeospue| uayjbuans ‘9121 DD 'ON xog
[I'M SIY) Se ||IH uolybnoH uo sajejse asnoy AJpunod Jo spunolb pue swaisAs ‘wea | Abajens anybouoQq
plal [eAalpaw 8y} apnjoul 0} sjesodold sswodjam |1ounod) AlJuno) squie) uswdojpaaqgl 61 O peaulg
Aouaby
JuswiuoIIAUg
1920
uosiel] Buluueld
"MalAaJ Alepunog pue Juswalels Jajoeley) ay) 0} uoijoalgqo ou seH lews e\ gl Jauod umeQq sIN
Juswabeue
oS8y
J91e )\ uelbuy
Jabeuep
uosielq Buluue|d
"9)ew 0} JUsWWOD Ou SeH lews e /| ueaq Jajiuuap

26



‘aueT abepo pue ¢zZL 1Y ‘06019 au} Aq

papunog ‘[N 81683 Jawio) 8y} UO PaJudd pue| Jo d|buel) e JO }SISU0D g ealy
‘wJed ||IH uojybnoH Aq

1sem 8y} uo pue Aiepunoq ysued ay} Aq }sea ayj uo papunoq sl Yolym €z LY
ay) ssoJoe abuels) uoyybnoH Jo yuou Apjoalip pials abie| e Jo SISISU0D \ ealy
‘(dew papiwgns uo pajesdipul) BaJe UOIJeAISSUOD By}

[IoUNoD
UMO] SOA| 1S

MIBID)
umo| Ainde(g

UIY}IM papn|oul Seale [BUOIHIPPE 88S 0} YSIM SISQUIBJ [IDUNO0D UMO] SaA| 1S lews e zz deuyonu3 uuy
[IoUN0D)
"A9jjleA asnQ 1eals) ay) ul Aununuod adeospue) ysued sjoqqy
ulejuliew 03 YO 8y} Ulylim papnjoul 8q MOH 8y Yjim pajeloosse puel sy d€96 823d pJojbuiwaH
pue abueis) uojybnoH Jo }ses ayj 0} pIdl} dY) 1ey) papuswwodal Ajbuodis si } ‘squien
"ysued sjoqqy pJojbuiwsH o) doipyoeq adeospue) ‘Aol plojbulieH 391D ysued
epodw ue ase Aay) se peoy }1oxo1y] Buleplog puejwle; 0U0)SIY Y} ‘peoy
pue [jIH uojybnoH jo sped abie| Jo UoISN|OUl BY} SBWOI|SM |IDUN0YD Ysiled ay | 9al] 2109 ‘G |2 320|[0d "D SIIN
"eulle|\ pJojueH Buipnjoul pue
0] dn asnQ jeal5) 8y} JO yueq uJdypou ay} apnjoul 0} Alepunoq 9 a8y} pusix3
"Baly UOIIBAIBSUOD UOJAAA pUB uolybnoH 8y} 0} ealy UOIIBAISSUOD Kued Bupop)
SOA| 1S 9} WoJ} palisjsuel) 8q pjnoys Azenjoues paig 19301y a8yl pooyinoqybieN
‘uonjesiialoeleyd adeospue| o1I0ISIY JO spunolb ay) UO M
uo papnjoul si 8buels) uoybnoH Jo }Ses ay} 0} pue|wie} 8y} ey} SPUBWIWO0IDY [lews elN 0z pue uojybnoH

27



"Juswdojsrsp
Bunuanaid Aq seA| 1S pue ysued ay) usamiaq deb ayj ansasaud |Im sIy |
‘pue| ysied

9d4avOMEH

lews el

lepod

uojApA pue uoybnoH Jo Jed uisises apnjoul 0} Bale UOIBAISSUOD 8Y) pusixg e uoleynNsuo)| Gz abed r JN
[IDUN0D yoleasay
S90UBI0g
‘Juswdojanap |enuapisal paroidde ay) Ag paianod Ajny Apeale leoiBojoig
aJe Jusawadueyus Jajoeieyo pue uoljessuabal O1LOUO0DS J0j sajunuoddy e pue >mo_oc,._o£o_m_
‘ooueollubis |eoibojoseyole ou sey ajsay| e au} J0 JIBYeq c.O
“Jledaisip ul mou ale yolym saliojesoge| pue sbuip|ingino jo juswdojanap
|[eawadald ay) ybnouyy 1so| usaq sey alis ay} Jo Ayjenb ouoisIy 8y} Jo Yony e SjuBHNSUOD)
"SI9pIQ UoleAIasald 9381] Uym pajoslold Apeadje ale seau) Bunsixa ay| e Buiuue|q
‘obpa Juswg|)}as Aoy e Jo Jed wioy Jou Seop 8IS oy e ngz 6134 puE sI0AeAINg
"SOpIS 984y} UO S981} JO S}oq woly Buluaalos ‘'squie) paJauey)
0] anp aduejsip Jabuo| e wodj Alljenb jeneds o|geroaidde ou sppe slisay| e ‘sjooN 1S ‘0D g plopeg H
:suoseas Buimo||0} 8y} JO} BaJB UOIIBAIBSUOD 8Y) Ulyyim papnioul jou si Auadoud 49841S youinyd /1
abuels) uojybnoH a8y Jo Jley ulaypuou ay) jeyl 1sebbns DYSgg oyl Jo) Sjusby 8yl ‘©SnoH pJemoH| 2 abed uiuep N
VD 9y} Ulyim a)Is Joue\ uojybnoH ayj o3 Juaoelpe soye|
By} apn|oul 0} 3¥dD dY} JO UOIBPUSWWIOIAI BY} BSIOPUD |IDUNOY) YSued 8y e
‘paweual
pue ealy uoljeAIasuo) UOJAN\ pue uojybnoH 8y} 0} ealy UOIIBAISSUOD)
SOA| 1S 9y} WoJ) palidjsueld) 8q pjnoys Aienjoues paig ooyl ayl e
"Baly uoleAIasuo) spiojbuiwaH IoUN0D
ay} Jo eale pajeubisap 8y} JOMIW O} papN[oul 8q p|NOYS abejuody oAl By e cw__mn_.co§>>
"papn|oul 8q pinoys abe|iund duolsiy pue (I dfeq e pue uojybnoH
"uoljeslaloeleyo adeospue|
21101S1y ue sey pjaly ay| -abejjip uoybnoH o) Bumes adeospue| ay jo Led 391D ysiied
[BJIA B Sk papnjoul 8q pinoys abuels) uojybnoH Jo 1ses 8y} 0} pjaly DSHEGg oyl e
‘papuedxa Jaypny aq pjnoys eale pasodolid ay} aAslaq Ing JayjeamALis
Jej 0s uayeuapun yiom sy} pnejdde [10UN0) yslied UOAAA pue uolybnoq ayy e [lews BN €z "H SIN

28



"SIY1 81eJ]1SN||I SJUSWNO0P 8Y) 89S 0} poob aq pjnom 1l pue Sy SaA| 1S pue
spJojbulluwaH 8y WoJ) Uoie|oS! Ul Udas 8q JouuRd ) 8y — Sanss| Jayun4
‘ybnouyy ybnoyy pue payoleasal ||oM — |NJOSN SJUBSWNJOP D SPulH

"obe[|In

By} 0] 8n|eA ainsIg| pue pue all|p|Im S)l ale se Juelodwl AjjeoLiosly aJe syueq
pge JaAll [|ny 8’1 8deOSIaAl By | ‘SMOpeaw ay} WoJy pue spiojbuiwsH ay} 1o}
smalA Buipinoad |IH uoybnoH Jo eale ay) Jo Jajoeleyd [|eJaAo 8y} 0} Jueyodwi
sI 11 se abueis uojybnoH Jo 1sea ay) 0] puejwle} ayj Jo uoisnjoul ay) sijsebbng
1984100Ul S| Auepunoqg pasodoud ay) syuly |

"MalAal 0) poob sAemje s ) — Alepunoq 9 ayj Buibueyo suoddng

(S
(¥

(¢
(z
(1

L49VOMEH

euod
uone)nsuo)

9c

uewyoog s\

29



/

i-l.
/ usnag ®

/~ _eal
~ v

~Y

“gale UOJBAIISUOD

913 JO }S2123UT Teroads 93 03 9INYLIIU0D

0] puNoj Pue PISSISSE-21 Sem JBYJ UOISNoUl JO
Ayjrom jou se juspuodsal v Aq paypuapt eare uy |

"Baly

UOHBAISSUO) JO 31S2I23UT [eroads 213 03 23NqLIIu00
0} PUNOJ PUB PISSISSE-21 SEM JBY) Papn[oul aq
jou prnoys pajsadsdns juapuodsal e jel) eale uy

'S3IS AIPITM Ayuno)

“B2Iy UOTJBAIISUO)) 31} JO 1$213)Ul [eroads a1
0] 21NQLIIU0J 0} PUNOJ PUB PISSISSL-IT SBM 18T}
juapuodsal e Ag TOISN[OUI I0J Pa}Sa83ns Bale uy

"BaTY UONBAIISUOY) 9] JO 1sa131ul [eroads ay] 0}
2)NQLIIU0D 0] J0U PUNOJ PUE PISSISSB-21 319M JBY)
uorsnoul 10} sjuspuodsar £q pajsadsns seary

(e x1puaddy 23s)
Iaquny juspuodsay

Arepunog
©a1y UOTIBAISSUOD SUNISIXH

Arepunog
BIIY UONBAIISUOD pasodold

uaj ealy

I.
Y

30

1

dVIN AYVININNS SISNOHS3IY - dNO4 XIANIddY

UOI}E}INSUOD MBIABI EBIY UOIJEAIaSUO ) UOIAM pue uojybnoH



Agenda ltem 4

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 19 NOVEMBER 2012

Case No: 1201214FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: CHANGE OF USE FROM DERELICT LAND TO STAFF
CAR PARK FOR RAMSEY SPINNING INFANTS SCHOOL

Location: LAND REAR OF 3 TO 11 SCHOOL LANE

Applicant: HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL (FAO MRS J
DRUMMOND)

Grid Ref: 528525 285068

Date of Registration: 07.08.2012

Parish: RAMSEY

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application is referred to the Panel because the District Council
is the applicant. The application relates to a 0.06 hectare parcel of
open land to the rear of a row of residential properties fronting School
Lane (nos. 3-13), within the town of Ramsey and the Conservation
Area. The land backs onto the Spinning Infants School and the
footpath that links the School with Whytefield Road runs along the
western boundary. The District Council is the landowner, but the
vehicle access to the land, which is from School Lane and through
the adjacent parking court/garage block, is reportedly owned by the
Luminus Group. A locked bollard currently restricts the use of this
access to residents.

1.2 The land is mostly overgrown although parts are covered by the
concrete floor slab of a former building that was used by the Ramsey
table tennis club. There are trees growing along the south and west
boundaries. The land is enclosed by a wall and fence (approx. 2m
high) along the southern boundary and by a chain link fence (approx.
1m high) along the western boundary.

1.3 Planning permission is sought by the District Council as a joint
initiative with the County Council to change the use of the land to a
staff car park (15 spaces) to serve the Spinning Infant School.
Access to the land would be off School Lane and through the
adjacent parking court. An amended drawing was submitted to clarify
the route of access from the land to the highway and this was sent
out for re-consultation.

14 It is reported that the infant school previously shared staff parking
with the adjacent Library (approx. 8-10 spaces), but now that the
Library site is in the process of being transferred from the County
Council to a local community volunteer run pre-school, the staff
parking for the infant school will be used as the children’s outdoor
play area.

31



1.5

2.1

3.1

3.2

The wider benefit to the community of that transfer will be that the
pre-school and infant school will be on the same site, bringing more
cohesion between the two educational establishments with an easier
transmission process for the children.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website
http://www.communities.gov.uk and follow the links to planning,
Building and Environment, Planning, Planning Policy.

PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding
planning applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building
and Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance,
Planning Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to
Live

East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e ENV6: “The Historic Environment” — within plans, policies,
programmes and proposals, Local Planning Authorities and other
agencies should identify, protect, conserve and, where
appropriate, enhance the historic environment of the region
including Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings.

e ENV7 - “Quality in the Built Environment” — requires new
development to be of a high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)

Saved policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure
Plan 2003 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk follow the links to environment,
planning, planning policy and Structure Plan 2003.

32



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

e None relevant

Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e En5: “Conservation area character” - development within or
directly affecting Conservation Areas will be required to preserve
or enhance their character or appearance.

o En18: “Protection for countryside features” — offers protection
for important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges and
meadows.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

e None relevant

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
development will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered, including design,
implementation and function of development.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

e E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

o E3: “Heritage Assets” — proposals which affect the District’s
heritage assets or their setting should demonstrate how these
assets will be protected, conserved and where appropriate
enhanced.

o E5: “Tree, Woodland and Hedgerows” — proposals shall avoid
the loss of, and minimise the risk of, harm to trees, woodland or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value,
including ancient woodland and veteran trees. They should
wherever possible be incorporated effectively within the
landscape elements of the scheme.

o E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord
with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1
‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities
shall be provided to serve the needs of the development. Car free

33



3.7

4.1

4.2

development or development proposals incorporating very limited
car parking provision will be considered acceptable where there is
clear justification for the level of provision proposed, having
consideration for the current and proposed availability of
alternative  transport modes, highway safety, servicing
requirements, the needs of potential users and the amenity of
occupiers of nearby properties.

H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 — Draft
Strategic Options and Policies; and Development Management
Policies (2012) are relevant.

Draft Policy 4: “Scale of development in Ramsey Spatial
Planning Area” — sustainable development proposals will be
acceptable where appropriately located within the built up area of
Ramsey or Bury.

Draft Policy 9: “The Built-up area” — defines what is and what is
not considered to be part of the built-up area.

DM6: - “Parking provision” — development proposals should
ensure that sufficient parking is provided to meet its needs and
minimise impacts on existing neighbouring uses.

DM13: — “Good design and sustainability” — high standards of
design is required for all new sustainable development and the
built environment.

DM14: “Quality of development” — requires development
proposals to provide a high standard of amenity for existing and
future users of the proposed development and its surroundings.

DM25: “Trees, woodland and related features” — A sustainable
development proposal will be acceptable where it avoids the loss
of, and minimises the risk of harm to trees, woodland, hedges or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value,
including orchards, ancient woodland and aged or veteran trees.

DM27: “Heritage assets and their settings” — to protect and
conserve the district’'s heritage assets, including listed buildings,
conservation areas and related assets. A sustainable
development proposal will be acceptable where it avoids or
minimises conflict with the conservation of any affected heritage
asset and the setting of any heritage asset.

PLANNING HISTORY

90/0624 — additional use for toddlers club (mornings only between
Monday and Friday), permitted for a temporary period of 5 years.

E66.64 — prefabricated club room, permitted 1964 and reportedly
used for table tennis.

34



5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

CONSULTATIONS
Ramsey Town Council — recommend refusal (copy attached).
REPRESENTATIONS

Received 1 letter from the occupier of 9 School Lane, who raises the

following concerns:

¢ the vehicle entrance to the proposed car park is a safety hazard
as it serves 15 garages.

e children will be running from the playground and across the
proposed car park and through the garage block to School Lane.

e Luminus had to erect a locking bollard at the junction of the
access to the garage block and School Lane to stop parking on
this private land.

¢ the vehicle entrance to the proposed car park should be along the
side of the old Library by making an opening in the wall; the skip
lorries already use this access.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues to consider are the principle of the proposal, impact
on highway safety, impact on neighbour amenity, visual impact and
effect on the Conservation Area and whether the health and well
being of the adjacent trees can be safeguarded.

Principle:

The land is located relatively close to the centre of the Town and it is
surrounded by built development. In this regard the land is located
entirely within the built-up area of the Town, where the use of the land
as proposed is acceptable in principle, subject to other
considerations. If approved, it would be necessary to limit the use of
the car park to staff at the infant school because this is the basis on
which the application has been presented, considered and consulted
upon.

Highway safety:

The change of use of the land to a staff car park is being proposed
because it is reported that the staff car park at the adjacent former
Library will cease to be made available for parking after the former
Library site has been transferred to a new user.

Parking within School Lane is mostly unrestricted and it has been
observed and reported that School Lane becomes relatively
congested especially at school drop off/pick up times, in a similar
manner to that experienced on many roads within close proximity to a
school.

Because the proposed car park will serve staff at the infant school as
opposed to catering for any planned expansion of the school, it is
considered highly unlikely that the proposal would generate any
additional vehicle movements to and from the School that would
materially exacerbate congestion within nearby roads.

35



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

712

In fact, the capacity of the proposed staff car park, which provides
approx. 5 more spaces than the existing staff car park at the former
Library, is likely to have the benefit of reducing the need for staff to
park within nearby highways and therefore it is likely to have a neutral
- if not positive - effect on highway congestion. If this application is
not permitted, then it is likely that existing staff will have no alternative
but to park on the surrounding roads.

The geometry of the junction of the access to the land with the
highway appears to provide satisfactory visibility to the north and
south along School Lane, and across the footway and front gardens
of the adjacent residential properties. The front boundaries of these
properties are demarcated by low height boundary walls that do not
significantly obstruct visibility.

There is likely to be a regular pattern of staff vehicle journeys to and
from the proposed car park throughout the school week, and it is
anticipated that most journeys will be made in the morning before the
start of the school day (approx. 07:30-08:00) and from the school
after the end of the day (approx. 15:30-16:00), although exceptions to
this are likely depending on specific staff roles such as part time and
flexible working.  This is likely to ensure that most of the staff
journeys to the proposed car park do not coincide with the vehicle
journeys transporting pupils to the school, so that the proposal does
not significantly exacerbate congestion in the nearby roads. Staff
journeys are also unlikely to coincide with children walking to and
from the school.

The shared use of the vehicle access through the parking
court/garage block to the rear of the residential properties along
School Lane, by both residents and school staff, might occasionally
lead to the situation arising whereby vehicles exiting and entering the
access are unable to pass by one another. This situation is not
considered to pose an undue highway safety risk because there
appears to be ample space within the parking court to allow vehicles
to manoeuvre without forcing drivers to reverse out into the highway.

Because the vehicle access is segregated from the footways serving
the adjacent dwellings (nos. 3-25 School Lane) by a raised kerb and
narrow metal bollards, it is not considered that the potential for
conflict between vehicles being driven to/from the proposed car park
and pedestrians walking to/from the existing dwellings would pose a
significant safety risk.

It is noted that the access to the land, where it extends across third
party land, is restricted by a locked bollard that was reportedly
installed by Luminus to prevent unauthorised access to the car
parking court by drivers collecting/dropping off children at the infant
school. Access across this land, including control over the locked
bollard, is a civil matter between the parties that would not prevent
the determination of this application.

It is reported that the proposed use of this land would create an
alternative access for children to walk between the infant school and
School Lane, and this is considered by a resident to be a safety
hazard. This concern is noted and while there is no reason to believe
that the proposal would create an alternative pedestrian route for

36



713

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

members of the public to gain access to the school grounds, and the
school will need to consider whether it is necessary to manage
access between the school and staff car park.

Impact on neighbour amenity:

As explained above, there is likely to be a regular pattern of vehicle
journeys to and from the proposed car park throughout the working
school week, with most journeys being made to the site in the
morning before the start of the school day and from the site after the
end of the school day. Depending on staff roles there could be
vehicle journeys throughout the day as a result of part time working or
flexible working, but on the whole, journeys to and from the proposed
car park will mostly take place over reasonably social hours during
the school week, with fewer journeys - if any - at the weekends and
school holidays.

The vehicle access to the land where it extends between the frontage
residential properties (nos 11-17 School Lane) is reasonably wide
and there are relatively few window openings in the side walls of
these properties. In fact the pattern of window and door openings
indicates that the entrances to these properties at ground floor level
face the access with bathrooms at first floor level. The rear gardens
of nos. 3-11 School Lane are enclosed by reasonably robust 2m high
timber fences and the side boundary enclosing the garden of no.
11/13 School Lane which abuts the access, is built from a tall approx.
2.5m high brick wall.

There is no doubt that vehicle movements to and from the proposed
car park will generate levels of noise and disturbance that will have
an effect on the amenities of the occupiers of the nearby dwellings.
However, no objections have been received on these grounds and
the effects of this are not considered to be unacceptably detrimental
to the amenities of the occupiers of these nearby dwellings, because
as explained above, the pattern of use of the car park limits the timing
of noise and disturbance to reasonably social hours and the existing
boundary treatment and width of the access will further limit the
effects of noise to an acceptable extent.

The potential for light pollution and glare effecting neighbouring
residential occupiers is a matter than can be controlled by securing a
scheme for any artificial lighting of the proposed car park by
condition.

Visual impact and effect on the Conservation Area:

The land in its current undeveloped and overgrown state has no
discernable visual impact in public views from the adjacent footpath to
Whytefield Road, and it is mostly screened in views from other public
vantage points by the infant school buildings and nearby residential
properties.

The trees that are growing close to the south and west boundaries

are not formally protected by a preservation order (TPO) but they do
make a positive contribution to the Conservation Area.

37



7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

Given how the site is predominantly screened in public views it is not
considered that its use for car parking would be significantly
detrimental to the character and appearance of the locality; especially
not when set against the contribution of the staff car park to the
operation of the school and its effect of controlling, to a degree, the
number of cars parked within the highway.

The surfacing of the proposed car park will not be critical in terms of
visual impact, but the potential for light pollution and glare from any
artificial lighting would be controlled by condition.

Impact on trees:

The existing trees close to the south and west boundaries make a
positive contribution to visual amenity and the roots of these trees
could be harmed by excavations to create a new surface or by site
clearance works. The Council’'s Tree Officer advises that a suitable
method of surfacing the land could be secured by condition to
safeguard the health and well being of these trees.

Other matters:

The concern raised by the occupier of no. 9 School Lane that the
proposal would be a safety hazard is addressed above. The
concerns relating to the locking bollard at the junction of the access to
the parking court with School Lane is a civil matter that would not
preclude determination of the application. The comment that the
vehicle entrance to the proposed car park should be along the side of
the old Library by making an opening in the wall is noted, but could
not be provided because the former Library is being transferred for
use a pre-school facility as explained above. Furthermore, the access
alongside of the old library is the main pedestrian access for parents
dropping off and collecting children.

Conclusion:

The proposed use of the land as staff car parking for the infant school
will bring the land back into a productive use and it will have the
benefit of absorbing an otherwise increased demand for staff parking
within the highway that will result from the loss of the existing staff
parking at the former Library site. While the use of the land would
have notable effects, including some impact on the amenities of
neighbouring occupiers, these effects are not significantly harmful in
planning terms and would be outweighed by the overall benefits of
the proposal.

The proposed development is considered to be compliant with
relevant national and local planning policy, and can therefore be
approved as:

e itis acceptable in principle.

¢ would not be significantly detrimental to highway safety.

e would not detrimentally harm the amenities of neighbouring
occupiers of land and buildings.

¢ the character and appearance of the Conservation Area would be
preserved.

38



7.25

¢ the health and well being of trees would be safeguarded.

For these summary reasons the proposal is compliant with the
National Planning Policy Framework 2012, policies ENV6 and ENV7
of the East of England Plan 2008, policies En5 and En18 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, policy CS1 of the Huntingdonshire
Core Strategy 2009, policies E1, E3, E5, E10 and H7 of the
Huntingdonshire  Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 and policies 4, 9, DM6, DM13, DM14, DM25 and
DM27 from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 — Draft Strategic
Options and Policies; and Development Management Policies
(2012).

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to conditions to
include:

e restrict use of the car park for school staff parking only.

¢ method statement for excavations within the root areas of the
trees.

¢ scheme for artificial lighting of car park

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try
to accommodate your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Mr Gavin Sylvester Assistant Development
Management Officer 01480 387070

39



To: Sylvester, Gavin (Planning)[/O=HUNTS DISTRICT
COUNCIL/OU=HDC/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=GSYLVESTER];

Subject: 1201214FUL - proposed car park
Sent: Fri 10/12/2012 10:54:02 AM
From: Ramseytc

X-Junkmail-Signature-Raw: score=unknown,
refid=str=0001.0A0B0201.5077F6BF.01C3,ss=1,re=0.000,fgs=0,
ip=0.0.0.0,
s0=2011-07-25 19:15:43,
dmn=2011-05-27 18:58:46,
mode=multiengine
X-Junkmail-IWF: false
X-OriginalArrivalTime: 12 Oct 2012 10:53:53.0182 (UTC) FILETIME=[DE82BBE0:01CDA867]

------ =_NextPart_000_0039_01CDA870.458AF2F0
Content-Type: text/plain;

charset="is0-8859-1"
Content-Transfer-Encoding: quoted-printable

------ = NextPart_000_0039_01CDA870.458AF2F0
Content-Type: text/html;

charset="is0-8859-1"
Content-Transfer-Encoding: quoted-printable

------ = NextPart_000_0039_01CDA870.458AF2F0--
Hi Gavin
The above was discussed last night and unanimously rejected in it's present form.

Whilst my members see the need for the car park and are generally in support of the project it was felt
that the proposed entrance would be a considerable danger hazard.

Traffic around the area is usually bad particularly at the start and break up of the school, with children
running around.

It was felt other accesses to the area should be investigated.
Regards

Gary Cook
Town Clerk
Ramsey Town Council
Tel/Fax 01487 814957

Caution: the information contained in this document is intended for the named recipient only. It may
contain privileged and confidential information. Unauthorised use or disclosure of it may be unlawful.
Any opinions expressed are those of the individual and may not be official policy. If you are not the
intended recipient you must not copy, distribute or take any action or rely on it without authority. If you
receive this document in error please notify the sender immediately and then delete it.

The information contained in this e-mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of

40



Information Act 2000. Unless the information is legally exempt from disclosure, the
confidentiality of this e-mail and your reply cannot be guaranteed.

41



Scale = 1:2,500

Development Management Panel

®

Location: Ramsey
Date Created: 26/10/2012 Application ref: 1201214FUL
B V‘CP \ \)
X
@@ & w y
A A "".',-
en 4~
SLADI ¢
epot
« %) %
© 3\
4/% >
70“ 2
&
&
6
Q e
s 3 i
& o %
< 07 e 2
‘EZ_:% Manor W
3 P
= 5
Q)
7
\ Oa‘a@e
\ o
amg: 3 A \ O“c
2 A
i h
& X
% ®©
053
O
&
A % §
& &
p ) © N
P2 X 2 N\
5 S .
» &Y
s
7
3 2
() ‘9_\ ) Ao 4
7 N 3
3 A > @
N\ 30 3
‘P &
e < 48
© &) a A
@ a v ) >
9"
2 e St Teo\s
>
)
A
2, (Lg
X &
X v )
= ¢l )
o S )
KEX?\ELD 3 )
R 95@5‘3 J
cne¥ EPaod Y 7,
Lighting
Tower A g D
X % S
2
Legend 2 S
AC, S ) b
/ . 2y ¥ =)
/| The Site 33 \
m Conservation Area > SR 3
®
Sports Ground [\ IN\ 2 < \
£ NN 42

Huntingdonshire

DI STRICT

U NG L

© Crown copyright and database rights 2012
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

Abb i
frems Ezﬂ ‘;"’

1]
i,
Bury Lufg
£
2
.
3
&,
D 1
P
<
o
2,
2 NS
&
2
(e
ks
> %
\3
5 )
g
oL
54
55-51
)
<
2
w
5
2
w
R
&
w»
)




HDC Land at Ramsey R

: ¥
Vehicle access
to staff car park

- 0.082THA %

Scale (at A4): 1:500 Based upon Ordnance Survey materlal with the permission of the
Controller of Her Majesly's Statlonery Office © Crown copyright
Date: 12/05/2010 Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyri
. 100023205 20
By: av106

43



This page is intentionally left blank

44



Agenda ltem 5a

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 19 NOVEMBER 2012

Case No: 12014160UT (OUTLINE APPLICATION)

Proposal: ERECTION OF TWO, TWO BEDROOM SEMI-DETACHED
DWELLINGS

Location: LAND AT AND INCLUDING2 MANDEVILLE ROAD

Applicant: MR F PLATER

Grid Ref: 520424 271084

Date of Registration: 25.09.2012

Parish: BRAMPTON

RECOMMENDATION - REFUSAL
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 The site relates to an existing area of side and rear amenity space
associated with a corner plot; No. 2 Mandeville Road. That property
is a semi detached dwelling located in a mixed area of residential
dwellings characteristically defined by semi detached and terrace
dwellings with an occasional detached infill dwelling. The dwellings
are set back from the highway and the application site is defined by
circa 2 metre high leylandii hedging to the highway boundary with a
low fence and shrubs forming the boundary to No. 6 Olivia Road. The
side amenity space of No. 2 Mandeville Road is predominantly laid to
grass with gravel providing off street parking and the rear amenity
space is defined by a brick wall.

1.2 The proposal is in outline form with the following reserved matters
committed as part of this application: (i) access (ii) appearance (iii)
layout and (iv) scale. Landscaping is therefore the only reserved
matter.

1.3 The proposal is for a pair of two bedroom semi detached dwellings,
approximately 6.76 metres in depth, 10.1 metres in width and 7.266
metres in height.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of

45



climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e SS1: "Achieving Sustainable Development" - the strategy
seeks to bring about sustainable development by applying: the
guiding principles of the UK Sustainable Development
Strategy 2005 and the elements contributing to the creation of
sustainable = communities  described in  Sustainable
Communities: Homes for All.

e H1: "Regional Housing Provision 2001 to 2021" - Local
Planning Authorities should facilitate the delivery of district
housing allocations - 11,200 for Huntingdonshire.

e ENV7: "Quality in the Built Environment" - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

¢ None relevant

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

o H31: "Residential privacy and amenity standards" - Indicates
that new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate
standards of privacy can be maintained and adequate parking
provided.

e H32: "Sub-division of large curtilages" states support will be

offered only where the resultant dwelling and its curtilage are
of a size and form sympathetic to the locality.

46



3.4

3.5

3.6

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale,
form, materials and design of established buildings in the
locality and make adequate provision for landscaping and
amenity areas.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

e HLS5 - Quality and Density of Development - sets out the
criteria to take into account in assessing whether a proposal
represents a good design and layout.

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e CS1: "Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire" - all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including
design, implementation and function of development.

e CS3: "The Settlement Hierarchy" - Identifies Brampton as a
'Key Service Centre' in which development schemes of
moderate and minor scale and infilling may be appropriate
within the built up area.

e CS10: "Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements" -
proposals will be expected to provide or contribute towards
the cost of providing infrastructure and of meeting social and
environmental requirements, where these are necessary to
make the development acceptable in planning terms.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

e C1: "Sustainable Design" - development proposals should
take account of the predicted impact of climate change over
the expected lifetime of the development.

e E1: "Development Context" - development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

o [E2: "Built-up Areas" - development will be limited to within the
built-up areas of the settlements identified in Core Strategy
policy CS3, in order to protect the surrounding countryside
and to promote wider sustainability objectives.

e E10: "Parking Provision" - car and cycle parking should
accord with the levels and layout requirements set out in

47



3.7

3.8

3.9

Appendix 1 'Parking Provision'. Adequate vehicle and cycle
parking facilities shall be provided to serve the needs of the
development. Car free development or development
proposals incorporating very limited car parking provision will
be considered acceptable where there is clear justification for
the level of provision proposed, having consideration for the
current and proposed availability of alternative transport
modes, highway safety, servicing requirements, the needs of
potential users and the amenity of occupiers of nearby
properties.

e H1: "Efficient Use of Housing Land" - housing developments
will optimise density taking account of the nature of the
development site; character of its surroundings and need to
accommodate other uses and residential amenities such as
open space and parking areas.

o H7: "Amenity" - development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining
or nearby properties.

Huntingdonshire District Council has commenced preparation of a
Local Plan to 2036 to replace its existing development plan
documents. The plan will set out the strategy for development in the
whole of Huntingdonshire, incorporating policies for managing
development and site-specific proposals for different forms of
development in the context of the new National Planning Policy
Framework. The plan will include consideration of the Alconbury
Enterprise Zone and other proposed development on the Airfield, as
well as other opportunities that have arisen since the Core Strategy
was adopted in 2009.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 - Draft Strategic
Options and Policies (2012):

e Draft Policy 1. "Huntingdon Spatial Planning Area"
sustainable development proposals located within the built-up
area of the Huntingdon Spatial Planning Area, which includes
Brampton, will be acceptable where they are in accordance with
policies of this Plan.

e Draft Policy 9: "The Built-up area" - defines what is and what is
not considered to be part of the built-up area.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 - Draft
Development Management Policies (2012):

e DM®6: - "Parking provision" - development proposals should
ensure that sufficient parking is provided to meet its needs
and minimise impacts on existing neighbouring uses.

e DM 7 - "Broadband" - new sustainable developments should
provide for the installation of fibre optic cabling to allow the
implementation of next generation broadband.

e DMS8: - "Housing choice" - development proposals should
ensure that sustainable housing is built to at least minimum

48



3.10

3.11

4.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

internal floor areas to ensure that residents have sufficient
living space during their period of occupancy.

e DM13: - "Good design and sustainability" - requires high
standards of design for all new sustainable development and
the built environment.

o DM14: "Amenity" - requires development proposals to provide
a high standard of amenity for existing and future users of the
proposed development and its surroundings.

e DM 28: "Developer contributions" - development proposals
shall contribute towards local infrastructure, facilities and
services from  sustainable development proposals,
predominantly through the Community Infrastructure Levy and
Section 106 agreements.

Huntingdonshire Design Guide (2007)

Developer Contributions SPD Adopted December 2011

PLANNING HISTORY

No relevant planning history.

CONSULTATIONS

Brampton Parish Council - recommend approval (copies attached).
Internal Drainage Board - states that it has no comments to make.
REPRESENTATIONS

3 letters of objection received:

6 Olivia Road

*Sewerage - existing system runs from 12 Mandeville Road to No. 2
and the under 6 and 4 Olivia Road before entering the main sewer
alongside Olivia Road adjacent the junction with Bernard Road and a
further 9 properties in Bernard Road are served by the same system.
Concern that the sewerage system will become blocked, understand
the outlet for the sewer is lower than the inlet to the main sewer.

Prior to Anglian Water taking possession of the sewer system in
October 2011 many residents had to have blockages cleared at their
own expense

Only been able to view first floor plans from the Council's website
which shows bathrooms to the rear and it appears the wall abuts the
boundary fence. It would appear that access to our property would
be required to connect services to these dwellings and not prepared
to give permission for this or for further excavation on our land,
including repairs/services. Feel that the existing sewerage system
may not accommodate the additional usage and query if the project is
feasible. This should be investigate prior to permission being given to
be built and we should be advised and reassured prior to that time
Persons asking for the building permit have to be responsible for
costs and consequences arising from the new build, possibly being
built on top of the water supply or sewerage supply, for any repair or

49



6.3

check and any blockage should be paid for by the owners of the new
build

*water supply - water supply to Nos. 4 and 6 Olivia Road runs
underneath the proposed parking area and dwellings and would
mean that the water supply would require re-routing

*existing boundary wall - the wall has a very large crack in it which
runs from top to bottom and concerned that any building nearby could
cause the wall to further crack or collapse, also bringing down our
part of the wall, we think that a study should be made prior to starting
and possibly the crack in the wall should first be repaired

*value - proposal could devalue property due to it being overlooked
by the new dwellings

*overlooking through the rear windows of both dwellings - object to
the closeness of both dwellings which would overlook our property,
side windows and garden. Of the opinion that the windows should be
at least 50ft away from our windows

*building materials - will not give permission for any plant or materials
in respect of the whole build to encroach on to our land

*Natural light - the dwellings would prevent sufficient natural light
falling on our property, side and back gardens and reduce the light in
to our dining room

*plans for the dwellings - plans not fully available to view - this
represents the first part of our objection. Would appreciate
confirmation of the ownership of the wall, if the wall is on both
properties then the new build must be further away from the existing
wooden boundary fence which stands on our property

*light and view - impact of 2 storey dwellings is dramatic

*windows whether misted or otherwise, windows on first floor level
would be very imposing. A blank two storey wall to the rear would be
very unattractive.

*Not in complete objection. Lived in this location since 1966 and feel
that the proposed plans would have a negative impact on our quality
of living and could devalue our home and / or make it harder to sell.
Local estate agent has advised that any two storey dwellings
constructed would have a negative impact.

3 Mandeville Road

*There is currently an issue with parking in and around Mandeville
which has been increasing with the current social and economic
climate where families are becoming extended with a larger number
of working residents per property; additional burden will only increase
this and may lead to accidents involving the large number of children
in the area and increased tension between residents

*Being on the corner of Mandeville and Olivia it will cause access
problems as well as problems with traffic using Olivia Way.

*There is no apparent requirement for additional housing within
Brampton as a. Properties (including the newly built developments
behind the Village Hall) remaining vacant, and b. The proposed
redevelopment of RAF Brampton to include a large number of
dwellings.

*The facilities and resources within the village are already stretched
and the increase in demand will add to this. Whilst this is only 2
dwellings (potentially a couple with one child in each); the approval of
this and other such requests without thought for the facilities that the
village can sustain will end in the village losing its community identity
as families will have to go further afield for services.

50



6.4

71

7.2

*Lastly but as important, the owner of the property and land is not
resident and does not therefore appreciate the impact that it will have
on the immediate environment or community.

5 Mandeville Road

*| feel that the new dwellings will have a serious effect on the area, as
the proposed extended drive will restrict on road parking, which is
stretched at present. ( No 2 will have 2 parking spaces, but have 3
cars on the existing drive at present). Also with the larger entrance
which crosses over the park, which is constantly used, with young
children to and from school, and those living in the area would
become a danger hazard to all.

*| also feel that the new dwellings will have a cosmetic effect which
would not fit into the area, and have some a detrimental effect on the
local residents.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES
The main issues to consider are the principle of the development, the
impact on the character and appearance of the area, impact on

amenity, parking and highway safety.

This is an outline application although the only matter reserved for
later consideration is landscaping.

Principle

7.3

The site lies in the built up area of Brampton. Policy CS3: "The
Settlement Hierarchy" of the Adopted Core Strategy identifies
Brampton as a 'Key Service Centre' in which development schemes
of moderate and minor scale and infilling may be appropriate within
the built up area. The principle of residential development on the
application site is therefore considered acceptable, subject to other
material considerations.

Impact on the character and appearance of the area

7.4

The surrounding residential development is mixed with semi detached
and terrace dwellings being the dominant form of development with
the occasional detached property in the locality. The existing
dwellings are set back from the highway with private amenity spaces,
existing grass verges and small areas of green space contributing to
an attractive green and spacious residential area. The dwellings in
the immediate vicinity of the application site along Mandeville Road
have been extended reducing the undeveloped space between the
dwellings. It is recognised that in the wider area there are examples
of where infilling has taken place, such as land adjacent 23
Mandeville Road, although that site was larger than the application
site and land adjacent 22 Olivia Road which includes a pair of semi
detached dwellings fronting on to Olivia Road. The application site is
a corner plot with Olivia Road and currently forms the side and rear
amenity space associated with No. 2 Mandeville Road. Views when
approaching Mandeville Road along Olivia Road are therefore of the
predominantly undeveloped area around the junction of the roads
with the side amenity space of the application site , the adjacent
verge and adjacent amenity space associated with 8 Olivia Road and
1 Mandeville Road contributing to this character.

51



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

The proposal seeks the erection of a pair of two bedroom semi
detached dwellings on this corner site. The dwellings would be sited
two metres from No. 2 Mandeville Road, providing a metre side
passage for each dwelling. The dwellings would be sited so that they
do not project further forward of either the front elevation of No. 2
Mandeville Road or No. 6 Olivia Road; unlike the development next to
23 Mandeville Road where the dwellings turn the corner. The
dwellings would also be sited approximately 0.4 metres from the
common boundary to the rear with No. 6 Olivia Road. The proposed
dwellings would be the same height and depth as No. 2 Mandeville
Road. The general appearance of the dwellings would however
appear different given the difference in width and resulting
fenestration. Off road parking would be provided to the front of the
dwellings.

In light of the above the proposal is considered to raise the following
unacceptable impacts upon the character and appearance of the
area:

Layout: it is considered that the site cannot accommodate the 2
dwellings proposed whilst being in keeping with the character of the
area. The proposal results in the development being in close
proximity with the common boundary with No. 6 Olivia Road to the
rear, which is not characteristic of the spacious development in the
area and the amenity space for '2b' being to the side of the proposed
dwelling rather than the rear is also uncharacteristic. The dwellings
would also erode the existing undeveloped area around the junction
of Mandeville Road and Olivia Road. This proposal does not respect
the existing layout and pattern of development of this residential area
such that it would result in an unacceptable form of development.

Design: limited fenestration is proposed to the rear of the proposed
dwelling '2b' which includes only a single window to serve the
bathroom and leaves a large expanse of solid brickwork as the
dominant elevation when approaching from Olivia Road. This
arrangement results from the relationship with the neighbouring
property (6 Olivia Road)and the need to avoid overlooking. The
resulting design is not considered acceptable and would result in an
incongruous form of development in this location compounded by the
lack of detail and expanse of brickwork to this elevation when viewed
from the east. The proposal is considered to fall well short of being a
high quality form of development.

Private amenity area: whilst it is recognised that landscaping is a
reserved matter, in terms of the potential to consider screening, it is
not considered that this proposal results in an acceptable form of
development. It is considered that this proposal would result in future
pressure to enclose the amenity space proposed for '2b' to provide a
usable and private amenity space for the future occupants of the
dwelling and it is considered that this would further erode the
undeveloped space and positive contribution it makes to the wider
area. Whilst it is acknowledged that a hedge is in place to the south
and west boundaries the eastern boundary is exposed owing to a low
1m high fence. The hedge is not considered to provide a sufficient
level of protection such that the resulting amenity area could
reasonably be said to be private. This would create a form of

52



7.10

development which does not provide a sufficient standard of private
amenity for future occupiers.

Car parking: as already detailed this proposal seeks to provide off
street parking to the front of the site along Mandeville Road. It is
noted that there are other examples in the locality of off street parking
and hard landscaping to the front of dwellings. However, it is
considered, in this instance that the removal of the existing soft
landscaping and provision of hard standing to facilitate additional
parking to serve the existing and proposed dwellings and the general
presence and increase in car parking provision would have a harmful
impact on the character and appearance of the streetscene owing to
the importance of this corner site.

Amenity

7.11

712

713

7.14

There are two existing windows to the side elevation of No. 2
Mandeville Road, a single pane at first floor and larger window to the
ground floor serving a bedroom and dining room respectively. Given
the siting of the dwellings it is considered that these windows shall be
overshadowed at certain times of the day and year. However this is
not considered unacceptable in terms of the relationship with the first
floor window as this appears as a secondary window to this bedroom
and the ground floor also benefits from a window in the western
elevation and relates to a dwelling within the ownership of the
applicant. It is not considered that this proposal would result in a
significant detrimental impact to the amenity of the occupier of this
dwelling that would justify refusing this planning application.

The rear elevation of the proposed dwellings is approximately 0.4
metres from the common boundary with No. 6 Olivia Road; the
distance of No. 6 to this common boundary is approximately 14
metres to the south east. Whilst it is recognised that there is a
bathroom window facing on to 6 Olivia Road the exact detail of this
window could be secured via the imposition of a condition and include
obscure glazing. It is considered that this would substantially restrict
vision through this window and as such a refusal on the basis of
perceived or potential overlooking from this bathroom could not be
substantiated. Having regard to this relationship and separation
distance, it is not considered that the proposed development would
have a significantly detrimental impact on amenity by reason of being
overbearing, overlooking or overshadowing.

In terms of considering the relationship of the windows of the
proposed dwelling '2a" with the surrounding residential properties, it is
not considered that this proposal would result in overlooking that
would have a significant detrimental impact on amenity. The
proposed dwelling is no closer to the property to the rear, No. 6 Olivia
Road. It is considered that there is a sufficient separation distance
between the properties and neighbouring amenity space.

In terms of considering the proposed dwellings, it is considered that
the amenity space associated with the proposed dwelling '2a' would
at certain times of the day and year would be overshadowed by the
existing boundary wall. Whilst this may not be desirable for all
potential occupiers, the proposal does offer private amenity space
with this dwelling and it is not considered that the potential for this

53



7.15

7.16

area to be shaded during certain times of the year would be a reason
to refuse this planning application.

As noted above the amenity space associated with the proposed
dwelling '2b' is not considered to be of an acceptable standard.

Given the concerns above it is considered that the application has
failed to demonstrate that the proposal could provide a useable
private amenity space for the proposed dwelling.

Parking and highway safety

717

7.18

The proposal seeks to provide parking for two vehicles to the frontage
of No. 2 for that property and off street parking for the two proposed
dwellings. The reasons above identify why this relationship is
considered to be unacceptable in visual terms. There are though no
objections to the provision of the car parking space for the new
dwellings proposed; policy E10 of the Development Management
DPD Submission requires up to 2 car spaces per dwelling and the
layout appears to indicate space for at least 2 cars. The application
does not include any provision for cycle parking; however it is
considered that this detail could have been secured via the imposition
of a condition if the application were to be recommended for approval.

Whilst it is recognised that the proposal shall result in the access
points to the site from the highway being closer to the junction with
Olivia Road, this is not considered to be unacceptable and it is not
considered that this arrangement or provision of two additional
dwellings would harm highway safety.

Neighbour comments not already considered:

7.19

*Sewerage - concerns over sewerage and the existing capacity are
noted and are controlled through separate legislation

*concern over wall abutting the boundary fence and neighbours have
advised that they would not give consent for excavation on their land
or any repairs to services etc - a section plan shows the rear
elevation of the dwelling to be approximately 0.4 metres from the
common boundary and the gutter to be within the confines of the
application site. If planning permission were to be granted this does
not affect any other legal or civil rights and permission would be
required from the relevant landowner should access be required
*water supply to Nos. 4 and 6 Olivia Road runs underneath the
proposed parking area and dwellings and would mean that the water
supply would require re-routing - the exact positioning of these
services would be for the applicant to determine and consequently
whether this would affect this proposal to build two dwellings on this
site. Any necessary consent required is separate to the need to
secure planning permission

*existing boundary wall - the wall has a very large crack in it which
runs from top to bottom and concerned that any building nearby could
caused the wall to further crack or collapse, also bringing down our
part of the wall, we think that a study should be made prior to starting
and possibly the crack in the wall should first be repaired - it is the
responsibility of the relevant landowner to maintain the wall referred
to, whilst this concern is noted it is not considered that if this

54



application were to be recommended for approval that it would be
necessary to secure such a study

*proposal could devalue property due to it being overlooked by the
new dwellings - although noting this point devaluation of property is
not in itself a material planning consideration although overlooking
has been considered above

*plans for the dwellings - plans not fully available to view - this
represents the first part of our objection. Would appreciate
confirmation of the ownership of the wall, if the wall is on both
properties then the new build must be further away from the existing
wooden boundary fence which stands on our property - the
neighbouring property has now been able to view the plans and in
terms of ownership the applicant has completed Certificate A stating
they own all of the land affected by the development. Should there
be a dispute over landownership this may be resolved through Land
Registry.

*There is currently an issue with parking in and around Mandeville
which has been increasing with the current social and economic
climate where families are becoming extended with a larger number
of working residents per property; additional burden will only increase
this and may lead to accidents involving the large number of children
in the area and increased tension between residents - whilst this
concern is noted the proposal seeks to provide at least one parking
space for each dwelling, additional parking cannot reasonably be
requested for this proposal and any current or subsequent parking in
the highway cannot be regulated through planning legislation. The
scale of this development is not considered large enough to warrant
refusal of the application on this basis and as noted, the development
accords with parking guidelines

*Being on the corner of Mandeville and Olivia it will cause access
problems as well as problems with traffic using Olivia Way - the
access to the site is considered, in this instance to be a sufficient
distance from the junction that it would not harm highway safety.
Users of such an access would need to do so with care, if permitted.
*There is no apparent requirement for additional housing within
Brampton as a. Properties (including the newly built developments
behind the Village Hall) remaining vacant, and b. The proposed
redevelopment of RAF Brampton to include a large number of
dwellings - the applicant does not need to demonstrate any need for
this development

*The facilities and resources within the village are already stretched
and the increase in demand will add to this. Whilst this is only 2
dwellings (potentially a couple with one child in each); the approval of
this and other such requests without thought for the facilities that the
village can sustain will end in the village losing its community identity
as families will have to go further afield for services - whilst this
concern is noted this is not a reason to refuse planning permission for
this proposal, the development would however be liable to the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) which is required from
development in order to pay for the infrastructure that is, or will be,
needed as a result of the new development.

*Lastly but as important, the owner of the property and land is not
resident and does not therefore appreciate the impact that it will have
on the immediate environment or community - this point is noted but
is not relevant to the determination of this application.

55



Conclusion

7.20

7.21

7.22

The proposed development is considered to be unacceptable for the
following reasons:

It is considered that the layout and development of this corner plot
has insufficient regard to the established pattern of development in
the locality which is characterised by semi detached and terrace
dwellings set back from the highway with the existing grass verges,
small green open spaces and undeveloped amenity spaces around
the junctions contributing to the character of this residential area. The
proposal fails to deliver a high quality form of development. The
proposal would result in a streetscene dominated by hard standing
and parked cars. The eastern elevation of proposed dwelling '2b'
would be dominated by a large expanse of brickwork providing little
relief to this elevation and the proposal would result in an incongruous
form of development.

The applicant has also failed to demonstrate, having regard to the
existing boundary treatment and location of the amenity space
associated with proposed dwelling '2b' that the proposed
development would provide an acceptable private and enclosed
amenity space. Future pressure to enclose this space would further
erode this undeveloped space and would harm the character and
appearance of this residential area.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

8.

RECOMMENDATION — REFUSE for the following reasons:

The layout and development of this corner plot has insufficient regard
to the established pattern of development in the locality which is
characterised by semi detached and terrace dwellings set back from
the highway with the existing grass verges, small green open spaces
and undeveloped amenity spaces around the junctions contributing to
the character of this residential area. The proposal fails to deliver a
high quality form of development. The proposal would result in a
streetscene dominated by hard standing and parked cars. The
eastern elevation of proposed dwelling '2b' would be dominated by a
large expanse of brickwork providing little relief to this elevation and
the proposal would result in an incongruous form of development.

The applicant has also failed to demonstrate, having regard to the
existing boundary treatment and location of the amenity space
associated with proposed dwelling '2b' that the proposed
development would provide an acceptable private and enclosed
amenity space. Future pressure to enclose this space would further
erode this undeveloped space and would harm the character and
appearance of this residential area.

The proposal is considered to be contrary to the NPPF, policy ENV7
of the East of England Plan, policies H31, H32 and En25 of the Local
Plan, policy HL5 of the Local Plan alteration, policy CS1 of the
Adopted Core Strategy, policies E1 and H7 of the Development
Management DPD Submission, policies DM13 and DM14 of the

56



Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 Draft Development Management
Policies (2012) and Huntingdonshire Design Guide (2007).

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Michelle Nash Development Management
Officer 01480 388405

57



Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT COUNCIL
Pathfinder-House - St Mary s Street  Huntingdon PE29 3TN

Head of Planning.Services
Pathfinder House

St. Mary’s Street
Huntingdon
Cambridgeshire-PE 29 3TN

APPLICATION NUMBER: | 12014160UT CASE OFFICER: Michelle Nash

PROPOSAL: Erect!on of two, two bedroom semi-detached dwelling
dwellings + amended plans

LOCATION: Land at and Including 2 Mandeville Road Brampton

OBSERVATIONS OF BRAMPTON PARISH COUNCIL

\/ APPROVE

Recommend Approval: The dwellings are rather compact but they will blend in well with the other houses

in the area. There is a demand for houses of thisS NAtUIE...... ..ot e

29 Oct 2912 = Nothing further to add to the original submission above — recommend approval.

......................................... Clerk to Brampton Parish Council.
Date: 29 October 2012

Failure to return this form within the time indicated will be taken as an indication that the Town or
Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application.

PLANNING SERVICES dcparish.rtf

Tel 01480 388388 Fax 01480 388099 mail@huntsdc.gov.uk  www.huntsdc.gov.uk

58



~ )

donshire

| APPLICATION NUMBER: | 12014160UT | CASE OFFICER: | Michelle Nash

PROPOSAL:

Erection of two, two bedroom semi-detached dwelling
dwellings

LOCATION:

Land at and Including 2 Mandeville Road Brampton

OBSERVATIONS OF BRAMPTON PARISH COUNCIL

\/ APPROVE

Recommend Approval: The dwellings are rather compact but they will blend in well with the other houses

in the area. There is a demand for houses of this nature

Clerk to Brampton Parish Council.

Date: 17 October 2012

Failure to return this form within the time indicated will be taken as an indication that the Town or

Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application.

PLANNING SERVICES

Tel 01480 388388

dcparish.rtf

Fax 01480 388099 mail@huntsdc.gov.uk  www.huntsdc.gov.uk

59




Development Management Panel

Huntingdonshire
$ Scale = 1:2,500 Location: Brampton DISTRICT COUNCIL

Date Created: 26/10/2012 Application ref: 12014160UT e o 00023557

g 4 ™
'ﬁ?f}inclg._l"ugbr\
£ N e

i
Ao S 4
i v ‘Sif%\\\\\"b\‘ C&j
?" ; \p‘.o F‘H@( i : ,‘ P

=~

l IS > IS
2)
p /o <
R S 73> s ~ 2\ ]
L5 Y J
& 6 1
©)
Post, 0 2 2
S
5
QY IS 2
v QDE
R > 2
2
L 3 i
=]
(D S 9 5
A
B 5 [
2
Pw
B il
S ] [ [ S
g [l

ege

[

=

Legend 7 [~
The Site > ] %

] g
T

m Conservation Area

|:| Brampton Village
Primary School

60



LA9Y-20dO ‘ou

cLoL :a)ep

EVD00Z:L | .opeos

ue|d 300|g R

gSt 823d ‘uojduwelq ‘peoi d|jIASpUeN Z

e asnoy pasodoid :qol

3n°00 ubisapolBip'mmm
3n°00°olbIp@aulenboel :jlewg
65588 0220 “@lIAON

888196 €¢C10 duoyd
abpuqwe)d

88805Y /8¥10 :ouoyd
3¢ 823d uopbununy
‘weyspunig

‘puz POOM Gt

90O pesH - weyshunig
pajwi o1Big

paxo3ygy ajeq roy

Id

buiuue
aul

‘papasse A|lesousab
usaq aAey 886 JO OV Siusied
pue sufisaq ‘yybuido) ayj jo
Al J8ydeyo ui paquosap sybu )y
“SHIOM
3} JO JUSLIBOUBWIWOD 3Y) 0} Joud
a)Is 8y} Uo uonoNIsuod Bunsixe
BU} 399U }SNW JOJOBIUOD Y|
*panss| S| UOISI9A PasIAal
e Ajojelpawiwi Aouauno wouj

paAowsal aq o} s Bumesp siy| -
*Buimesp siy} wouy

paleds 8g pINoOYS UOISUBWIP ON
SV 19N0a NI 41
“sjoa)lyo.e ay} o} Ajsjelpawi
paLIajal 9 PINOYS JUSWNI0P Jayjo
Aue pue Buimesp ay) usamiaq
punoy Aouedaiosip Auy ‘spajyole
ayy Jo uoissiwad Joud Jnoyym
Buimelp siy) uo umoys sjielap ay}
woly apew aq Aew uoneinsp oN

S31ON

[t}

~

o

o

EV@00C:L
ue|d 320|g

/

uspleo) ye

’DSLIS/ o
(o)} 98,70[{

Kiepunog a)is 4 Yorg

L

/|

g/

Wep s

n .

P
QOQ €Iy )

uspieg d¢ /

A
A

Bunjed

61




1A8Y-80d0O :ou

zHoL | eep

EVO00Z'L | gpeos

Bunped B

gS¥ 823d ‘uojdwelq ‘peoi s|jInepuE Z

Je asnoy pasodold qof

3n-09°ubisapoibip Mmm
yn-09-olbIp@auljenboel :jlewy
655882 02.2.0 ‘3lI90N

888196 €¢C10 duoyd
abpuqued

8880S¥ /8¥10 :duoyd
31¢ 823d uopbununy
‘weysnunig

‘PuU3 POOM G

8010 pedH - weysnun|g
paywir o1Big

paxoayg

|d

buluue
dul

‘papasse A|lesousab

U93q aeY 8861 4O 10V Slusled
pue subisaq ‘Wybukdo) ay} jo

Al Jardeyo uj paquosap spybu Iy
‘SHIOM

3} JO JUSLIBOUBWIWOD 3Y) 0} Joud
8)is 8Y} UO uoloNAISUOD Bunsixe
U} %08Y9 JSNW JOJOBIUOD BY |

[t}

~

‘panss! s| UOISIAA PasiAaI
e Ajgjelpawiwl Aoualind woly
panowal aq o} s| Bumelp sy
‘Buime.p siy) wouy

paleds 8q p|NoYs UOoISUBWIP ON
SV 19N0da NI I

“sjoa)lyo.e ay} o} Ajsjelpawi
pauIajal g PINOYS JUBWNIOP Jay10
Aue pue Buimelp ay} usamjaq
punoy Aouedaiosip Auy ‘spajyole
ayy Jo uoissiwad Joud Jnoyym
Buimelp siy) uo umoys sjielap ay}
woly apew aq Aew uoneinsp oN

S3J10N

©

o

EV@00¢:1L
ue|d bupjied

uspieo gz

Aiepunog a)IS

l€

ZO9N Jo) ssgdde ma
“deq Fnd/ebpay bunsixy

62




60d0O :ou

CL/60 o1ep

VD00l | .opeos

uonjoas pasodoid RET

asSt 823d ,EOﬂQEN_Q ‘peod gj|iAepuely ¢

Je asnoy pasodold qof

MMM
1D} 1 lews
6556882 0240 “3llq0N

888196 €¢C10 duoyd
abpuqwe)d

8880SY /8¥10 :duoud
31€ 823d uopbununy
‘weyspunig

‘pug Poom Gy

90O pesH - weysnun|g
pajiwi o1big

EV@00L:-L
uo13D3s pasodoid

0p¥ QN OZ

pa409yJ eleqg N

Id

buiuue
aul

‘papasse A|lesousab

usaq aAey 886 JO OV Siusied

pue sufisaq ‘yybuido) ayj jo

Al Jaydeyo ui paquosap sibu Iy §
“SHIOM
U} JO JUBIBOUBWIWIOD 3y} 0} Joud
a)Is 8y} Uo uonoNIsuod Bunsixe
BU} 399U }SNW JOJOBIUOD Y|
*panss| S| UOISI9A PasIAal
e Ajgjelpawiwl Aoualind woly

paAowsal aq o} s Bumesp siy| -
‘Buimesp sy} woly

paleds 8g pINoOYS UOISUBWIP ON
SV 19N0a NI 41
“sjoa)lyo.e ay} o} Ajsjelpawi
paLIajal 9 PINOYS JUSWNI0P Jayjo
Aue pue Buimesp ay) usamiaq
punoy Aouedaiosip Auy ‘spajyole
ayy Jo uoissiwad Joud Jnoyym
Buimelp siy) uo umoys sjielap ay}
woly apew aq Aew uoneinsp oN

S31ON

~

o

o

99¢/

ElE14

Aiepunog

63




9/d0 ou

zHL0 | eep

VD00l | .opeos

suoneas|3 epig pesodold o

gS¥ 823d ‘uojdwelq ‘peoi s|jInepuE Z

Je asnoy pasodold qof

MMM
161 [ :lewsg
6556882 0240 “3llq0N

888196 €¢C10 duoyd
abpuqued

8880GY /8110 :duoyd
31¢ 8¢3d uopbununH
‘weysnunig

‘pu3 POO G

90O PESH - Weysnunig
pajwi o1Big

pa409yJ ajeq N

dqZ ON

EVO00L:-L
suol1eAs|3 apis pasodold

BCON

|d

buluue
Qul

‘papasse A|lesousab

U93q aeY 8861 4O 10V Slusled

pue subisaq ‘Wbuido ay Jo

Al Jaydeyo ui paquosap sibu Iy §
‘SHIOM
3} JO JUSLIBOUBWIWOD 3Y) 0} Joud
aJIS BU} UO LONONISUOD Bunsixe
U} %08Y9 JSNW JOJOBIUOD BY |
‘panss! s| UOISIAA PasiAaI
e Ajgjelpawiwl Aoualind woly

panowal aq o} s| Bumesp siyL -
‘Buime.p siy) wouy

pa|eos aq pINoYS UoISUBWIP ON
SV 19N0da NI I
‘sjoayole ay) 0} Ajejeipaww
pauIajal g PINOYS JUBWNIOP Jay10
Aue pue Buimesp ay) usamiaq
punoy Aouedaiosip Auy ‘spajyole
ayy Jo uoissiwad Joud Jnoyym
Buimelp siy) uo umoys sjielap ay}
woyy apeu aq Aew uoieInep oN

S3J10N

~

o

o

64




90dO ou

cL/L0 o)ep

VD00l | .opeos

SuoleAS|T JESY pUE Juol4 pasodoid onn

gS¥ 823d ‘uojdwelq ‘peoi s|jInepuE Z

Je asnoy pasodold qof

EVO00L:-L
uoneAs|j Jeay pasodoid

dqZ¢ ON

3n°00 ubisapolBip'mmm
3n°00°olbIp@aulenboel :jlewg
655882 02.2.0 ‘3lI90N

888196 €¢C10 duoyd
abpuqued

88805 /8710 :8uoyd
37€ 823d uopbununy
‘weysnunig

‘PuU3 POOM G

Q01O pesH - weysihun|g
pajwi o1Big

lecid

EIET4

99¢.L

99¢/

pasioayg aleq Aoy

|d

buluue
aul

‘papasse A|lesousab
usaq aAey 886 JO OV Siusied
pue subisaq ‘Wybukdo) ay} jo
Al J8ydeyo ui paquosap sybu )y
‘SHIOM
3} JO JUSLIBOUBWIWOD 3Y) 0} Joud
8)is 8Y} UO uoloNAISUOD Bunsixe
U} %08Y9 JSNW JOJOBIUOD BY |
‘panss! s| UOISIAA PasiAaI
e Ajgjelpawiwl Aoualind woly
panowal aq o} s| Bumesp siyL -
‘Buime.p siy) wouy
pa|eos aq pINoYS UoISUBWIP ON
SV 19N0da NI I
‘sjoayole ay) 0} Ajejeipaww
pauIajal g PINOYS JUBWNIOP Jay10
Aue pue Buimesp ay) usamiaq
punoy Aouedaiosip Auy ‘spajyole
ayy Jo uoissiwad Joud Jnoyym
Buimelp siy) uo umoys sjielap ay}
WoJy apel aq ABW UOHEIASP ON |

S3J10N

[t}

~

o

o

EVO00L:L
uol1eAd|3 uou4 pasodold

EIEi4

EIEi4

99¢/

99¢/

65




§0dO ou

cL/L0 :o)ep m<©oo _‘” —
EVD00L:L | .opeos
uolleAs|q Jeay ¢ ‘ON

suoneAs|3 Bunsixgy B

95V 823d ‘uoldwelq ‘peos |ASpUEIN Z 009€EL

Je asnoy pasodold qof

3n°00 ubisapolBip'mmm
3n°00°olbIp@aulenboel :jlewg
655882 02.2.0 ‘3lI90N

888196 €¢C10 duoyd
abpuqued

El4¢i4

jRmasaEmsa=s

88805 /8710 :8uoyd
37€ 823d uopbununy
‘weysnunig
pu3 poom G
Q01O pesH - weysihun|g
pajwi o1Big

99¢/L

EVO00L:L
UOIeAR[3 3PIS Z "ON

pasioayg aleq Aoy

EVO00L:L
UOI1eAS|] JuUOI{ Z 'ON

|d

buluue
aul

ElEi4

‘papasse A|lesousab
usaq aAey 886 JO OV Siusied
pue subisaq ‘Wybukdo) ay} jo
Al J8ydeyo ui paquosap sybu )y
‘SHIOM
3} JO JUSLIBOUBWIWOD 3Y) 0} Joud
aJIS BU} UO LONONISUOD Bunsixe
U} %08Y9 JSNW JOJOBIUOD BY |
‘panss! s| UOISIAA PasiAaI
e Ajgjelpawiwl Aoualind woly
panowal aq o} s| Bumesp siyL -
‘Buime.p siy) wouy
pa|eos aq pINoYS UoISUBWIP ON
SV 19N0da NI I
‘sjoayole ay) 0} Ajejeipaww
pauIajal g PINOYS JUBWNIOP Jay10
Aue pue Buimesp ay) usamiaq
punoy Aouedaiosip Auy ‘spajyole
ayy Jo uoissiwad Joud Jnoyym
Buimelp siy) uo umoys sjielap ay}
WoJy apel aq ABW UOHEIASP ON |

S3J10N

99¢/

[t}

~

o

o

66




€0d0 :ou

CLIL0 ‘e)ep

VD00l | .opeos

ue|d J0oj4 punois paesodoid o

€8S 8¢3d ‘uojdwielq ‘peol sjjinepueN 2

e asnoy pasodoid :qol

3n-09°ubisapoibip Mmm
3n°00°olbIp@aulenboel :jlewg
65588 0220 “@lIAON

888196 €¢C10 duoyd
abpuqwe)d

8880S¥ /8¥10 :duoyd
37€ 823d uopbununy
‘weysnunig

‘PuU3 POOM G

80O peeH - weyshunig
pajiwi o1big

paxo3ygy ajeq roy

|d
1ANO

buiuue
aul

‘papasse A|lesousab
usaq aAey 886 JO OV Siusied
pue sufisaq ‘yybuido) ayj jo
Al J8ydeyo ui paquosap sybu )y
“SHIOM
3} JO JUSLIBOUBWIWOD 3Y) 0} Joud
a)Is 8y} Uo uonoNIsuod Bunsixe
BU} 399U }SNW JOJOBIUOD Y|
*panss| S| UOISI9A PasIAal
e Ajojelpawiwi Aouauno wouj

paAowsal aq o} s Bumesp siy| -
*Buimesp siy} wouy

paleds 8g pINoOYS UOISUBWIP ON
SV 19N0a NI 41
“sjoa)lyo.e ay} o} Ajsjelpawi
paLIajal 9 PINOYS JUSWNI0P Jayjo
Aue pue Buimesp ay) usamiaq
punoy Aouedaiosip Auy ‘spajyole
ayy Jo uoissiwad Joud Jnoyym
Buimelp siy) uo umoys sjielap ay}
woly apew aq Aew uoneinsp oN

S31ON

[t}

~

o

o

EVO00L:L
ue|d 100|4 punolio

0929

0000}
000G 0005
dc /4
|
mg Ry miii=i
| B
~ _ —
usples gz i h -
I —
_
—— | 2
| L =
| I
7
uaples) vz

67




0dO :ou

CLIL0 ‘e)ep

VD00l | .opeos

ue|d Jooy pue 100|4 }s| pesodoid o

€8S 8¢3d ‘uojdwielq ‘peol sjjinepueN 2

e asnoy pasodoid

:qol

3n-09°ubisapoibip Mmm
3n°00°olbIp@aulenboel :jlewg
65588 0220 “@lIAON

888196 €¢C10 duoyd
abpuqwe)d

8880S¥ /8¥10 :duoyd
37€ 823d uopbununy
‘weysnunig

‘PuU3 POOM G

80O peeH - weyshunig
pajiwi o1big

paxo3ygy ajeq roy

a¢c

EVOO00L:L
ue|d jooy

ve

a¢

EVO00L:L
ue|d 100|43s|

Ve

Id

buiuue
aul

‘papasse A|lesousab
usaq aAey 886 JO OV Siusied
pue sufisaq ‘yybuido) ayj jo
Al J8ydeyo ui paquosap sybu )y
“SHIOM
3} JO JUSLIBOUBWIWOD 3Y) 0} Joud
a)Is 8y} Uo uonoNIsuod Bunsixe
BU} 399U }SNW JOJOBIUOD Y|
*panss| S| UOISI9A PasIAal
e Ajojelpawiwi Aouauno wouj

paAowsal aq o} s Bumesp siy| -
*Buimesp siy} wouy

paleds 8g pINoOYS UOISUBWIP ON
SV 19N0a NI 41
“sjoa)lyo.e ay} o} Ajsjelpawi
paLIajal 9 PINOYS JUSWNI0P Jayjo
Aue pue Buimesp ay) usamiaq
punoy Aouedaiosip Auy ‘spajyole
ayy Jo uoissiwad Joud Jnoyym
Buimelp siy) uo umoys sjielap ay}
woly apew aq Aew uoneinsp oN

S31ON

[t}

~

o

o

Q

o

f\fgm@

68




Agenda ltem 5b

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 19 NOVEMBER 2012

Case No: 1201455FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: ERECTION OF DWELLING

Location: LAND AT 5 HALL CLOSE

Applicant: MR R CLARKE

Grid Ref: 518712 262949

Date of Registration: 17.09.2012

Parish: LITTLE PAXTON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application relates to the curtilage of No. 5 Hall Close, a two
storey modern dwelling which lies towards the north of the wider
residential area of Little Paxton. Hall Close is a cul-de-sac of large
detached dwellings. This particular dwelling occupies a corner plot.
This dwelling has a large curtilage to the rear and side of the dwelling.
The garden includes a strip of land west of No. 5 Hall Close that
gained planning permission for the erection of a detached dwelling in
January 2012, when the appeal against 1001540FUL was allowed by
the Planning Inspectorate. That dwelling will be accessed via
Rampley Lane.

1.2 This proposal is for a 2 storey, detached dwelling immediately west of
No. 5 Hall Close. The dwelling will measure approximately 10.3m (w)
x 9.5m (d) x 6.9m (h). No garage is proposed. Parking for 2 vehicles
is provided forward of the dwelling, off the public highway. For the
avoidance of doubt there is no designated conservation area in Little
Paxton but to the west of the site lies Grove Court, which includes
Grade Il listed buildings and to the south of the site lies Paxton Hall, a
Grade II* listed building.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and

69



enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e ENV6: “The Historic Environment” - Within plans, policies,
programmes and proposals local planning authorities and other
agencies should identify, protect, conserve and, where
appropriate, enhance the historic environment of the region
including Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings.

e ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

e None relevant.

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e En2:*Character and setting of Listed Buildings” - indicates that
any development involving or affecting a building of architectural
or historic merit will need to have proper regard to the scale, form,
design and setting of that building

¢ En18: “Protection of countryside features” — Offers protection for
important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges and
meadowland.

e En20: “Landscaping Scheme” - Wherever appropriate a
development will be subject to the conditions requiring the
execution of a landscaping scheme.

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,

70



3.4

3.5

3.6

materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

e H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — Indicates that
new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate standards
of privacy can be maintained and adequate parking provided.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

e HL5 — Quality and Density of Development - sets out the criteria
to take into account in assessing whether a proposal represents a
good design and layout.

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then

click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development.

e CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — Identifies Little Paxton as a
Key Service Centre in which development schemes of moderate
and minor scale and infilling may be appropriate in built up areas.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

e C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should take
account of the predicted impact of climate change over the
expected lifetime of the development.

e E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

e E2: “Built-up Areas” — development will be limited to within the
built-up areas of the settlements identified in Core Strategy policy
C3, in order to protect the surrounding countryside and to promote
wider sustainability objectives.

e [E3: “Heritage Assets” — proposals which affect the District's
heritage assets or their setting should demonstrate how these
assets will be protected, conserved and where appropriate
enhanced.

e ES5: “Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows” — proposals shall avoid

the loss of, and minimise the risk of, harm to trees, woodland or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value and

71



3.7

3.8

these should be incorporated effectively within the landscape
elements of the scheme wherever possible.

E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord
with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1
‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities
shall be provided to serve the needs of the development.

H3: “Adaptability and Accessibility” — the location and design of
development should consider the requirements of users and
residents that are likely to occur during the lifetime of the
development.

H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 - Draft
Strategic Options and Policies (2012):

Draft Policy 2: “St. Neots Spatial Planning Area”- A sustainable
housing scheme, including a residential institution and supported
housing, will be acceptable

where it is appropriately located within the built-up area of St
Neots or Little Paxton.

Draft Policy 9: “The Built-up area” — defines what is and what is
not considered to be part of the built-up area.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 - Draft
Development Management Policies (2012):

DM5: “ Sustainable travel” — development proposals should
demonstrate opportunities for use of sustainable travel modes,
traffic volumes will not exceed the capacity of the local or strategic
transport network, the effect of traffic movements and parking is
minimized, connectivity is provided, and it is safe for pedestrians
and cyclists.

DM6: - “Parking provision” — development proposals should
ensure that sufficient parking is provided to meet its needs and
minimise impacts on existing neighbouring uses.

DM7 - “Broadband” - new sustainable developments should
provide for the installation of fibre optic cabling to allow the
implementation of next generation broadband.

DM13: — “Good design and sustainability” — requires high
standards of design for all new sustainable development and the
built environment.

DM14: “Amenity” — requires development proposals to provide a

high standard of amenity for existing and future users of the
proposed development and its surroundings.

72



3.9

3.10

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

o DMZ20: “Integrated renewable energy” — development proposals
shall provide integrated renewable energy equipment in the
design of new buildings in order to reduce carbon dioxide
emissions.

e DM23: Flood risk and water management” — outlines the
considerations for the acceptability of development in relation to
the risk of flooding, including the implementation of Sustainable
Drainage Systems (SuDS).

e DM27: “Heritage assets and their settings” — to protect and
conserve the district’'s heritage assets, including listed buildings,
conservation areas and related assets. A sustainable
development proposal will be acceptable where it avoids or
minimises conflict with the conservation of any affected heritage
asset and the setting of any heritage asset.

e DM28: “Developer contributions” — development proposals shall
contribute towards local infrastructure, facilities and services from
sustainable development proposals, predominantly through the
Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 agreements.

Supplementary Planning Document:

The Huntingdonshire Design Guide 2007
PLANNING HISTORY

The planning history for No. 5 Hall Close is:

89003180UT — Erect one bungalow — permission refused.
9601484FUL — Extension to dwelling — permission granted.
9901075FUL — Extension to dwelling — permission refused and
upheld on appeal (Appeal decision attached as a Green paper).
1000453FUL — Erection of New House — application withdrawn by
applicant.

1001540FUL — Erection of Dwelling — application refused and allowed
on appeal ( Appeal decision attached as a Green paper).
1200708FUL — Erection of dwelling — application withdrawn by
applicant.

CONSULTATIONS

Little Paxton Parish Council — Objects (COPY ATTACHED)
English Heritage — Awaiting comments on this application. At the
time of application 1200708FUL it did not comment other than to
recommend that the application be determined on the basis of the
LPA’s specialist conservation advice.

The Environment Agency - Awaiting comments on this application. At

the time of application 1200708FUL it raised no objections subject to a
finished floor level condition.

REPRESENTATIONS

73



6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

6 letters of Objection on the grounds of:

* Impact on residential amenity by way of loss of views, loss of open
feeling and overbearing impact.

* Impact on the drainage system

* Building a house without a garage is first step in further
development of the site.

* The proposed dwelling does not reflect the character of surrounding
houses and design is inappropriate for this area.

* The proposal represents over development of the site.

* Visibility of dwelling over the flat roofed garage of 5 Hall Close.

* A second house will exacerbate poor visibility upon exiting the
driveway.

* Residents of the proposed dwelling and visitors will park on the
public highway.

* Hall Close is supposed to be a low density development with the
maximum number of houses already built.

* If permitted, 2 additional dwellings will now be built on the site
alongside the original 1 dwelling.

* The Design and access statement refers to a garage.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

For the avoidance of doubt there have been 2 appeals decisions
relating to this site, 1 was dismissal of a large extension in August
2000 and the most recent, and most relevant is the appeal decision
relating to the erection of a new dwelling to the west of No. 5 Hall
Close, to be accessed off Rampley Lane. This appeal was allowed in
January 2012. For the avoidance of doubt there have been significant
policy changes since 2000. Both appeal decisions are included as
green papers.

The NPPF advises that housing applications should be considered in
the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable development.
The NPPF aims to deliver a high quality built environment and focus
development in sustainable locations, with access to a choice of
transport modes. Annex 2 of the NPPF does exclude private
residential gardens from the definition of ‘Previously Developed
Land'.

The Huntingdonshire LDF Core Strategy 2009, policy CS3, identifies
Little Paxton as a ‘Key Service Centre’ where schemes of moderate
and minor scale and infilling may be appropriate within the built-up
area. Draft Policy 2 from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 —
Draft Strategic Options and Policies (2012) also advises that a
sustainable housing scheme in the built up area of Little Paxton will
be acceptable where it is appropriately located. Even though the land
is not previously developed, the principle of erecting one further
dwelling on the site is acceptable subject to the consideration of all
other issues. The other main issues for consideration are the impact
of the proposal on the residential amenity of neighbours, the design of
the dwelling and impact on the area and the setting of listed buildings,
highway matters and flooding matters

Impact on the residential amenity of neighbours:

74



7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

To the west of this site is landscaping, and beyond that an area of
open land within Grove Court, to the south is Little Paxton Hall, and to
the east is No. 5 Hall Close. It is not considered that this proposal will
be harmful to the amenity of the occupiers of No. 5 Hall Close.
However, the neighbours that warrant further consideration are those
north of the site.

Nos. 6 and 7 Hall Close are at a right angle to No. 5 Hall Close and
No. 5 Hall Close faces the blank gable end of No. 6 Hall Close. This
dwelling will stand to the west of No. 5 Hall Close, where it is
perceived by neighbours that the proposal dwelling will result in a
significant harm to their amenity.

The front projection of the proposed dwelling will be 10m from the
common boundary to the north, a wall approximately 1.8m - 2m tall.
The dwelling will be of similar height to No. 5 Hall Close. Furthermore,
the 1st floor windows will be high level windows, one of which, will
serve an ensuite and will be conditioned to be obscure glazed. The
applicant has demonstrated through a section drawing that views
north over the private amenity area to No. 6 Hall Close will be difficult
from the bedroom window at the front of the proposed dwelling. As
there will also be a second window, on the western elevation serving
that room, the applicant has advised that they would accept a
condition for the northern, high level window to also be obscure
glazed, if Members of the Development Management Panel
considered it necessary.

When considering this arrangement, weight is given to the historic
appeals that were considered for 5 Hall Close. In the appeal of 2000
the planning inspector identifies that there is a difference in ground
levels, namely that No. 5 Hall Close is marginally lower than No. 6
Hall Close, highlights that the proposal would be visible from No. 6
hall Close but unlikely to result in a significant loss of privacy but
concluded that extension (described as a three-fold increase in the
footprint of that dwelling) would reduce the feeling of spaciousness.
However, this application must be considered in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
The new dwelling approved at appeal in January 2012 is also at a
right angle to No. 5 Hall Close and the Planning Inspector considered
this arrangement between 2 separate properties to be acceptable. In
allowing the appeal for the new dwelling in January 2012, the
Inspector considered the distance between that new dwelling and the
most used part of No.5’s garden. The current proposal would result
in a shorter distance between the dwelling allowed at appeal and the
rear garden of the proposed house (compared to the distance
between the dwelling allowed at appeal and No.5) but, on balance,
the angle and the opportunity for planting means that the relationship
between the approved and proposed dwellings is acceptable.

Having regard to matters of light, outlook, overbearing and privacy, it
is not considered that a refusal of this proposal on the grounds of
residential amenity would be a sustainable reason for refusal. It is
therefore considered that this proposal complied with policy H31 of
the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, Policy H7 of the DMDPD:
proposed submission 2010 and policy DM 13 of the Policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 - Draft Development
Management Policies (2012).

75



The Design of the dwelling and impact on the character of the area and
the setting of Listed Buildings:

7.9

7.10

The dwelling has been designed to be broadly similar to the existing
dwellings in Hall Close, namely that it is a larger dwelling. There are
some differences but none that are considered detrimental to the
visual setting of Hall Close. The staggered arrangement, with the
proposed dwelling standing forward of No.5, is a continuation of this
arrangement in this part of Hall Close. There is only a 1.3m gap
between the side of No.5 and the side of the proposed dwelling, but
other dwellings in the Close are relatively close together.

Having regard for the impact on the listed buildings, this proposal will
result in the removal of the tall, dense leylandii trees along the west
boundary, opening up views through the site, which the Planning
Inspector in 2000 regarded as important views which can be seen
from the public domain. Additional landscaping can be controlled via
planning condition. Furthermore, the appeal of 2012 established that
new residential development between them would not be detrimental
to the setting of Paxton Hall or Grove Court. This dwelling has been
appropriately designed and will not be detrimental to the visual
amenity of Hall Close or the historic setting of listed buildings.

Highway Matters:

7.11

Policy E2 of the DMDPD: Proposed Submission 2010 advises that up
to 2 car parking spaces should be provided per dwelling but these are
maximum standards. The applicant is providing 2 car parking spaces
per dwelling, for the existing dwelling, and the proposed dwelling. In
addition to this, Hall Close is a residential cul-de-sac with no parking
restrictions. Residents are concerned regarding highway safety due
to the existing hedge. The width of the access is acceptable to serve
two dwellings, there is good pedestrian and vehicular visibility of the
access from within Hall Close, and the occupier of 5 Hall Close could
remove the hedge if they experience highway visibility difficulties.
This proposal is not considered detrimental to highway safety.

Flooding Matters:

712

At the time of application 1200708FUL, the Environment Agency had
no objection to the erection of an additional dwelling on the site
subject to a condition that floor levels shall be no lower than 16.05m
ODN and this condition shall be applied to any permission
accordingly. A survey forming part of the Flood Risk Assessment
records existing grounds levels in the area of the footprint of the
proposed dwelling to be around 16.00m ODN.

Other Matters:

Drainage matters:

7.13

Drainage matters are controlled by Building Control and not via
planning condition unless there is a potential impact on flooding
matters. The Environment Agency do not require drainage details for
the purposes of planning.

76



Future development of the site:

7.14 While Hall Close may have been designed as a lower density estate,
individual house owner have the right to apply for planning
permission. Each application must be considered on its own merits
against prevailing planning policy and any material planning
considerations.

Conclusion:

7.15 This proposal lies within the built up area of Little Paxton where the

development of this site is acceptable in principle. The dwelling, as
designed, will not be significantly detrimental to the amenity of
neighbours, will be in keeping with Hall Close and will not be
detrimental to the character and setting of Paxton Hall and listed
buildings within Grove Court. The proposal will not be detrimental to
the highway safety of Hall Close or flooding matters. In light of
National Guidance, Development Plan Policies and other material
considerations, it is recommended that permission be granted for the
dwelling as proposed.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

8.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to conditions to
include the following:

Materials

Landscaping

Provision/retention of parking spaces
Finished floor level

Obscure glazing for en-suite

Removal of PD rights for further first floor windows in front
elevation

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Clara Kerr Development Management Officer
01480 388434

77



To: DevelopmentControl[/O=HUNTS DISTRICT
COUNCIL/OU=HDC/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DEVELOPMENTCONTROL];

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 1201455FUL
Sent: Mon 10/8/2012 10:12:33 AM
From: developmentcontrol@huntsdc.gov.uk

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided
below.

Comments were submitted at 11:12 AM on 08 Oct 2012 from Mrs Jenny Gellatly.

Application Summary

Address: Land At 5 Hall Close Little Paxton
Proposal: Erection of dwelling

Case Officer: Clara Kerr

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Jenny Gellatly

Email: littlepaxton@hotmail.com

Address: 11 Hayling Avenue, Little Paxton, St Neots, Cambridgeshire PE19 6HG

Comments Details

Commenter Type: Town or Parish Council

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Reasons for comment: - Overbearing impact of development
- Traffic creation/problems

Comments: Overbearing impact of development . Traffic creation problems in a small cul
de sac.

78



Development Management Panel
Huntingdonshire

Scale = 1:2,500 Location: Little Paxton DISTRICT COUNGCIL
@ Date Created: 26/10/2012 Application ref: 1201455FUL O inance Survey HDC 100025352

——J
e i Boughtoi ¥
Q } e, ‘Qm thoe\ét@_-.‘_ e ) La?jge Fn\ﬂ@/ ;:
iy NN Cn A
17.7m A P fael T A =
/(\{ ' U “"F'?J s
4 \ i/ F

>
ittle Pﬂxton N _‘31
Waod A

.};

TEIN !:;, /\\_\r . )

[ Ny L\
NS e i %i@? et s —

17.3m @ E qi ﬂ@ [:,:’ E? [j? . ELM CROFT Ej
il

SREAT NORFH Rpap
CHAR
&
m
=/

U
Vol 8

d : y
[7~ & %“ ; m ~ & [ Nemes | F
&

d o @
Lj\ﬂ e HALLCTosE

£ §
o k<3
3 5 /|65
e @ ROVE COURT
N
RAMPLEY LANE 8 : D’
Hall

T Playing Field
Y
>7 ® Paxton Hall Posts
Care Home
/144/‘/0/?
= [
D A Playground
S
575 et
()

)

o

o

Q)
%
H ) 5
2 g e (O
) o 5B JO The Old
<

22
w

12

Surgery
A0

7 MEADO LB
W CLOSE Post Office

z
o
[e]
£ i
5 70 -
GH
< ] o
¢ S
= (3) 11 9 69 b TCB
™ c"/')” | StJames's
® g Church
ES > 3 ~ [ o =)
= <
a

A
Legend 0 N B
o
o
m

7 I:% D
# The Site - B\
JD: m v 15.8m = —_ O;; e

13




2V © e pajeapul se
ELAN

‘ 192/6/0L ON ONIMVYQ

A8 G3M03HD

A HMY A8 NMvQ

O O panoidde Apeaife asnoy mau m_mom oom. —
NVd 3LIS

7 ON A3y

A 30

2407 1dog
3va

sue|d uoieaoT pue ajis

ELTTR

Buyueyd qruys pue e} Meu

uojxed aI7 ‘@S0l IleH G
Je asnoH pasodoid

STVI30 103r0¥d

ENA|
§

99°G]

vrsk s z
= O O

e Y HN o

STVI30 IN3MD

oo jos@shrioue jew-3
L1SL19 19L10 '1_L

©N9 613d 2AUsaBPUIWED 'SI03N IS
‘Aeisioqqy ‘@so|0 syiwsHoe|g ‘G
a)wi] sAalo .
pajiwi N NV N a[e2s 0gzLi}
ainny sjqeurejsns e buipjing — NV1d NOILVOO01 31IS

647020007 YAGWNU 3DUdD|T 'PAAUSSAU SEYBIU Ny ‘0102 3UBIMAdog c:o..G ¢ Aaaung aduoupJun

A8 QOW 31va NOILI¥OS3a | A3Y
SNOISIA3Y

L=y

AWOH 340]

g NOH Uo3x0g
\
5 .
— uwud TIH
LT \\/_
\\

—S3I0N

OV




Q@Sn.mém v 4

A LP. ; ﬁ SGZIGL0L  ON ONIMYSD 7

v - : A8 O303HO _
202 |udy.

7 o _ HMY A8 NHVIQ _

NV1d 400

SuoleA8|g pue suejd pasodoid

L

uojxed o ‘esold IIeH §
Je 8snoH pasodoid

SIVI30 L03r0¥d

MIEID Y HN

SIVI3Q IN3MD

wovjce@sAaloue 1jiew-3

146119 L9110 8L

ONY 613d duysabpLgu s
*Aeisioqay ‘es0j0 supwsioelg ‘G

poywi] SAMION NV

aimny ajqeureisns e Buipling

O—s=—]

“pRIOMO] Buim te0)

HMY 21600 | o} joou ‘pauon: asnoy ‘pojiwo ebeies )

A8 QOW va NOILJINOS3Q | A3Y

SNOISIAY

~'S3LON

NV1d 0074 ANNOYO

NV1d 40074 1S¥id

NOLLVATT3 ¥vad

spomouq Buroey

wa O B
L R w_u,
| -
H
s
e y
NOILVAZ T3 INO¥4
= owpouq Bupe N
~—— se|g 9ja:0u00 |IL L
NOILVYA3T3 JaIS




BEDROOM

line of vision
bottarfy of|glazin
g ye level
%
£
&
g € Ql
g o0
£
£ ~+—boundary wall
no. 6 Hall Close S 7
N
SCALE
1:50 at @ A3
CLIENT DETALS PROJECT DETALS TITLE building a sustainable future
MR. R. Clarke Proposed House at Section through house ANN Lt
' orvys Limite y
5 Hall Close, Little Paxton y
5, Blacksmiths Close, Abbotsley, :
St. Neots, Cambridgeshire PE19 6UQ
Tel: 01767 677577
DATE DATE DRAWING NO 10791262 REV NO E-mail: anorvys@aol.com

DRAWN BY  AWH

October 2012

CHECKED BY




GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

83



The Planning
Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 10 January 2012

by John Braithwaite BSc(Arch) BArch(Hons) RIBA MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 23 January 2012

Appeal Ref: APP/H0520/A/11/2154899
Land at 5 Hall Close, Little Paxton, St. Neots, Cambridgeshire PE19 6QS

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr R Clarke against the decision of Huntingdonshire District
Council.

e The application Ref 1001540FUL, dated 17 August 2010, was refused by notice dated 21
December 2010.

e The development proposed is the erection of a new house.

Decision

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for the erection of a
new house on land at 5 Hall Close, Little Paxton, St. Neots, Cambridgeshire in
accordance with the terms of the application Ref 1001540FUL, dated 17 August
2010, subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: 1079/200 Rev. B, 1079/201 Rev. A, and
1079/202.

3. No development shall take place until samples of the materials to be used
in the construction of the external surfaces of the building hereby permitted
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved samples.

4, No development shall take place until details of hard and soft landscape
works, including a programme of implementation, have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority and these works shall be
carried out as approved. The details of hard landscape works shall include
vehicle and pedestrian surfaces and boundary treatments. The details of soft
landscape works shall include planting plans, written specifications, and
schedules of plants noting species, plant sizes and proposed numbers and
densities where appropriate.

5. No development shall take place until details of fencing for the protection
of existing trees and hedges to be retained have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The erection of protective
fencing shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details before any
equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to the site and shall be
maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been
removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in
accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not
be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the written approval of
the local planning authority.

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk

84



Appeal Decision APP/H0520/A/11/2154899

Reasons

2. The main issues are the effect of the proposed dwelling on; first, the setting
of nearby listed buildings, Paxton Hall and Grove Farm; and second, on the
amenities of residents of 5 Hall Close.

The first issue - the setting of Paxton Hall and Grove Farm

3. 5 Hall Close is a detached two storey dwelling on a cul-de-sac of similar
dwellings within an extensive modern residential area on the north side of Little
Paxton. To the south of Hall Close is Paxton Hall, a Grade II* listed building set
within walled landscaped grounds, that is now a nursing home. To the west of Hall
Close is Grove Court, the former stables of Grove Farm and a Grade II listed
building, that is now in mainly residential use and is surrounded by parking and
landscaping. Land to the north, south and west of Paxton Hall remained
undeveloped until the mid 1970’s when it was developed with housing. It is likely
that the stables to Grove Farm were converted at about the same time.

4. 5 Hall Close has a substantial side and rear garden that is bounded, to the
south, by the landscaped grounds of Paxton Hall, and to the west, by the
landscaped grounds around Grove Court. The residential property also includes a
narrow area of land, about 35 metres long and on average about 8 metres wide,
between the two landscaped areas that has a frontage to Rampley Lane. The
proposal includes severing the narrow area of land from the main garden area of 5
Hall Close and the construction of a two storey dwelling on the separate plot. The
proposed dwelling would be about 7 metres wide and 12.5 metres long and would
be erected at the wider end of the plot towards the retained garden area.

5. Rampley Lane provides access to Grove Court and to Paxton Hall. But the
current access into Paxton Hall was only created when its former access from the
west was developed in the 1970’s along with land either side. It is likely that the
appeal site was originally part of land associated with Grove Farm and it is not
clear how it came to be part of land associated with 5 Hall Close. Nevertheless,
the two listed buildings have clearly defined curtilages and, despite their proximity,
there is no evidence to indicate that Grove Farm and Paxton Hall were ever
associated by use or ownership. The settings of the two listed buildings are clearly
defined and are separated by the appeal site.

6. The original countryside setting of Grove Farm and Paxton Hall was lost in
the 1970’s when their immediate settings became surrounded by housing
development. The listed buildings, both in location and visually, are within the
built-up area of Little Paxton. Furthermore, there is no visual link between the two
listed buildings and there are no significant views out of their settings. The
proposed gable ended dwelling would be about 4.1 metres high to the eaves and
7.3 metres high to the ridge. It has been designed to be low in height and
appropriate in form. It would not extend significantly above a boundary hedge to
Grove Court and the high boundary wall to Paxton Hall.

7. Given its sympathetic form and despite its position between the settings of
the listed buildings, the proposed dwelling would not have any adverse effect on,
and would thus preserve, the settings of Grove Farm and Paxton Hall. The
proposal does not thus conflict with saved Huntingdonshire Local Plan (LP) policies
En2 and En25, or with the thrust of national policy on heritage assets as set out in
Planning Policy Statement 5 ‘Planning for the Historic Environment’.

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk 2

85



Appeal Decision APP/H0520/A/11/2154899

The second issue — the amenities of residents of 5 Hall Close

8. The proposed dwelling would have a first floor lounge and a master bedroom
both with east windows that would face towards the rear garden area at 5 Hall
Close. The east elevation of the dwelling would be about 9 metres from the
boundary between the new and retained plots but the rear garden at 5 Hall Close
is large and the east elevation would be about 20 metres from the most used part
of the retained garden, that part immediately to the rear of the dwelling. There
would, furthermore, be the opportunity to establish screen planting along the
boundary and a condition has been imposed to ensure that a planting scheme is
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority before implementation.

9. The planting might provide only partial screening but, given also the
distance from the east elevation of the proposed dwelling to the most used part of
the garden area at 5 Hall Close, there is unlikely to be overlooking from the lounge
and master bedroom windows that would result in a significant loss of privacy in
the retained rear garden. The proposed development would not result in any
significant loss of amenity for the residents of 5 Hall Close. The proposal does not
thus conflict with saved LP policy H31.

Conditions

10. The conditions suggested by the Council have been imposed, apart from
that relating to the laying out and surfacing of a parking and turning area which
has been subsumed into a general landscaping condition, but have been amended
in the interests of clarity and precision. Condition 1 is the standard time limit
condition, condition 3 is to ensure that the dwelling has a satisfactory appearance,
condition 4 is in the interests of visual amenity, and condition 5 is to ensure that
retained trees and hedges are protected during the construction period. Condition
2, which requires that the development is carried out in accordance with approved
plans, is for the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

John Braithwaite

Inspector

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk 3

86



NOTES:~

MOD BY

AWH

Jan. 2010
A

(e

DATE
12.03.10

19 SEP 2010
ViA

DATE
DATE

|| SCAE 4400 ‘

H REV NO

|

REVISIONS

DESCRIPTION

10791201

Planning application issus.
AWH

REV

A

099900
LN
599099999999999999999

QLR

T

T

0000C00CUCCCCACCCoCe

)

20000008
LR

0002030C0e0eee0eaeced

IRIYRIIDIIIRLIIII)
CCCCeeeecleceddaecelcd

I
sl Iy

(@ aananxe

3200293300 39093999)

G

0300000000C0CaCeceecce
2000200002
5909999993909930990090)
(LR L
99009990599930999 0390
(UL
00993999059999990009)

(s

L

(el
20L2L0L2eLLLLLN
0355359999593955995095;

0 05999539955995995

building a sustainable future
St. Neots, Cambridgeshire PE18 6UQ

Tel: 01767 677577

AN Norvys Limited
5, Blacksmiths Close, Abbotsley,
E-mail; anorvys@aol.com

Pians and Elevations

MR. R. Clarke
Rampley Lane, Little Paxton

PROJECT DETAILS
Proposed House at

CLIENT DETALS

TME
ORAWN 8Y
CHECKED 8Y
DRAWING NO

|

Loee

12551

_FIRST FLOOR PLAN

CQLReeedeeecieeeeecceed s

SIDE ELEVATION

. I

interlocking concrete pantiles
3no, Velux rooflights with 3no.
Velux integrated solar panels
horizontal timber cladding

facing brick plinth and post bases

timber posts

@

FRONT ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

34 YA

15724

~
~
<+

]

fll

AN

(NI

777
timber screen panel

il

REAR ELEVATION

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

oo
~



psjeajpul mm

: ||

_ 002/6.01 ON 9NMVHQ

|
[ o
I

3va

A A8 G3HI3HO

040z "ded 18 N
7 ugl_ _ HY

SUejd UONed0T pue 8l

L

uojxed a7 ‘aue Asjdwey
Je asnoH pasodoid

SIVI3Q 103r0Yd

MED Y HN

SWI3Q IN3MD

woo|oe@sAnoue Jjew-3

L1219 19210 L

VNY 613 21UsaBpLIqUIED ‘SI00N 1S
“Aeisioqqy ‘a0l syIwSORIS 'S

papwi] sAnON NV

aininy ejqeuseisns e Buiping

HMY | 01'80°9) Arepunog o) peppe Bupued men ]
HMY | 01'e02) "enss} uopedjidde Sujuueid v
A8 QOW 31va NOHdI¥OS3Q | A3

SNOISIAZY

0761001

Y

—S3I0N

9|eds 00G:1 - NV'1d 3LIS

esnoy pasodosd

18298
Buyueid grys pue ea) mou

|
1%

066|

@\ﬂ

"

==
aue Asjdwey

m g -~ : = \m

. J1amas gifgnd Bugsixe jo suj|
0 £ 0Ul Bupsixe
soejdal o} sojeD pue ([EM YoLg Mou

K

9]eds 06Z}:} - NV'1d NOILVYOO1 31IS

6020007 “8guNU aduUad|T PAAUSSaJ s3YOIM 1y ‘0102 24BiuAdog :xosu L Aaaung aduoupvp

Iﬁlﬂ'ﬁf{hr

88




£2 :
ﬁ'ﬁ L] 2 .
: Appeal Decision ThePlorig epechrat
b 8 NP3 _ Toligate House
R = Site visit made on 29 June 2000 _ ’j.,‘;?,'},."“aﬁgiﬁ; J
Ao preyiat YD ® 0117 987 8927
o ey 1o
'%# ¥ by Eiluned Morgan BA MSc MRTPI
o
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for the Dale
Environment, Transport and the Regions 24 UG 2000

Appeal Ref: APP/H0520/A/00/1041480
5 Hall Close, Little Paxton, St. Neots

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a refusal to
grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr & Mrs R Clarke against the decision of Huntingdonshire District Council.

= The application ref: 99/1075 dated 12 July 1999, was refused by notice dated 15 October 1999,

The development proposed is a two-storey side extension including swimming pool, double garage
and CCTV cameras.

Summary of Decision: the appeal is dismissed

Main Issue

1. I consider that the main issue is the effect the proposal would have on the character and
appearance of the locality.

Development Plan and other Planning Policies

2. The development plan includes the Cambridgeshire Structure Plan adopted in 1995 and
the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1996. Structure Plan Policy SP12/10 states that all new
developments will be expected to incorporate high standards of layout and design and to
relate well to their surrounding.

3. Local Plan Policy En25 reflects this guidance in expecting new development to
generally respect the scale, form, materials and design of established buildings in the
locality and where appropriate to make adequate provision for landscaping. Policy H34
applies to extensions which should have regard to the amenity and privacy of adjoining
properties. The Local Plan is the subject of proposed alterations but 1 am advised that
none of the above policies is affected by the proposed changes.

4. National guidance on design is given in Planning Policy Guidance 1 (PPG1), General
Policy and Principles. In paragraph 17 it states that local planning authorities should
reject poor designs, which may include those inappropriate to their context, for example
those clearly out of scale or incompatible with their surroundings.

Reasons

5. Hall Close is a planned development of large two-storey houses arranged around a cul-
de-sac. The houses are closely spaced and, although there are some variations, overall
there is a consistent form of design. No.5 Hall Close is in the corner of the L-shaped

~ cul-de-sac and is on a much larger plot. The dwelling is aligned with the properties
acing north on Hall Close and this creates an open view to the west across the forecourt
towards the grounds of Grove Court. This view is a significant feature of Hall Close as

89



Appeal Decision ‘

it is visible on entering the Close from St.James Road and is a major open view within
the development. A feature of it is the very high conifer hedge that at present prevents
views beyond the site into the substantial gardens of Grove Court. I understand that the
conifers may be felled but do not consider that this would reduce the view’s
attractiveness, in fact this could enhance it further by increasing openness and interest.

The Hall Close development was clearly carefully planned and took advantage of the
opportunity to provide a view that, in my opinion, adds to its attractiveness. The
proposal would introduce a single and two-storey extension, incorporating a double
garage, into the westward view from Hall Close, in such a way that the view would be

largely lost and I consider that this would have an adverse visual impact on the street

scene,

The development proposed would represent approximately a threefold increase in the
footprint of the dwelling, so that it would be substantially larger than other dwellings in

o .

Hall Close. The plot is larger than the others but it has an irregular shape and is subject -
to design constraints because of its setting. The proposed extension would be very close K .

to two of the site boundaries which currently have no built development next to them.
There is a brick wall between the site and the rear garden of No.6 Hall Close but the

proposed large garage would be about 4 metres high at its ridge and, allowing for the

difference in ground levels, would be visible from the garden and the house. From the
back garden the two-storey element of the proposal would also be visible and, although
it would be unlikely to result in a significant loss of privacy, I consider that it would
reduce the feeling of spaciousness.

The proposed garage and swimming pool would be positioned close to the boundary

with Grove Court and there would be insufficient space to provide landscaping to screen
the extension. In view of the large size of the swimming pool building, I consider that
reducing the impact of its mass should not be dependent on trees beyond the site and
that on site landscaping would be necessary.

The proposal would change the style of the house in such a way that it would appear
quite different from others in Hall Close. At present it has a simple ridged roof with a
flat roofed garage. By comparison, the proposal would have a complex footprint and
roofscape and, although not all of it would be seen because of its size and position, it
would no longer appear to be part of the original Hall Close scheme and would
undermine the design integrity of that development. In addition because of its large
mass and the restricted opportunities for landscaping it could not be visually integrated
into its setting. While there are occasions when a high standard of design would justify
a building of a very different character, I do not consider that the proposal represents
such an instance.

Conclusion

10. PPG1 looks to local planning authorities to not impose a particular architectural taste or

style arbitrarily, but it also confirms the importance of the setting of a proposal and the
design of buildings. 1 consider that the proposal would appear unduly large and that its
design would not be sympathetic to its setting, that there would be insufficient space for
necessary landscaping and that it would result in the loss of a view that contributes to
the attractiveness of Hall Close. I have concluded that the proposal would have.an

90



Appeal Decision

adverse visual impact on the character and appearance of the locality and that it would
be contrary to development plan policies SP12/10, H34 and En25. I have considered all
the other matters raised in the representations, but none outweighs the considerations
that lead me to my decision.

Formal Decision

11. In exercise of the powers transferred to me 1 dismiss the appeal.

Information

12. A separate note is aftached setting out the circumstances in which the validity of this
decision may be challenged by making an application to the High Court within 6 weeks
from the date of this permission.

EC\QN.LB \.\o\fhﬁh .

INSPECTOR

91



NO PLANS
AVAILABLE FOR
THIS APPEAL

92



Agenda ltem 5c¢

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 19 NOVEMBER 2012

Case No: 1201062FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: ERECTION OF OCCUPATIONAL DWELLING AND DOUBLE
GARAGE FOR EXISTING FARM AND FISHERY

Location: HOLLOW HEAD FARM HOLLOW
Applicant: CLARKE FARMS

Grid Ref: 530779 284790

Date of Registration: 27.06.2012

Parish: RAMSEY

RECOMMENDATION - REFUSAL
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This site is located on Hollow Lane, in the open countryside,
approximately 2 Km east of Ramsey. It forms part of an agricultural
holding (having a total area of 73.21 ha), principally in this area and in
the adjoining Parish of Warboys. It adjoins a complex of farm
buildings, and the access into the site. The land is presently used for
arable purposes and has no features of note. The front boundary is
relatively open, and there are clear views of the site from Hollow
Lane. To the rear of the holding is a large irrigation reservoir. From
information taken from application 1001869FUL, it would appear that
the reservoir was constructed in 1996.

1.2 The bulk of the land in the vicinity of the application site is in
agricultural use and built development is well scattered.

1.3 The proposal is to erect an occupational dwelling and a double
garage for the existing farm and fishery. The front of the dwelling will
align with the adjoining barns and the two storey section will measure
10.5m by 8.9m. There will be a single storey addition on the rear
measuring 5.4m by 5.4m. The ridge height of the two storey section
will be approximately 7.25m and the ridge height of the single storey
section approximately 5.2m. The eaves height will vary with the
maximum height being approximately 3.4m. The materials for the
walls will be brick and boarding, with tiles for the roof. A double
garage will be sited close to the dwelling and there will be a
parking/turning area close to both buildings. The existing access into
the site will be used although the plans indicate that it will be
improved. Behind the barns, seven extra parking spaces are
indicated. A native species hedge with intermittent trees is to be
planted around the dwelling and garage.

1.4 The improvements to the access and the provision of 7 parking
spaces to the rear of the barns were shown on the application for the
use of the reservoir for recreational fishing (1001869FUL).

1.5 The site is in the open countryside and the land is liable to flood.

93



2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

e SS1: “Achieving Sustainable Development” — the strategy seeks
to bring about sustainable development by applying: the guiding
principles of the UK Sustainable Development Strategy 2005 and
the elements contributing to the creation of sustainable
communities described in Sustainable Communities: Homes for
All.

¢ WAT4: “Flood Risk Management” — River flooding is a significant
risk in parts. The priorities are to defend existing properties from
flooding and locate new development where there is little or no
flooding.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

94



3.3

3.4

e None relevant

Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e En17: "Development in the Countryside" - development in the
countryside is restricted to that which is essential to the effective
operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry, permitted
mineral extraction, outdoor recreation or public utility services.

e En20: Landscaping Scheme. - Wherever appropriate a
development will be subject to the conditions requiring the
execution of a landscaping scheme.

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

e H23: “Outside Settlements” — general presumption against
housing development outside environmental limits with the
exception of specific dwellings required for the efficient
management of agriculture, forestry and horticulture.

e H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — Indicates that
new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate standards
of privacy can be maintained and adequate parking provided.

e CS8: “Water’ — satisfactory arrangements for the availability of
water supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities, surface
water run-off facilities and provision for land drainage will be
required.

e CS9: “Flood water management” — the District Council will
normally refuse development proposals that prejudice schemes
for flood water management.

3.4 Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies
from the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and
viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on
"Local Plan Alteration (2002)

e None relevant

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — states that any area not
specifically identified are classed as part of the countryside, where
development will be strictly limited to that which has essential
need to be located in the countryside.

95



3.5

3.6

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

C5: “Flood Risk and Water Management” — development
proposals should include suitable flood protection / mitigation to
not increase risk of flooding elsewhere. Sustainable drainage
systems should be used where technically feasible. There should
be no adverse impact on or risk to quantity or quality of water
resources.

E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

E2: “Built-up Areas” — development will be limited to within the
built-up areas of the settlements identified in Core Strategy policy
CS3, in order to protect the surrounding countryside and to
promote wider sustainability objectives.

E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord
with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1
‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities
shall be provided to serve the needs of the development. Car free
development or development proposals incorporating very limited
car parking provision will be considered acceptable where there is
clear justification for the level of provision proposed, having
consideration for the current and proposed availability of
alternative  transport modes, highway safety, servicing
requirements, the needs of potential users and the amenity of
occupiers of nearby properties.

H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

P7: “Development in the Countryside” — development in the
countryside is restricted to those listed within the given criteria.

a. essential operational development for agriculture, horticulture
or forestry, outdoor recreation, equine-related activities, allocated
mineral extraction or waste management facilities, infrastructure
provision and national defence;

b. development required for new or existing outdoor leisure and
recreation where a countryside location is justified;

c. renewable energy generation schemes;

d. conservation or enhancement of specific features or sites of
heritage or biodiversity value;

e. the alteration, replacement, extension or change of use of
existing buildings in accordance with other policies of the LDF;

f. the erection or extension of outbuildings ancillary or incidental to
existing dwellings;

g. sites allocated for particular purposes in other Development
Plan Documents.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 - Draft
Strategic Options and Policies (2012) are relevant:-

96



3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

6.1

e Draft Policy 7: “Scale of development in the countryside” - sets
out the limited circumstances where sustainable development in
the countryside will be considered. These include (where it is in
accordance with other policies of this Plan or policies of the
Cambridgeshire Waste and Minerals Development Plan produced
by Cambridgeshire County Council) proposals for essential
operational development for renewable and low carbon energy
generation.

o Draft Policy 9: “The Built-up area” — defines what is and what is
not considered to be part of the built-up area.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 — Draft
Development Management Policies (2012) are relevant:-

¢ DMS6: “Parking provision” — development proposals should ensure
that sufficient parking is provided to meet its needs and minimise
impacts on existing neighbouring uses.

e DM13: “Good design and sustainability” — requires development
proposals to be designed to a high standard which reflects the
surroundings and contributes positively to the local character of
the built area, and has regard to the Design Guide.

e DM14: “Amenity” — requires development proposals to provide a
high standard of amenity for existing and future users of the
proposed development and its surroundings.

e DM23: Flood risk and water management” — outlines the
considerations for the acceptability of development in relation to
the risk of flooding, including the implementation of Sustainable
Drainage Systems (SuDS).

The SPD Design Guide is a material planning consideration.

PLANNING HISTORY

03004350UT - erection of agricultural dwelling. Refused 18th
September 2003.

1001869FUL — Use of irrigation reservoir for recreational fishing and
alterations to existing access. Approved 4th February 2011.

CONSULTATIONS

Ramsey Town Council — Approve (copy attached).

Middle Level Commissioners — it is considered that the applicant has
not yet provided adequate evidence to prove that a viable scheme for
appropriate water level/flood risk management has been devised.
REPRESENTATIONS

Neighbours — no representations received.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

97



71

The main issues in this case relate to the principle of the
development, the impact of the proposal on the character of the site
and the area in general, the effect on neighbour amenity, highway
issues and flooding.

The principle of the development

7.2

7.3

7.4

This site is in the open countryside for the purposes of the
Development Plan and emerging planning guidance. The relevant
policies referred to above are restrictive and will generally only permit
development which, inter alia, is essential operational development
for agriculture or outdoor recreation. National policy is to control
development in the countryside in order to conserve its character and
natural resources, and applications for development in the
countryside should be supported by a specific justification. In this
case an agricultural appraisal has been submitted.

The proposed dwelling is to serve both the farm and the fishery. The
latter was granted planning permission in February 2011, but has yet
to be implemented due to the lack of an on-site dwelling to supervise
the use and to provide welfare for the fish. In addition, the relative
isolation of the site leaves it vulnerable to theft and vandalism. The
applicant argues that the proposal is in accord with the provisions of
the NPPF in that it will support economic growth in a rural area, and
that, although isolated houses in the countryside should be avoid,
they should be supported in special circumstances e.g. where there is
an essential need for a rural worker to live permanently at or near
their place of work. An overriding issue for the NPPF is that
development should be sustainable.

The application is accompanied by an appraisal of the business, and
an assessment of need for a dwelling to serve this holding. An
application for a dwelling was submitted in 2003, but permission was
refused on the grounds that the development was premature given
the length of time that the applicant had left on his existing tenancy
with the County Council. In summary, the justification for the current
dwelling covers a number of issues:-

1) The farm includes a 1.1 ha reservoir, originally built for watering
the potato crop, although fish were introduced into it in 1997. The
reduction in the potato crop has resulted in no water being taken from
the reservoir since 2007. This has allowed, with careful management,
the fish to thrive. It is now a sought after sports fishing venue.

2) The applicant is keen to develop the fishery as a commercial
enterprise (hence the permission granted in 2011) but, before this can
happen, the site will require close supervision all year round. This will
ensure good standards of fishery practice, fish husbandry and visitor
safety.

3) Large amounts of fertilizer, other farming requirements, crops and
machinery are stored at the site. A dwelling on the site will provide
security for the farm itself, together with a deterrent against the theft
of fish.

4) An onsite dwelling will also deter intruders who might injury
themselves on the machinery or equipment, or be at risk from
drowning in the reservoir.

5) A dwelling will allow for the expansion of the enterprise.

98



7.5

7.6

7.7

6) Farm commodity assurance schemes require farms and crops to
be regularly supervised by a worker living on the site.

7) The quality of the fish in the reservoir generates welfare
requirements and security needs to look after the fish and to prevent
the theft of valuable stock.

8) The current manpower requirement, based on the arable side of
the business, equates to just over half a full time worker. However,
when the requirement of running the fishery is taken onto account,
one full time worker can be easily justified.

9) The existing business is financially viable and is likely to remain so.

The applicant has submitted a number of appeal decisions to support
the application although it is a standard tenet of planning law that
each case should be treated on its individual merits. Without knowing
the full details of the cases referred to, it is difficult to provide in depth
comments, but the three Inspectors involved have concluded in each
case that it is essential to have a dwelling on site for a full time worker
to monitor oxygen levels and water quality, to provide maintenance
and for enhanced security.

In order to test the applicant’s statement, the Authority commissioned
its own independent assessment of the proposal - as to whether or
not a dwelling is justified in this case. After reviewing the information
provided by the applicant, and assessing this against present policies
and guidance, the following conclusions have been drawn:-

1. Farming operations have been undertaken at the unit since 1991
without the need for a dwelling on the site. A person living on site
would be preferable for security reasons, but there is no essential
need for a dwelling on the farm at present.

2. There is only a limited need for a dwelling to serve the proposed
fishing enterprise. There have been fish in the lake since 1997, and
these have been managed for the past 15 years without an on-site
presence. The fish have been monitored, and their needs have been
met, without staff living on the site.

3. Whilst security is an issue, and was a factor in the three appeal
decisions, there are other ways of providing this e.g. by CCTV or
alarms. Fencing may not be an option due to its visual impact.

4. The fishing enterprise for which the dwelling is deemed essential
by the applicant is not yet operating.

5. Given that the enterprise is not yet operating, its financial
sustainability cannot be assessed.

6. Present profitability from farming is variable. The income from the
fishing enterprise could improve the situation but there is no clear
evidence of this.

7. The balance sheet is not evidence of sound finances given that
current assets are worth considerably less than current liabilities.

8. There are properties close by in Ramsey (where the farmer
currently lives) which could provide the required accommodation
without building a house on this site.

In the light of the above commentary, it is considered that, whilst a
permanent dwelling on this site would have certain advantages for the
applicant, it cannot be considered to be essential in terms of the
present or proposed business, and does not satisfy the requirements
of paragraph 55 of the NPPF. It should also be noted that the site is in
an unsustainable location in that the majority of journeys to and from

99



it would be made by private car. The proposal is contrary to the
provisions of policies SS1, En17, H23, CS3, E2, P7 and draft policy 7.

Impact on the character of the area

7.8

7.9

The proposal will increase the amount of built development on the
site, and, whilst the proposed dwelling will be well related to the
existing farm buildings, the presence of a further structure will
consolidate and intensify the built up nature of the site. The dwelling
will be clearly visible from the road due to the lack of screening
across the frontage of the site (although hedge planting is proposed),
with the garage being set further forward of the building line
established by the existing barns. There are no objections to the form
and scale of the building itself, and the size of the dwelling is not
excessive.

It is considered that the erection of the proposed building and garage
will intensify the built up nature of the site, and that this will, as a
consequence, have an adverse impact on the character of the open
landscape. The proposal does not comply with the requirements of
policies E1 and DM13.

Effect on neighbour amenity

7.10

7.11

There are no other residential properties in close proximity to the site,
and the erection of the proposed dwelling will have no impact on the
amenities of any of the other property along Hollow Lane.

The proposal complies with policies H31, H7 and DM14.

Highway Issues

712

713

7.14

There is an adequate access into the site at present, but it is to be
improved by increasing its width slightly, and by providing larger kerb
radii. The road is not classified but the improvements are welcomed
as the access is used by large farm vehicles. Should consent be
granted for the development, the provision of the improved access
could be required by condition. The erection of one dwelling on the
site should not have a significant effect on the amount of traffic using
the access or the road.

The submitted plan indicates that there is ample parking space being
provided for the new dwelling and the standard specified in policy
E10, and in appendix 1 to the DMDPD (a maximum of two spaces) is
satisfied.

The proposal meets the requirements of policies E10 and DM6.

Flooding

7.15

The site is within Environment Agency flood zones 2 and 3, but is in
flood zone 1 of the Huntingdonshire SFRA. The application has been
accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment. In terms of the NPPF, the
sequential test is to steer new development to areas with the lowest
probability of flooding. In this particular case, the proposal passes the
sequential test due to its location in SFRA zone 1. Given that the

100



sequential test is satisfied, there is no requirement to apply the
exception test.

7.16 The FRA does not take the SFRA into account but considers the
application in terms of the E.A. flood zones, and the now superseded
PPS25. The FRA states that, although the sequential and exception
tests should be applied, the site is protected against the 1 in 100 year
return period event, being within a defended flood plain. The
likelihood of flood water overtopping the defences is considered to be
small, and it is also likely that flooding from other sources is similarly
low. There is no evidence that the site has flooded in the past 100
years. It is intended to construct the dwelling with a floor level of
300mm above the adjoining ground levels — a level similar to that of
Hollow Lane. In the event of an extreme flooding event, it is likely that
the water levels will rise slowly, thereby allowing safe access from the
property towards Ramsey. The occupants will be made aware of the
EA’s Floodline Service. The FRA concludes that, although the site is
within EA flood zone 3, it is protected by flood defences to a 1 in 100
year return period, and that the risks of flooding are low.

717 The Environment Agency have been consulted on the application and
their comments will be reported to Members in due course.

Other issues

7.18 There are no other material planning considerations which have a
significant bearing on the determination of this application.

Conclusions

1. An independent assessment has concluded that there is no
essential requirement for a dwelling in this location.

2. The erection of the building will consolidate the built up nature of
the site and will have an adverse impact on the open character of the
area.

3. The development will not affect the amenities of any of the nearby
dwellings.

4. There are no overriding highway issues.

5. There are no overriding flooding issues.

6. There are no other material planning considerations which have a
significant bearing on the determination of this application.

7.19 Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
considered that planning permission should not be granted in this
instance.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

8. RECOMMENDATION — REFUSE for the following reasons
The proposal would be contrary to the provisions of policy SS1 Of the East of
England Plan — revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May 2008), policies

H23 and En17 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, policy CS3 of the
Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009, policies E1, E2 and P7 of

101



the Development Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010, draft policy 7
of the Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 — Draft Strategic
Options and Policies (2012) and policy DM13 Policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 — Draft Development Management
Policies (2012) in that the proposal is for non-essential residential
development in the open countryside. The development is not sustainable
given its distance from the nearest settlements and the erection of the dwelling
and the garage will consolidate and intensify the amount of built development
in the locality, to the detriment of the open nature and rural character of the
adjacent countryside.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to David Hincks Development Management
Officer 01480 388406

102



_HUntingdonshire

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street ‘ T 2

Huntingdon. PE29 3TN : Tel: 01480.388388

mail@huntsdc.gov.uk ' ‘ . Fax: 01480 388099
‘ o . www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Head of Planning Services Co

Pathfinder House

St. Mary’s Street

Huntingdon

Cambrldgeshlre PE 29 3TN

Application Number; 1201062FUL Case Officer David Hincks
Proposal: Erection of occupational dwelling and double garage for existing farm and flshery
Location: Hollow Head FarmHollow LaneRamsey
Observations of Ramsey Town/Parish Council.
- Pleasge v box as appropriate

‘/ Recemmend approval because ...... (please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

IO VORP U Ddonr vtk 2 dasfentions . T Cllee -

m@,\j -f&\a;} o busuiess Stccegs NTcu;eol a

Recommend refusal because...(please give relevant planning reasons in space‘below) .

5

-". o . .

Failure to return this form within the time indicated will be taken as an indication that the Town or
-Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application. :

(Development Management)

103




Development Management Panel — i -
Huntingdonshire

Location:Ramsey DISTRICT COUNCIL
© Crown copyright and database rights 2012

L Scale = 1:5,000
% Date Created: 26/10/2012 Application ref: 1201062FUL Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

pd T — S TTVWOITER I —5s x/)/
Fen f % o % f ?*Q
: 0% N § Rams /H ollow 5
g 'S.‘,/ By @?‘ / 7 \‘.
- D Park FriY s 4 I

Cemv N ,,~q Y
W oSl o #

i ld

(s

ﬁ%’f( RAMS’EY _ Folow 2/
Kﬁ“"‘“‘*’ RS Hleap. b /W Fraghall
el 4 \
v oirems D‘” ol | ,’/ [~ F:ﬂ
T —_ e
e YN
i ; i VA Sy d
,_;’_:k"[':"’/_r-—‘?:—— S \“\Q{,\
i e £ 3N
A n ; e ' ‘f.\;‘w Dovehouse &
BuryiFen | P b Vi
------------- - =xpy i Poplar Tree
. .- Fm 2
i S
Y% ;,}{,1
Ve
S, T
Ay N

Legend

/| The Site

{04



284800m

3 =
s §
] :
I
1
LT
Iy
ol /)
=y ,F l
"
|
|
}f H
| ]
|
|
j .
! ﬂ Drain
284 Boom . \ — - o o
NS ][]
U -
M \ Hollow Head Fhrm
N
P
| |
o
| | |
_F] — .
\- . _,_._,,,_.4_,__,4.‘,..;...,_,,.»,,_,.__;,A._A4_....~_..._,,..,.,,.,_,__,,_ .
e L T et Cae. |
T 1.6m .
1 |C I
e =
g §
0 5 10 1r5 210 2l5 3I° 315 4|a 4|5 5|0

tollow, treap Carns

l“.dlew LG'MQ OS Mastermap

26 June 2012, ID: BW1-00159651

E& (VU RS "‘ www.blackwellmapping.co.uk

1:1250 scale print at Ad, Centre: 531044 E. 284781 N

©Crown Copyright. Licence no. 100041040

m

s
105

Ordnance
Survey®

BLACKWELL’S

wivw.biackwellmapping.co.uk

TEL: 01223 568 417
maps.cambridge @blackwell.co.uk



L 1209:Ch oy 3ma

QIGTY NS

T
IV g | Aaomaworow aricnfiy 7

v 97412
osZ: Iy AT ANTIING ~1]-Y G AT
g

1s13010uyoo], [BIMIDANYDE D

IVIDIW SuAed [[ossny




Ve Z 1209:0L ox g
ATy —
TOIOE LDO omg QO apeag

UOUTSLOIAR MO padnpaIdar
6 100 15N PUR LY AR jio5sny JO A0S Stp 1 Burmemp sy @

SNOMUTATTIT @ SNvTd GRcodoyd
Sumerq

WS INNVTD VO

CCOW YO AISWYN 'INVT AMOTTOH
‘WYL VI MOTTIOH

—ily FOVAIVE @ ONITIFIMT QISOIOV
100fo1g

A0°00'T{20sT @ 9uked SSIL[TRWD 97GTY L8P10IOL

41T 8784 squeD ‘skoqrem
@ 19008 UBIH L8
OSNOK peay

1s18010Uyd9], [BINIOSNYILY PAIIIRYD)

IVIDIN QuA®{d [[oSsny

CNOISS IWers .
ONINNGI Fod QRHENTNIE ONIMTNGD - [[-G-D -7 NI

BLIS No
ONIDNIWWQD SYOM Ql. Jotaid
3 DNINNG I T MLIM ONILIDIM
Nt Qaz30v 39 OL GFHS INIL

& SWiRELYW TYNIALXE TV
IvMENTD

&agol

NFHOLIY

ATIWe S

I

IR

9
0
Y

309 LT

Q0ZG

-

e B

!
|

- Cope ouddv Lidos oL 1dd

OSZL = ¥ouddv 2001 oL WA ]

X7

Fars
1351
T3
MW
H

18

-

Y5
2K

M TIF]
S 9b|

¥

PR L




HAVYD SAQHA VM

LIULS HOIH L8

ISNOH av3ad

15180[0uYda] [RINIANYOLY PassueyD)
LVIOW ANAVd TT3SS1Y

©/zoo o/
<N OpMg

No=Z AvVW

NE7A7]

0/

A<=y

TSNOUYITITF @ MWTT - TOVIVO
 ONIMvIg

SWavHd FXI VIO

iLNZ 7D

STWVO AISWVY 'INVT MOTI0H
‘WIS TYIH MO TIOH

—: LV Fovavog DNITTIMT g7eo0doxd
LR

ot 9s

RO VaAvVD

‘3Lic No DNIONIwWwWoD
SoRlom QL 2oiad Id3a
ONINNVI 7T nLIM ONILIIA NI
gazADV IG OL STHSINIE

© SIWNILYW WNIAILXI MY
IVNINTD

W= xmddvéoom QL4

I

TN

‘caddv oS QL7

108



Agenda ltem 5d

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 19 NOVEMBER 2012
Case No: 1201447REP (EXTENSION TO TIME LIMIT FOR
IMPLEMENTATION)

Proposal: REPLACEMENT OF PLANNING PERMISSION 09010780UT
FOR INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ( B2/B8)

Location: BLACK HORSE FARM OLD GREAT NORTH ROAD
Applicant: WEDGE LTD

Grid Ref: 517577 283462

Date of Registration: 01.10.2012

Parish: SAWTRY

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application site, which is currently vacant, is approximately 0.84
hectares in size and is located immediately to the north and west of
sites which have been developed for employment purposes. One of
those sites (Nordic House) is currently unoccupied. In addition to the
development to the west, the former bridleway and unadopted road
(Straight Drove) was realigned and now runs straight along the
southern boundary of the site in order to accommodate larger delivery
vehicles/HCVs.

1.2 There are a number of trees within the vicinity of the drove and a
hedge along the western boundary.

1.3 The application is for the replacement of an unimplemented outline
planning permission for the change of use of the land for industrial
development comprising B2 and B8 uses (General Industrial and
Storage and Distribution). The provision for seeking replacement
planning permissions was recently extended by the Government to
include applications originally approved on or before 1 October 2010.

14 According to the previous application the proposal is to include
3,000m2 of new floorspace.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high

109



quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

2.2 Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework -
Flood Risk (2012)

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e SS1: "Achieving Sustainable Development" - the strategy seeks to
bring about sustainable development by applying: the guiding
principles of the UK Sustainable Development Strategy 2005 and
the elements contributing to the creation of sustainable
communities described in Sustainable Communities: Homes for
All.

e E2: "Provision of Land for Employment" - Sites of sufficient range,
quantity and quality to cater for employment sectors should be
provided at appropriate scales in urban areas, market towns and
key rural centres.

e T2: "Changing Travel Behaviour" - to bring about significant
change in travel behaviour, a reduction in distances travelled and
a shift towards greater use of sustainable modes should be
promoted.

e T14: "Parking" - controls to manage transport demand and
influencing travel change alongside measures to improve public
transport accessibility, walking and cycling should be encouraged.
Maximum parking standards should be applied to new commercial
development.

e ENV3: "Biodiversity and Earth Heritage" it should be ensured that
the region's wider biodiversity, earth heritage and natural
resources are protected and enriched through conservation,
restoration and re-establishment of key resources.

e ENV7: "Quality in the Built Environment" - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

110



3.2

3.3

e ENG1: "Carbon Dioxide Emissions and Energy Performance" - for
new developments of 10+ dwellings or 1000sgm non residential
development a minimum of 10% of their energy should be from
decentralised and renewable or low carbon resources unless not
feasible or viable.

e WAT4: "Flood Risk Management" - River flooding is a significant
risk in parts. The priorities are to defend existing properties from
flooding and locate new development where there is little or no
flooding.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

o P2/5: "Distribution, Warehousing and Manufacturing" states that
these uses will only be located on sites with good access to rail
freight facilities, and to motorways, trunk or other primary routes.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e E1: "Economic and Employment Growth" - will be promoted,
commensurate with the planned residential and population growth
and the Council's aims to provide a range of employment
opportunities and reduce commuting.

e E2: "Provision of Land" - land will be allocated for an adequate
range of sites and premises, in terms of size, quality and location
that would be suitable for industry, warehousing and distribution,
office and high technology uses, providing individually and
cumulatively they comply with other Local Plan policies.

e E3: "Provision of Land" - Land allocations for the needs of general
industry, warehousing and distribution, office and high technology
uses. The District Council will allocate 6.5ha of land to the east of
the A1 at Sawtry for B1/B2.

e En12: "Archaeological Implications" - permission on sites of
archaeological interest may be conditional on the implementation
of a scheme of archaeological recording prior to development
commencing.

e E13: "Industry, Warehousing or high technology and office
developments" - will not be permitted where it would cause
serious traffic noise or pollution problems or other damage to the
environment

e En18: "Protection of countryside features" - Offers protection for

important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges and
meadowland.

111



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

e En19: "Trees and Landscape" - will make Tree Preservation
Orders where it considers that trees which contribute to the local
amenity and/or the landscape are at risk.

e En20: Landscaping Scheme. - Wherever appropriate a
development will be subject to the conditions requiring the
execution of a landscaping scheme.

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

e CS8: "Water" - satisfactory arrangements for the availability of
water supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities, surface
water run-off facilities and provision for land drainage will be
required.

e T18: "Access requirements for new development" states
development should be accessed by a highway of acceptable
design and appropriate construction.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

e None relevant.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework
Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning and then click on Planning Policy where there is a
link to the Local Development Framework Core Strategy.

e CS1: "Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire" - all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development.

e CS7: "Employment Land" - At least 85Ha of new land for
employment will be provided before 2026, in key identified areas.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

The Local Planning Authority's Development Management
Development Plan Document: Proposed Submission 2010 (DMDPD)
was reported to Cabinet and approved for submission on the 11th
February 2010. It was published on 26th March 2010. This was
preceded by three separate public consultation exercises: the details
of which can be viewed in The Statement of Consultation for the
DMDPD on the Council's website www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk. The
document was not submitted in view of the uncertainty regarding the
Government's intentions in respect of the East of England Plan and
the impending publication of the National Planning Policy Framework.

112



3.8

3.9

It is considered that its policies are consistent with the NPPF. It is
therefore considered that its policies should be accorded significant
weight.

e C5: "Flood Risk and Water Management" - development
proposals should include suitable flood protection / mitigation to
not increase risk of flooding elsewhere. Sustainable drainage
systems should be used where technically feasible. There should
be no adverse impact on or risk to quantity or quality of water
resources.

e E1: "Development Context" - development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

o [E4: "Biodiversity and Protected Habitats and Species" - proposals
should aim to conserve and enhance biodiversity. Opportunities
should be taken to achieve beneficial measures within the design
and layout of the development. Developments will be expected to
include measures that maintain and enhance important features.

e E10: "Parking Provision" - car and cycle parking should accord
with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1
'Parking Provision'. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities
shall be provided to serve the needs of the development. Car free
development or development proposals incorporating very limited
car parking provision will be considered acceptable where there is
clear justification for the level of provision proposed, having
consideration for the current and proposed availability of
alternative  transport modes, highway safety, servicing
requirements, the needs of potential users and the amenity of
occupiers of nearby properties.

e P1: "Large Scale Businesses" - proposals for major industrial or
warehouse uses (other than B1a) will be considered favourably
subject to environmental and travel considerations where the site
is within the built-up area of a Market Town or Key Service Centre
or an identified Established Employment Area, or a site allocated
for that type of use, or the proposal is for the expansion of an
established business within the existing site.

Huntingdonshire District Council has commenced preparation of a
Local Plan to 2036 to replace its existing development plan
documents. The plan will set out the strategy for development in the
whole of Huntingdonshire, incorporating policies for managing
development and site-specific proposals for different forms of
development in the context of the new National Planning Policy
Framework. The plan will include consideration of the Alconbury
Enterprise Zone and other proposed development on the Airfield, as
well as other opportunities that have arisen since the Core Strategy
was adopted in 2009.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 - Draft Strategic
Options and Policies (2012):

113



3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

4.1

Draft Policy 5: "Scale of development in Key Service Centres" -
sustainable development proposals located within the Key Service
Centres will be acceptable where they are in accordance with policies
of this Plan.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 - Draft
Development Management Policies (2012):

e DM1: "Safeguarding local employment opportunities" - proposals
shall safeguard Established Employment areas to balance the
provision of employment across the district.

e DM6: - "Parking provision" - development proposals should
ensure that sufficient parking is provided to meet its needs and
minimise impacts on existing neighbouring uses.

e DM13: - "Good design and sustainability" - requires high
standards of design for all new sustainable development and the
built environment.

e DM14: "Amenity" - requires development proposals to provide a
high standard of amenity for existing and future users of the
proposed development and its surroundings.

e DM23: Flood risk and water management" - outlines the
considerations for the acceptability of development in relation to
the risk of flooding, including the implementation of Sustainable
Drainage Systems (SuDS).

e DM24: "Biodiversity and protected habitats and species"- A
sustainable development proposal will be acceptable where it
does not give rise to significant adverse impact on a site of
international, national, local or regional importance for biodiversity
or geology or protected species, priority habitats or species. A
sustainable development proposal will aim to conserve and
enhance biodiversity.

e DM25: "Trees, woodland and related features" - A sustainable
development proposal will be acceptable where it avoids the loss
of, and minimises the risk of harm to trees, woodland, hedges or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value,
including orchards, ancient woodland and aged or veteran trees.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Potential
development sites: Key Service Centres and Small Settlement:

Draft Allocation SY6: Old Great North Road, Sawtry
PLANNING HISTORY

An original outline planning consent was granted in May
2006(06001230UT) for the use of the land (including the application
site) for light and general industrial purposes (B1 and B2).
Subsequently reserved matters were granted for the development of
part of the site (0704222REM) which excluded the application site.
The application site was not however developed and the original
outline permission lapsed.

114



4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

6.1

71

7.2

Subsequently a fresh outline planning permission was granted
(0901078FUL) for B2/B8 use on 21 October 2009. This permission
has yet to be implemented and this application seeks to extend it.

Of relevance to this proposal is application 1200714FUL which was
before the Development Management Panel in July 2012. Planning
permission has been granted for the use of Nordic House (to the
south of the application site) for B1/B2/B8 uses.

CONSULTATIONS

Sawtry Parish Council- Recommend refusal (COPY ATTACHED).
The committee response to this application is the same as to the
previous one:

"The original intention of this land was to provide jobs for local people
from what is basically a dormitory village. B8 would not provide many
jobs and for that reason the committee would support an application
for B2 but not for B8.

The application mentions removing trees, the council would prefer to
retain as many trees as possible, albeit as coppice, which would be a
quicker and more effective boundary than new planting.’

Highways Agency - No comments received.

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways - no objections subject to
conditions.

Environment Agency - recommend reference is made to the
Environment Agency Land Drainage and Flood Defence matrix.

Cambridgeshire County Council Historic Environment Team -
archaeological condition requested.

REPRESENTATIONS
None received.
SUMMARY OF ISSUES

As this is an application to replace a previous outline planning
permission it is relevant to note the change in the policy position since
the original decision in October 2009. Since that time the Council has
produced the Development Management DPD: Proposed Submission
in 2010 and consultation on the draft Local Plan to 2036 documents is
currently ongoing. The DPD replaced the Interim Planning Policy
Statement of 2007. At the national level the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) was adopted in 2012 replacing all relevant PPGs
and PPSs.

The issues relate to the appropriateness of the proposed
development on part of an overall site that is allocated for B1/B2
employment purposes in the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995;
highway safety; flooding; loss of trees; archaeology; the effect on the
public right of way and the proposed scale parameters.

115



Principle of Development.

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

The planning policy position in relation to this site can be summarised
as:

e Policy E2 of the 2008 East of England Plan and Policies E1 and
E2 of the 1995 Local Plan provide general support for
employment uses;

e Policy P2/5 of the 2003 Structure Plan supports B8 use which are
located on sites with good access to rail freight facilities and
motorways;

e The 1995 Local Plan (Policy E3) allocated the application site for
B1/B2 use only;

e The 2009 Core Strategy (Policy CS7) supports the use of existing
commitments in Sawtry for employment use. The policy does not
restrict the use to a particular 'B' class;

e The 2010 Development Management DPD: Proposed Submission
(Policy P1) follows the approach of the Core Strategy;

The draft Local Plan does not identify the site as an Established
Employment Area although the application site is identified as a
potential allocation for light industrial use (Use Class B1c) under
Potential Allocation (Employment) SY6.

In addition to this the NPPF is considered to be an important
consideration. Paragraphs 18-22 seek to promote economic growth.
Paragraph 18 states that 'significant weight should be placed on the
need to support economic growth through the planning system'. In
addition, paragraph 22 states that planning policies should 'avoid the
long term protection of sites allocated for employment use'.

In summary the proposed use of the building for B2 use is supported
by all the policies and guidance referred to above with the exception
of the draft Local Plan which can only be afforded little weight owing
to the current stage of preparation. With regard to the B8 use this use
is supported by all of the policies and guidance with the exception of
Policy E3 of the 1995 Local Plan. The potential allocation in the draft
Local Plan is also not for B8 use.

The views of the Parish Council are noted regarding employment
generation from a B8 use as opposed to B2. Guidance in relation to
employment densities can be found within the Homes & Communities
Agency publication 'Employment Densities Guide 2010 (2nd Edition)'.
Page 6 of the guide provides details of the floorspace per full time
equivalent employee (FTE). For B8 use the FTE floorspace is 70m2
for General B8 and 80m2 for large scale and high bay warehousing.
By comparison a B2 use commands 47m2 respectively per FTE. This
guidance suggests that B8 use does command a lower employment
density than a B2 use.

These findings need to be considered against the benefits of bringing
the site into use. In officers' view, given that significant weight should
be attached to the NPPF (which identifies the need to afford
significant weight to economic growth), and as there are no policies

116



within the Core Strategy and Development Management DPD:
Proposed Submission which restrict B8 use, the balance lies in favour
of the proposal. Therefore whilst the proposed B8 use has the
potential to generate fewer employment opportunities this is not
considered to outweigh the support which the application receives. A
B8 use would also provide more jobs than no use. In officers' view
the principle of the development is therefore considered to be
acceptable.

Highway Safety and Parking.

7.9

7.10

7.11

712

713

7.14

The site has previously undergone some level of access and re-
alignment works in order to ensure that the site can be appropriately
and adequately served from Old Great North Road. At the time of
consideration of the new road application regard was given to the
extant outline consent for the use of the entire site for B1/B2
purposes and considered to be appropriate for that scale of
development.

It can therefore be concluded that the proposed development will not
prejudice highway safety.

In respect of the proposed access, the indicative layout demonstrates
that the requirements of the Highways Authority could be adequately
achieved at reserved matters stage.

The indicative layout proposed demonstrates that the site is capable
of accommodating 44 parking spaces and 2 disabled spaces
alongside adequate turning space. In accordance with the
requirements of Appendix 1 to the Development Management DPD:
Proposed Submission 2010 there would be a maximum requirement
of 50 spaces for a B2 use and 20 for a B8 use. Cycle parking would
also be necessary for 50 spaces (B2) and 30 spaces (B8). The
previous application was considered against the parking guidance
within the 2007 Interim Planning Statement which required less
parking.

Given that the provision of parking for a B2 use is below the
maximum threshold and in the interests of promoting sustainable
development, it is considered to be expedient to require a Green
Travel Plan and cycle parking provision. These matters can be dealt
with through the imposition of appropriately worded planning
conditions.

Given the discussions at the July Development Management Panel in
relation to the Nordic House site it is also considered appropriate (and
consistent) to attach an informative which endeavours to advise that
access to the site by heavy commercial vehicles should not be taken
from Bill Hall Way/Fen Lane.

Flooding

7.15

The site itself is within a location liable to flood within a 1000 year
envelope. Having regard to the Environment Agency matrix, there is
a need for the applicant to achieve run off rates from the site
equivalent to the existing use. In this instance it is necessary to
achieve Greenfield run off rates and measures are included within the

117



original flood risk assessment to ensure that this takes place. To
ensure that this takes place the imposition of an appropriately worded
condition is suggested.

Trees and Landscaping.

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

The site was heavily disturbed with a number of trees lost to allow for
the re-alignment of the road and the erection of a security fence
surrounding this application site.

Landscaping of importance within the site is that sited adjacent to Old
North Road and that located adjacent to the northern boundary. Any
subsequent application would need to retain sufficient space on the
northern, southern and western boundary to accommodate additional
planting to add to that retained and replace some of that which was
lost as a result of the re-alignment of the road.

It was accepted that the tree survey, carried out in 2001 and used to
determine the 2009 application, was out of date in respect of much of
the site, however, the siting of the proposed building shown on the
indicative layout is of sufficient distance back from the existing
boundary of the site to ensure that much of the existing landscaping
can be retained with space for additional plating to enhance this
landscaping. Accordingly, in this instance it is considered reasonable
to condition the submission of a new tree survey along with an
appropriate set of landscaping conditions requiring trees to be
retained and where appropriate replaced or added too and a
comprehensive landscaping scheme for the whole site. This will look
to address not just the three important boundaries listed above but
also the junction of Straight Drove and the internal road network to
soften the appearance of the building.

Following on from the issue of trees and landscaping is that of
biodiversity and ecology. Whilst the site has been subjected to a
reasonable level of disruption during recent months there remains
likelihood that there is some ecological/biodiversity value to the site.

The outline planning permission which this application seeks to
replace included a condition requiring the submission of landscape
details. As this is covered under the 'standard' reserved matters
condition this is not considered to be necessary. It is noted that when
determining the previous application Members raised concerns
regarding the need to sensitively screen the site and specifically that
palisade fencing was unlikely to be acceptable. This can be included
as an informative in order to highlight concerns.

As with the previous application an appropriate assessment of
biodiversity (including a mitigation scheme) can be sought via the
imposition of an appropriately worded planning condition.

Archaeology

7.22

The County Council Archaeologist has sought an appropriate
negatively worded planning condition. This was included on the
previous permission and it is therefore considered expedient to apply
this condition to this replacement permission application.

118



Acceptability of the proposed building (scale parameters).

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

The applicant has clearly set out the proposed scale parameters of
the development, as per the requirements associated with Design
and Access Statements and Outline application submissions.

As detailed above the indicative layout proposes an adequate
arrangement with important landscape areas, whilst demonstrating an
appropriate level of parking and turning can be achieved.

Additionally the applicant has indicated an overall height of 12.6m,
which equates to the same height of the adjacent building (Nordic
House) and 3m lower than the building to the east would be
appropriate.

As the building will be clearly read in association with these adjacent
buildings and will be the nearest to the road, albeit the smallest of the
three buildings, it is considered that the height of the proposed
building needs to reflect the frontage location proposed and the clear
views that would be obtained of the corner of the site, accordingly the
use of 12.6m in height is considered to be excessive and that a more
staggered approach in the heights of the buildings, based on their
dominance in the street scene is more appropriate. It is therefore
recommended that a maximum height of 11m for this building be
secured by condition. The previous permission (09010780UT) which
this application seeks to replace was subject to a condition restricting
the height of the development to no more than 11m.

Conclusion

7.27

Having carefully assessed and weighed up the planning policy
considerations the proposal is considered to be acceptable as:

e The principle of using the site for B2/B8 use is acceptable having
regard to Policy P2/5 of the Structure Plan, Policy CS7 of the
Core Strategy, Policy P1 of the Development Management DPD:
Proposed Submission and the NPPF. Whilst the proposal is not in
accordance with the site's allocation within Policy E3 of the Local
Plan (and has therefore been advertised as a departure from the
development plan) nor the draft Local Plan proposed allocation,
the other development plan policies and material planning
considerations indicate that the application should be approved;

e The proposal need not have an unacceptable impact in highway
terms; it is therefore considered to be compliant with Policy T18 of
the Local Plan and Policy E10 of the Development Management
DPD: Proposed Submission;

e The development is acceptable having regard to flood risk
considerations as required by Policy WAT4 of the East of England
Plan, Policy CS8 of the Local Plan and the NPPF (including its
Technical Guidance);

e With the exception of the maximum height of the building (which is
suggested to be conditioned to 11m) the defined scale
parameters for development are considered to be appropriate
having regard to Policy ENV7 of the East of England Plan, Policy

119



En25 of the Local Plan and Policy E1 of the Development
Management DPD: Proposed Submission;

e The scheme allows for adequate retention and provision of
landscaping and is therefore compliant with Policy En19 of the
Local Plan;

e Matters relating to flood risk, biodiversity and ecology and
archaeology can be dealt with via the imposition of appropriately
worded conditions such that relevant policies can be satisfied.

8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to conditions to
include the following:

01017 - Details of reserved matters

Nonstand - Reserved matters submitted in writing and carried out as
approved

01003 - Reserved matters submitted within three years

01006 - dates for commencement of development

Nonstand - compliance with scale parameters, including no more
than 11m high

Nonstand - Existing and proposed levels

Nonstand - access requirements

Nonstand - provide turning and parking areas

Nonstand - cycle parking

Nonstand - Green Travel Plan (exclude removal of parking spaces
from previous condition)

Nonstand - surface water drainage

Nonstand - archaeology

Nonstand - tree survey

Nonstand - tree protection

Nonstand - ecology

Informative - sensitive landscape scheme required; endeavour to
restrict use of Bill Hall Way by heavy commercial vehicles.

CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Mr Andy Brand Development Management
Team Leader 01480 388490

120



To: DevelopmentControl[/O=HUNTS DISTRICT
COUNCIL/OU=HDC/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DEVELOPMENTCONTROL];

Subject: Comments on planning applications
Sent: Fri 10/12/2012 10:16:54 AM

From: Diane Davis - Sawtry Parish Council
Dear Sirs

Please find below the comments of Sawtry Parish Council Planning Committee:

1201492FUL — 12 Manor Drive — two storey extension and garage conversion -
Recommend refusal:

The application is an overdevelopment of the site. The loss of the garage would result
in the front garden being used for parking. It is an ugly extension, the development
should be more thought out by the architect. If this was an application for a new build
the design would not be approved.

The committee do not think the property is the right location for a children’s nursery —
the cul de sac location would be congested with the parents cars at the time of drop off
and collection of the children. The neighbours would lose their right to quiet enjoyment.

1201484REP — 1 The Retreat — Replacement of 0900989FUL for alterations and
extension to existing dwelling. Erection of annexe to replace outbuilding and erection of
new garage - The Clerk to ask HDC for a deferment of the decision in order that a
meeting can be arranged with representatives of the planning committee and the
planning officer at the site. If a deferment is not agreed to then the committee
recommend refusal because there are already 3 large houses, a car park for the
chemist , plus a listed barn lived in by bats already on the site.

1201447REP — Black Horse Farm, Old Great North Road — Replacement of
09010780UT for industrial development (B2/B8) - Recommend refusal The committee
response to this application is the same as to the previous one:

‘The original intention of this land was to provide jobs for local people from what is
basically a dormitory village. B8 would not provide many jobs and for that reason the
committee would support an application for B2 but not for B8.

121



The application mentions removing trees, the council would prefer to retain as
many trees as possible, albeit as coppice, which would be a quicker and more
effective boundary than new planting.’

Regards

Diane Davis

Clerk to Sawtry Parish Council

Tel: 01487 831771

Office Open: 9.00 — 1.00

Monday to Friday

122



Development Management Panel
Huntingdonshire

N .
Scale = 1:5,000 Location: Sawtry DISTRICT COUNGCIL
. . oc ight and database rights 2012
Date Created: 26/10/2012 Application ref: 1201447REP " Ordnance Survey HDG 100022322
E—— 7
=X Middlemarsh 7 N N
5\‘,‘_\_\ \\Fn Duckpit Fen ‘\1, 3
: il Bruce's Castl i
\.“‘.‘ | 5:: T'\ :. . ruce's '1’SE’I';§\:@)\::::_F_-_=L* o]
e W P N =L
mo®

cle ™

i Sants Chiren

=

= !
Wood EndIl High Holbor

D Fm Hill
a | F Aversley ]
\ “Wood |
g ,
%‘? willow ibw ~
g r

%
Vea |
&g
<>
7, o fo |
o &
d a
% »
0 olic
c 5
=
= B
i
o
o S ]
[=3
%) E V d
&Y
@ - & "0%&%

> Legend ¢

/] The Site

123



] 20/aM/1€/60 60/90/81
AR ON "OMa 3lva
i eV W OOmu« mmw_«om WA Nivaa

NV1d LIS Q3S0dO™Ud

FUL INMVIQ

RIIHSIIATIGWYD
NOGINILNNH
ALLMYS

AN3N3AYY

QYOd HLJON Lv339 Q10
Wavd 3S™Y0H Dv1a 1V ANV

10300¥d

ONIdYOSANY ONLSIX3

woopiRRgEINY e

Sy

6E686¥ 08V10 >
696¥6 08Y10 PL

MNG L23d squo)
uopbuiguny
SoAT IS

—
MYVd ¥vO ONUSIXI™

HyVd ¥vO ONUSIXI

—

/
SSF00V
3Lis ONLSIX3

1904 2bplig
SMaW Joudw Of

80/60/1T

]
"POPPD_(SA0qp) Bjou sXejewn.nd IoS | 60/80/ L] V.
SAION NOBW3Y | diva |Aay

‘wrbs0009 40 WOMIXYA Y OL GILORLSIY

SI ININALOOS FHL '3ZIS LIS ZHL 40 3SNYO3E ¥AIMOH ‘NOISSINNTd

ONINNYId 3NMLNO YNIOINO 3HL NI 110 L3S 'SY “urbs0008 330X3 LON GINOHS
30VASHOO TIVH3A0 3HL "WO'0L LV L3S S| LHOEH SIAV3 WAIXYA 3HL
‘w9g} 1V 0350d¥d SI 13AT1 39014 OL SONIIING G3SOd0Yd IHL 40 LHOBEH
NDAIXYW 3HL 3M0J3U3HL “,0Y0¥ HLYON LY3¥9 @10, OL ¥3SOT0 Sl LIS 3HL SY
(w9'sl) ONIGTING 3903, ¥3HOIH QILONULSNOD ATLNZOZY 3HL NVHL WOHIXYA
3LVI¥dOdddy FWON ¥ L3S aInOM (W9'z)) ONIGTING ,MOLLSAEVOS, FHL 40
LHOIZH 3HL LYHL L33 SI 11 "ALMYO0T 3HAL NI LNYNINIG ONIMYIddY LNOHLW
ONIqTING TYILNVLSENS ¥ 3LYGONOOOY 0SIV NVO LIS NOLYOMddY 3HL

GNY VILNYASENS 34V V3YY TRALSNGN SHL NIHLIM SONIQTING ONUSD FHL

SYALINVIVd FTVOS

LINN TVIMLSNANI ONLLSIX3

j

ONIdYOSANYT ONLLSIX3

ONIGYOSANYT ONUSIX3

ANIAEAYY
YN SSVNO

QYOY SSI0OV ONUSIX3

258

39¥3A SSYHO

N

AVAII0E ONLSIX3

AVMIIONE ONUSIXT

[T

AN3N3AVd

QY0¥ SS30Y

ONLSIXI ¥3A0 39UA

SSYY¥O ILVISNEY

aQvoy HidonN 1¥339 g0

"A¥YANNOS N¥ALSIH ONOTWY
<-ONIdYOSANY TYNOLLIOQY

¥Yd ¥YO G330d08d

L)

i [T

MdVd ¥VO 3S0dO¥d

/,

N\

L6

$S300V
IS 350d08d NGV v

=

IENENZ]

s
QYO $SI00V ONUSHK W

9uAA

ssabov
m.:ww Fweﬁl

&)
/

il

/

LINN VIMLSNANI ONLLSIX3
——

s

/
ONIONYLSQ¥VH ONLLSX3 \
—~—

ANYANNOS NYALSIM
OL NMOQ ONIVOSONVT
AYVANNOS ONLSIX3 ONALX3

ONIdVOSANYT A¥VANNOS ONLLSIX3




GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

125



Application Number: 09010780UT
TOWN & COUNTRY PLANNING ACT, 1990

OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION

Wedge Ltd

c/o Partners In Planning
10 Manor Mews

Bridge Street

St lves

Cambridgeshire

PE27 5UW

Huntingdonshire District Council in pursuance of powers under the above Act, hereby PERMIT

Industrial development B2/B8
at Black Horse Farm Old Great North Road Sawtry Huntingdon Cambridgeshire PE28 5XN

in accordance with your application received on 27th August 2009 and plans (listed below) which
form part of the application

Plan Type Reference Version Date Received
Site Survey Plan 09/31/WE/01 14.08.2009
Tree Survey 0753/06/1 14.08.2009
Location Plan 08.21.LP1 A 14.08.2008
Site Plan 09/31/WE/02 B 21.09.2009

1. Condition. Approval of the details of the access; appearance; landscaping; layout; and scale
(hereinafter called the "reserved matters”) shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in
writing before any development is commenced.

1. Reason. To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail and to
comply with Section 92 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.

2. Condition. Ptans and particulars of the reserved matters referred to in the condition above,
shall be submitted in writing to the Local Planning Authority and shall be carried out as approved.

2. Reason. To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail and to
comply with Section 92 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.

Planning Senicet‘;ger

(Deveiopment Management) “'—-‘%b..._
ufm3.rtf P 10f6 H ' :
Date 21st October 2009 soete Hun’rmgdonshlre

Brs TR CTY COUNLL

Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street

Huntingdon. PE29 3TN F:TeI: g;l 323 gggggg
mail@huntsdc.gov.uk -ax: _
DX140316 Huntingdon SC 126 www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk



3. Condition. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local
Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission,

3. Reason. To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail and to
comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended.

4. Condition. The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the expiration of
two years from the final approval of the reserved matters or, in the case of approval on different
dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.

4. Reason. To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail and to
comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended.

5. Condition, The reserved matters to be submitted pursuant to condition 2 shall accord with the
indicative layout shown on drawing no 09/31/WE/02 Rev B and shall be no more than 11 metres
in height.

5. Reason. In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy En25 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan, 1995.

6. Condition. No development shall commence until full details of the proposed access points
and roadways, including surface water drainage and street lighting has been submitted and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. For the avoidance of doubt, the access shall
be a minimum width of 7.3m, for a minimum distance of 17m from the near edge of the highway
carriageway. The development shall then be carried out in strict accordance with the approved
details.

6. Reason. In the interests of highway safety.

7. Condition. Prior to the first occupation of the building hereby approved, an on-site parking,
turning, servicing and loading and unloading area shall be laid out, demarcated, levelled,
surfaced and drained in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The areas allocated for these purposes shall thereafter be retained
for their intended purpose only. For the avoidance of doubt car parking on site should be restrict
to a maximum of 33 car parking spaces.

7. Reason. In the interest of highway safety.

8. Condition. Before the commencement of the use of the buildings hereby permitted a Green
Travel Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
such plan shall address the following:-

(i) appointment of a travel co-ordinator
(i) surveys of staff travel
(i) setting objectives and targets and timescales

Planning Serﬁice Manager

{Development Management) T
ufm3.itf Page 2 of 6 : . .
Date 21st October 2009 o9 Huntingdonshire

O1rs YR CT C0CWwWNUCIL

Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street

Huntingdon. PE29 3TN };fel: gligg gggggg
mail@huntsdc.gov.uk ~ax: .
DX140316 Huntingdon SC 107 www_huntingdonshire.gov.uk



(iv) measures to promote and facilitate public transport use
(v} measures to reduce car use

(vi} management of car parking spaces

(vii) removal of parking spaces

(viii) measures to promote and facilitate cycling

(ix) provision of travel information

{x) marketing of the travel plan

(xi) measures to promote and facilitate walking

(xii) promotion of practices/facilities that reduce the need for travel
(xiii) monitoring and reviewing mechanisms

Upon occupation of the building the Green Travel Plan shall be implemented and monitoring and
reviewing mechanisms set out within the report adhered to.

8. Reason. In the interests of promoting sustainable development.

9. Condition. Prior to the commencement of development a scheme for an appropriate water
level/flood risk management system and a surface water drainage system shall be submitted to
and approved in wirting by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then be carried
out in strict accordance with the approved scheme.

9. Reason. In the interests of providing adequate drainage and flood mitigation measures for the
site.

10. Condition.  No development shall take place until the applicant, or their agent, or sucessor in
title, has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with
a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authoirty. The investigation shall then be carried out in strict accordance with the
approved scheme.

10. Reason. To safeguard archaeological interests in accordance with Policy En12 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan, 1995.

11. Condition.  No development shall commence on site (including any tree felling, tree pruning,
demolition work, soil moving, temporary access construction and/or widening or any operations
involving the use of motorised vehicles) until a tree survey in accordance with paragraph 4.2 of
BS5837:2005, showing the following has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Pianning Authority:

a) a plan indicating the location of and allocating a reference number to each existing tree on the
site, and of each tree which is on land adjacent to the site where the crown spread of that tree
falls over the application site and where any tree is located within half of its height in distance
from the application site which has a stem with a diameter, measured over the bark at a point 1.5

Planning Service Manager

(Development Management) "“""‘"-‘am“
ufma.rtf Page 3 of 6 , .
D:t321stOctober2009 age=o HunflngdonShlfe

birsywra1cht Co W NLCLL

Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street

Huntingdon. PE29 3TN ';I'el: gj‘igg gggggg
mail@huntsdc.gov.uk ~ax: .
DX140316 Huntingdon SC 128 www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk



metres above ground level, exceeding 75mm, showing clearly which trees are to be retained and
which trees are to be removed, and the crown spread of each tree:

b) details of the species, stem diameter, approximate height, spread, height of crown clearance,
age class, physiological and structural condition, preliminary management recommendations,
estimated remaining contribution, and category grading in accordance with BS5837:2005, of
each tree and of each tree which is on land adjacnet to the site where the crown spread of that
tree falls over the application site, and where any tree is located within half of its height in
distance from the application site.

The development shall then be carried out in accordance with findings of the survey.

11. Reason. To enable proper consideration to be given to the impact of the proposed
development on existing trees.

12. Condition.  The trees to be retained on site shall be protected for the duration of the
construction of the development in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The protection measures shall be implemented at all
times during the course of the construction works.

12. Reason. To safeguard existing trees and hedgerows and the visual character of the area in
accordance with Policy En18 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan, 1995.

13. Condition.  No development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape
works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these
works shall be carried out as approved. [These details shall include proposed finished levels or
contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle and pedestrian access and
circulation areas; hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts and structures, (eg. furniture, play
equipment, refuse or other storage units, signs, lighting, boundary treatments etc.), proposed
and existing functional services above and below ground, (eg. drainage power, communication
cables, pipelines etc). indicating lines, manholes, supports etc. retained historic landscape
features and proposals for restoration, where relevant.]

13. Reason. In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy En25 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan, 1985.

14. Condition.  Prior to the commencement of any works on site, an ecological survey of the site,
or any part thereof identified by the Local Planning Authority, shall be carried out, and details,
including an assessment of the impact of the proposed development and any appropriate
measures to mitigate against that impact, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shali then be carried out in strict accordance with
the approved survey and mitigation measures prior to the first use of the development hereby
approved.

Planning Seﬁanager

(Development Management) T
ufm 3. rif Page 4 of 6 : :
Date 21st October 2009 Huntingdonshire

DS TRIIC COUNCYL

Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street

Huntingdon. PE29 3TN |;relz gi:gg gggggg
mail@huntsdc.gov.uk " ax: -
DX140316 Huntingdon SC 129 www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk



14. Reason. To enable proper consideration of the impact of the development on the contribution

15.

16.

of nature conservation interests to the amenity of the area.

Note to applicant. The Local Planning Authority has had regard to the provisions of the
Development Plan comprising the East of England Plan — Revisions to the Regional Spatial
Strategy 2008, saved policies in the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003 and
saved policies in the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 as altered by the Huntingdonshire Local
Plan Alteration 2002, the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy 2009 and the Huntingdonshire Interim Planning Policy Statement 2007, so far as
material to the application and to all other material considerations. The main issues for
consideration relate to the appropriateness of the proposed development on part of an overall
site that is allocated for employment purposes in the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995; highway
safety; flooding; loss of trees; archaeology; the effect on the public right of way and the
acceptability of the proposed scale parameters. The proposed use of the land, with the defined
scale parameters for development are considered to be appropriate, the scheme allows for
adequate retention and provision of landscaping, would not be detrimental to highway safety or
impact upon the public right of way. Additionaily matters relating to flood risk, biodiversity and
ecology and archaeology can be dealt with via the imposition of appropriately worded conditions.
Accordingly the application is considered to be in accordance witth policies T2, T 14, ENV7,
ENG1 and WATA4 of the East of England Plan 2008, policies E1, E3, E13, En18, En19, En20,
En25 and CS8 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, policies CS1 and CS7 of the Adopted
Core Strategy 2009, Policies P10, G2, G3, G7, B1, T1, T2 and T3 of the Huntingdonshire Interim
Planning Policy Statement 2007, PPS1, PPG4, PPS9, PPG13 and PPG16. Having determined
the proposal on the basis of the submitted information the application is hereby approved subject
to the conditions specified above

Note to applicant. A fee is payable for each "request" when submitting details pursuant to a
condition or conditions of this permission that require(s) details to be submitted to and approved
by the Local Planning Authority (ie details submitted under Article 21 of the Town and Country
Planning ( General Development Procedure) Order). Further details on what constitutes a
“request” can be found in the "Guidance Note - Fees for confirmation of compliance with
condition attached to a planning permission”. The appropriate fee can be found in the "Planning
Fees Form". Both documents can be viewed via www.huntsdc.gov.uk .

Planning Serv{ce Manager

(Development Management)
ufm3.rtf
Date 21st October 2009

Page 5 of 6

Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street
Huntingdon. PE29 3TN
mail@huntsdc.gov.uk

DX140316 Huntingdon SC

130

Huntingdonshire

DY T RO COUNCIL

Tel: 01480 388388
Fax: 01480 388099
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk



AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 2 (C)

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 19 OCTOBER 2009

Case No: 09010780UT (OUTLINE APPLICATION)

Proposal: INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT B2/B8

Location: BLACK HORSE FARM OLD GREAT NORTH ROAD
Applicant: WEDGE LTD

Grid Ref: 517577 283462

Daté of Registration: 27.08.2009

Parish: SAWTRY

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application site is approximately 0.84 hectares and is located
immediately to the north and west of sites recently developed for B1
and B2 (light and general industrial) purposes. In addition to the
development to the west, the former bridleway and unadopted road
(Straight Drove) have been realigned and now run straight along the
southern boundary of the site and the road has been constructed to
accommodate larger delivery vehicles/ HCV's, HGV's etc serving both
this site and the ‘Wedge’ site to the rear.

1.2 There are a number of trees within the vicinity of the drove and a
hedge along the western boundbry. The site is currently vacant but
enclosed.

1.3 The application seeks an outline planning consent for the change of

use of the land for industrial development comprising B2 and B8
(General Industrial and Storage and Distribution). In this instance the
application seeks to have access; appearance; landscaping; layout
and scale dealt with as reserved matters.

1.4 Accompanying the application is an indicative layout, including scale
parameters; a Planning Statement, incorporating a Design and
Access Statement, a tree survey, and a Flood Risk Assessment.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 PPS$1: “Delivering Sustainable Development” (2005) contains
advice on the operation of the plan-led systern.

2.2 PPG4: “Industrial and Commercial Development and Small

Firms” (1992) contains advice on the role of the planning system in
relation to industrial and commercial development.

131




2.3

24

2.5

3.1

PPS9: “Biological and Geological Conservation” {2005) sets out
planning policies on protection of biodiversity and geological
conservation through the planning system.

PPG13: “Transport” (2001) provides guidance in relation to
transport and particularly the integration of planning and transport.

PPG16: “Archaeology and Planning” (1990) sets out the Secretary
of State's poiicy on archaeological remains on land, and how they
should be preserved or recorded both in an urban setting and in the
countryside.

For full details visit the government website
http://www.communities.gov.uk  and follow the links to planning,
Building and Environment, Planning, Planning Policy.

PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding
planning applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building
and Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance,
Planning Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to
Live

East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy
{May 2008)

East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk  then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents.

. T2: “Changing Travel Behaviour” — to bring about significant
change in travel behaviour, a reduction in distances travelled
and a shift towards greater use of sustainable modes should be
promoted.

. T14: “Parking” — controls to manage transport demand and
influencing travel change alongside measures to improve public
transport accessibility, walking and cycling should be
encouraged. Maximum parking standards should be applied to
new commercial development.

. ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

. ENG1: “Carbon Dioxide Emissions and Energy Performance” —
for new developments of 10+ dwellings or 1000sqm non
residential development a minimum of 10% of their energy
should be from decentralised and renewable or low carbon
resources unless not feasible or viable.

. WAT4: “Flood Risk Management” — River flooding is a
significant risk in parts. The priorities are to defend existing

132



3.2

3.3

properties from flooding and locate new development where
there is little or no flooding.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)

Saved policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure
Plan 2003 are relevant and viewabie at
http://www.cambridgeshire.qov.uk follow the links to environment,
planning, planning policy and Structure Plan 2003.

None relevant
Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are
relevant and viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

. E1: “Economic and Employment Growth” — will be promoted,
commensurate with the planned residential and population
growth and the Council’'s aims to provide a range of
employment opportunities and reduce commuting.

. E3: “Provision of Land” — Land aliocations for the needs of
general industry, warehousing and distribution, office and high
technology uses.

. E13: “Industry, Warehousing or high technology and office
developments” — will not be permitted where it would cause
serious traffic noise or poliution problems or other damage to
the environment

J En18: “Protection of countryside features” — Offers protection
for important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges
and meadowland. e

. En19: “Trees and Landscape” — will make Tree Preservation
Orders where it considers that trees which contribute to the
local amenity and/or the landscape are at risk.

. En20: Landscaping Scheme. - Wherever appropriate a
development will be subject to the conditions requiring the
execution of a landscaping scheme.

. En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

. CS8: "Water’ - satisfactory arrangements for the availability of
water supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities, surface
water run-off facilities and provision for land drainage will be
required.

133



34

3.5

3.6

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002)

Saved policies from the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are
relevant and viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan -
Then click on "Local Plan Alteration (2002)

None relevant

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy 2009

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning and then click on Pianning Policy where there is a
link to the Local Development Framework Core Strategy.

. CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including
design, implementationand function of development.

. CS7: "Employment Land” — At least 85Ha of new land for
employment will be provided before 2026, in key identified
areas.

Huntingdonshire Interim Planning Policy Statement 2007

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Interim Planning Policy Statement
2007 are relevant and viewable at http:/www.huntsde.gov.uk click on
Environment and Planning, then Planning then Planning+Policy then
informal policy statements where there is a link to Interim Planning
Policy Statement 2007. .

. P10 - Flood Risk — development should: not take place in areas
at risk from fiooding, unless suitable mitigation/flood protection
measures are agreed; not increase the risk of flooding to
properties elsewhere; make use of sustainable drainage
systems where feasible; be informed by a flood risk assessment
where appropriate.

. G2 - Landscape Character - development proposals should
respect and respond appropriately to the distinctive qualities of
the surrounding landscape

. G3 - Trees, hedgerows and Other Environmental Features -
development proposals should minimise risk of harm to trees,
hedgerows or other environmental features of visual, historic or
nature conservation value.

. G7 - Biodiversity - proposals that could affect biodiversity
should; be accompanied by a suitable assessment of habitats
and species; maintain and enhance biodiversity; provide
appropriate mitigation measures; seek to achieve positive gain
in biodiversity.

134




4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

7.1

. B1 - Design Quality - developments should demonstrate a high
quality of design in terms of layout, form and contribution to the
character of the area.

. T1 — Transport Impacts - development proposals should be
capable of being served by safe convenient access to the
transport network and should not give rise to traffic volumes that
exceed the capacity of the local transport network.

. T2 - Car and Cycle Parking - development proposals should
limit car parking and provide cycle parking facilities to the levels
set out in the Council's parking standards.

. T3 — Rights of Way and Other Public Routes - Lists the criteria
which should be considered in relation to Rights of Way.

PLANNING HISTORY

An original outline planning consent was granted in May 2006
(06001230UT) for the use of the land (including the Wedge site) for
light and general industrial purposes (B1 and B2). Subsequently
reserved matters have been granted for the development of the
Wedge Site (0704222REM). The outline permission has now lapsed
and in order to proceed with any further development on this site
planning permission is required, hence the submission of this
application.

Additionally planning permission was granted in 2007 for the re-
alignment of Straight Drove (0604111FUL), which has subsequently
been implemented.

CONSULTATIONS

Sawtry Parish Council - recommend REFUSAL, the proposal would
not generate many jobs and there is a preférence to retain as many
trees as possible. Copy attached.

Highways Authority - NO OBJECTION subject to the imposition of
appropriately worded planning conditions relating to parking and
turning, access widths and access road layout details.

Environment Agency - recommend reference is made to the
Environment Agency Land Drainage and Flood Defence matrix.
Which in turn seeks to address issues of surface water drainage
appropriate to the site's existing and proposed uses.

REPRESENTATIONS

None received

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues for consideration relate to the appropriateness of the
proposed development on part of an overall site that is allocated for

employment purposes in the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995:
highway safety; flooding; loss of trees; archaeology; the effect on the

135



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

1.7

7.8

7.9

public right of way and the acceptability of the proposed scale
parameters.

Principle of Development

The application site is clearly identified as part of a wider employment
allocation within the Local Plan 1995. Whilst some policies within the
Local Plan have been superseded following the adoption of the Core
Strategy, site allocations identified within the Local Plan and Local
Plan Alteration remain extant until such time as a Development Plan
Document (DPD) is forthcoming identifying new and up to date
allocations.

In this instance, the site has been identified as being potentially
suitable for B1 and B2 development. Clearly the application proposes
a B2 and B8 option, this in itself is not wholly contrary to this policy
position. The concern rests with the proposed B8 use, however, a
storage and distribution use remains an employment function, would
be located amidst established B1/B2 uses and would generate some
employment in its own right, albeit not as great as a B1 (light
industrial) or B2 (general industrial) use.

When having careful regard to the wording of Policy E3, there is a
clear presumption that land is allocated for the needs of general
industry, warehousing and distribution, office and high technology
uses, the application proposal is therefore considered to accord with
the general principles of this policy.

In conclusion, it is considered that the principle of the proposed
development on this site is acceptable, subject to the consideration of
all other material considerations.

Highway Safety and Parking

As stated above, the site has undergone some level of access and re-
alignment works in order to ensure that the site can be appropriately
and adequately served from Old Great North Road. At the time of
consideration of that application regard was given to the extant
outline consent for the use of the entire site for B1/B2 purposes and
considered to be appropriate for that scale of development.

It can therefore be concluded that the proposed development will not
prejudice highway safety.

In respect of the proposed access, the indicative layout demonstrates
that the requirements of the Highways Authority could be adequately
achieved at reserved matters stage.

The indicative layout proposed demonstrates that the site is capable
of accommodating 44 parking spaces and 2 disabled spaces
alongside adequate turning space. In accordance with the
requirements of the Huntingdonshire Interim Planning Policy
Statement there would be a maximum requirement of 33 spaces fora
B2 use and 14 for a B8 use. Clearly the applicant has demonstrated
that adequate parking can be provided on site.

136




7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

In the interests of promoting sustainable development, it is
considered to be expedient to restrict the level of available parking on
site to a maximum of 33 spaces and 2 disable bays, alongside the
requirement for a Green Travel Plan and cycle parking provision to a
minimum of 17 safe and secure spaces. All of these matters can be
dealt with through the imposition of appropriately worded planning
congdlitions.

Flooding

The site itself is located adjacent to Flood zone 2 and within a
location liable to flood within a 1000yr envelope. Having regard to the
Environment Agency matrix, there is a need for the applicant to
achieve run off rates from the site equivalent to the existing use. In
this instance it is necessary to achieve Greenfield run off rates.
Appropriate surface water drainage measures can be sought via the
imposition of an appropriately worded condition to address this issue.

Trees and Landscaping

The site has been heavily disturbed within the last 18 months with a
number of trees lost to aliow for the re-alignment of the road,
alongside the development of the Wedge building and the erection of
a security fence surrounding this application site (permitted
development).

Landscaping of importance within the site is that sited adjacent to Old
North Road and that located adjacent to the northern boundary. The
proposal retains sufficient space on the northern, southern and
western boundary to accommodate additional planting to add to that
retained and replace some of that lost as a result of the re-alignment
of the road.

It is accepted that the submitted tree survey, carried out in 2001, is
now out of date in respect of much of the site, however, the siting of
the proposed building shown on the indicative layout is of sufficient
distance back from the existing boundary of the site to ensure that
much of the existing landscaping can be retained with space for
additional plating to enhance this landscaping. Accordingly, in this
instance it is considered reasonable to condition the submission of a
new tree survey along with an appropriate set of landscaping
conditions requiring trees to be retained and where appropriate
replaced or added too and a comprehensive landscaping scheme for
the whole site. This will look to address not just the three important
boundaries listed above but aiso the junction of Straight Drove and
the internal road network to soften the appearance of the building.

Following on from the issue of trees and landscaping is that of
biodiversity and ecology, whiist the site has been subjected to a
reasonable level of disruption during recent months there remains
likelihood that there is some ecological/biodiversity value to the site.

In accordance with the requirements of PPS9 it is important that this
is addressed. Again an appropriate assessment and mitigation
scheme can be sought via the imposition of an appropriately worded
planning condition.

137



7.7

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

Archaeology

Whilst comments have not been received from the County
Archaeologist, the remainder of the site has been the subject of an
archaeological survey, sought via an appropriate PPG16 negatively
worded planning condition. It is therefore considered expedient to
apply this condition to the remainder of the whole site.

The impact on the public right of way

Following the re-alignment of the road and bridleway, the proposed
development will not impact upon the bridleway which runs parallel
with the southern boundary of the site.

Acceptability of the proposed scale parameters

The applicant has clearly set out the proposed scale parameters of
the development, as per the requirements associated with Design
and Access Statements and Outline application submissions.

As detailed above the indicative layout proposes an adequate layout
balanced with the retention of important landscape areas, whilst
demonstrating an appropriate level of parking and turning can be
achieved. It is therefore considered that the L-shaped building shown
should be conditioned as an appropriate scale for any development
on this site.

Additionally the applicant has indicated an overall height of 12.6m,
which equates to the same height as the adjacent Scanstick building
and 3m lower than the rear Wedge building, would be considered
appropriate.

As the building will be clearly read in association with these adjacent
buildings and will be the nearest to the road, albeit the smallest of the
three buildings, it is considered that the height of the proposed
building needs to reflect the frontage location proposed and the clear
views that would be obtained of the comer of the site. Accordingly the
use of 12.6m in height is considered to be excessive with a more
staggered approach in the heights of the buildings, based on their
dominance in the street scene being more appropriate. It is therefore
recommended that a maximum height of 11m for this building be
secured by condition.

In conclusion, the proposed use of the land, with the defined scale
parameters for development are considered to be appropriate, the
scheme allows for adequate retention and provision of landscaping,
would not be detrimental to highway safety or impact upon the public
right of way. Additionally matters relating to flood risk, biodiversity
and ecology and archaeology can be dealt with via the imposition of
appropriately worded conditions. It is therefore recommended that
outline consent be granted, subject to conditional matters.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try
to accommodate your needs.



8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE, subject to conditions to include

the following:
01014 Details reserved (all reserved)
01002 Plans and particulars in writing
01003 Reserved matters within three years
01006 Dates for commencement
Nonstand Scale parameters
Nonstand Highway conditions
Nonstand Restriction in car parking spaces
Nonstand Green Travel Plan
Nonstand Surface Water Drainage
Nonstand Archaeclogy
Nonstand Tree Survey
Nonstand Tree Protection
Nonstand Landscaping Scheme
Nonstand Biodiversity and Ecology Strategy
BACKGROUND PAPERS: .
Planning Application File Reference: 09010780U !

East of England Plan — Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy May 2008
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan, 2003

Huntingdonshire Local Plan, 1995

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration, 2002

Huntingdonshire Interim Planning Policy Statement 2007

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Ms Elizabeth Fitzgerald Development
Management Team Leader 01480 388490

139



-
AGENDA ITEM No. .5:2(¢)  rueion

LEL L FIR XY T Yy

r

fowm —i
Parker-Seale, Debra (Planning)

From: Clerk at Sawtry Parish Council [clerk@sawtry-pc.gov.uk]
Sent: 14 September 2009 15:09

To: DevelopmentControl .

Subject: Planning application comments from Sawtry PC

Dear Sirs QC /

Please find below Sawtry Parish Council's planning committee comments on recent applications:

09010780UT - Industrial Development B2/B8 - Black Horse Farm - the committee recommend refusal of
the application for the following reasons:

The original intention of the jand ws to provide jobs for local people from what is basically a dormitory village.
B8 (warehousing) would not provide many jobs and for that reason the committee would support an
application for B2 but not for B8.

The application mentions removing trees, the council would prefer to retain as many trees as possible, albeit
as coppice, which would be a quicker and more effective boundary than new planting.

0902057FUL. - Sawtry Day Nursery - timber canopy with polycarbonate glazing over main entrance and play
area - recommend approval.

Diane Davis

Clerk

Sawtry Parish Council

Office open Mon - Fri 9.00 - 1.00

Tel: 01487 831771

This email has been scanned by the Messagel.abs Email Security System.
For more information please visit http://www.messagelabs.com/email

1 AlNnninnnn 1 40



Agenda Item 5e

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 19 NOVEMBER 2012

Case No: 1201291FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: PROPOSED NEW DWELLING

Location: LAND AT THE LORD JOHN RUSSELL RUSSELL STREET
ST NEOTS

Applicant: GEORGE BATEMAN AND SON LTD

Grid Ref: 518479 260568

Date of Registration: 16.08.2012

Parish: ST NEOTS

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 The Lord John Russell is a public house on Russell Street, St. Neots.
To the north of the public house is the car park, a tarmaced area that
can only be accessed via Bedford Street with capacity for
approximately 4 vehicles. The existing car park is surrounded by
Victorian, residential properties on Bedford Street with on street car
parking provision. The site is in the St. Neot’s Conservation Area.

1.2 The proposal is to remove the car park and erect a 2 storey dwelling
with a 2 storey rear projection, stepping down to single storey. The
dwelling will be approximately 8.1m tall ( 5.25m to the eaves), 5.4m
wide and 12.9m deep inclusive of a 2m deep single storey extension.
No car parking is proposed. Immediately west of the dwelling will be a
draymans access for the public house. This access is not for use by
patrons except in an emergency. This access will also allow for bin
storage and cycle storage in the rear garden for the proposed
dwelling.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

141



For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

3.1 Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding
planning applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building
and Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance,
Planning Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to
Live

3.2 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e ENV6: “The Historic Environment” - Within plans, policies,
programmes and proposals local planning authorities and other
agencies should identify, protect, conserve and, where
appropriate, enhance the historic environment of the region
including Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings.

e ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration

3.3 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

e None relevant.

3.4 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e En5: “Conservation Area Character” - development within or
directly affecting conservation areas will be required to preserve
or enhance their character and appearance

o EnG6: “Design standards in Conservation Areas” — in conservation
areas, the District Council will require high standards of design
with careful consideration being given to the scale and form of
development in the area and to the use of sympathetic materials
of appropriate colour and texture.

o En9- “Conservation Areas” - development should not impair open
spaces, trees, street scenes and views into and out of
Conservation Areas.

142



3.5

3.6

3.7

o En18: “Protection of countryside features” — Offers protection for
important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges and
meadowland.

e En20: “Landscaping Scheme” - Wherever appropriate a
development will be subject to the conditions requiring the
execution of a landscaping scheme.

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

¢ H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — Indicates that
new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate standards
of privacy can be maintained and adequate parking provided.

e CS9: “Flood water management” — the District Council will
normally refuse development proposals that prejudice schemes
for flood water management.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

e HL5 — Quality and Density of Development - sets out the criteria
to take into account in assessing whether a proposal represents a
good design and layout.

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e (CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development. Including reducing
water consumption and wastage, minimising impact on water
resources and water quality and managing flood risk.

e CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — Identifies Huntingdon, St
Neots, St lves and Ramsey and Bury as Market Towns in which
development schemes of all scales may be appropriate in built up
areas.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

e C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should take

account of the predicted impact of climate change over the
expected lifetime of the development.

143



3.8

3.10

C5: “Flood Risk and Water Management” — development
proposals should include suitable flood protection / mitigation to
not increase risk of flooding elsewhere. Sustainable drainage
systems should be used where technically feasible. There should
be no adverse impact on or risk to quantity or quality of water
resources.

E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

E2: “Built-up Areas” — development will be limited to within the
built-up areas of the settlements identified in Core Strategy policy
C3, in order to protect the surrounding countryside and to promote
wider sustainability objectives.

E3: “Heritage Assets” — proposals which affect the District's
heritage assets or their setting should demonstrate how these
assets will be protected, conserved and where appropriate
enhanced.

E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord
with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1
‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities
shall be provided to serve the needs of the development.

H3: “Adaptability and Accessibility” — the location and design of
development should consider the requirements of users and
residents that are likely to occur during the lifetime of the
development.

H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 - Draft
Strategic Options and Policies (2012):

Draft Policy 2: “St. Neots Spatial Planning Area” A sustainable
housing scheme, including a residential institution and supported
housing, will be acceptable where it is appropriately located within
the built-up area of St Neots or Little Paxton.

Draft Policy 9: “The Built-up area” — defines what is and what is
not considered to be part of the built-up area.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 - Draft
Development Management Policies (2012):

DMS5: “ Sustainable travel” — development proposals should
demonstrate opportunities for use of sustainable travel modes,
traffic volumes will not exceed the capacity of the local or strategic
transport network, the effect of traffic movements and parking is
minimized, connectivity is provided, and it is safe for pedestrians
and cyclists.

144



3.11

3.12

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

DM6: - “Parking provision” — development proposals should
ensure that sufficient parking is provided to meet its needs and
minimise impacts on existing neighbouring uses.

DM7. — “Broadband” - new sustainable developments should
provide for the installation of fibre optic cabling to allow the
implementation of next generation broadband.

DM13: — “Good design and sustainability” — requires high
standards of design for all new sustainable development and the
built environment.

DM14: “Amenity” — requires development proposals to provide a
high standard of amenity for existing and future users of the
proposed development and its surroundings.

DM20: “Integrated renewable energy” — development proposals
shall provide integrated renewable energy equipment in the
design of new buildings in order to reduce carbon dioxide
emissions.

DM23:. Flood risk and water management” — outlines the
considerations for the acceptability of development in relation to
the risk of flooding, including the implementation of Sustainable
Drainage Systems (SuDS).

DM27: “Heritage assets and their settings” — to protect and
conserve the district’'s heritage assets, including listed buildings,
conservation areas and related assets. A sustainable
development proposal will be acceptable where it avoids or
minimises conflict with the conservation of any affected heritage
asset and the setting of any heritage asset.

DM28: “Developer contributions” —development proposals shall
contribute towards local infrastructure, facilities and services from
sustainable development proposals, predominantly through the
Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 agreements.

Supplementary Planning Document:

The Huntingdonshire Design Guide 2007

PLANNING HISTORY

0700703FUL — Erection of patio parasol — permission granted.
CONSULTATIONS

St. Neots TC — Recommend refusal - COMMENTS ATTACHED.

HDC Environmental Health - No objection subject to conditions

relating to the boundary treatment and restricting delivery time.

The Environment Agency — No objection subject to minimum floor

level of 16.03 AOD

145



6.1

71

REPRESENTATIONS
2 letters of objection on the grounds of:

* The existing telegraph pole will need to be relocated as it will

obstruct the drayman’s entrance.

* The proposal is bigger than no.’s 26 and 30 with little garden.

* There is no reference to the party wall.

* How will rainwater be disposed of?

* Russell Street is a sensitive area and there should be an
archaeological survey of the site.

* Concerns relating to anti-social behaviour and noise from patrons.

* Is the drayman’s path to serve as a fire escape for the rear of the
pub and how will it be controlled?

* There is no parking proposed for this dwelling and Russell Street.
There are no spaces on Russell Street and on-street parking is
controlled by way of parking permits.

* Highway safety.

* Delivery vehicles blocking the road

* The dwelling extends further back into the garden than neighbouring
properties, resulting in harm to residential amenity in terms of
overlooking, being overbearing and limiting light.

* The dwelling is larger than surrounding properties.

* Visitors using the rear access will accidently access the
neighbouring property and security concerns.

* Concerns that the rear access will be used as a public convenience.

* Noise and disturbance from vehicles

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

This site lies in the built up area of St. Neots where there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development and the delivery of
housing in sustainable locations with good access to a range of
amenities via a choice of transport options, particularly cycling or
walking. The car park is also part of this commercial business, the
public house and is therefore considered ‘Previously Developed land’
and the erection of a dwelling on this infill plot is acceptable in
principle. The main issues for further consideration are the design of
the proposal and impact on the Conservation Area, the impact on the
amenity of neighbours, highway matters and flooding matters.

The Design and impact on the Conservation Area:

7.2

7.3

This dwelling has been specifically designed to reflect the linear,
Victorian/Edwardian character of this part of the Conservation Area.
The dwelling will stand at the back of the footpath, and incorporate
features such as a bay window and the front door set back within the
elevation. Chimney pots will also be used and the fenestration will
have a vertical emphasis, again reflective of the character of this
road. Details of materials and boundary treatments will be controlled
by planning condition.

This dwelling has been sympathetically designed to reflect the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area and thus
complies with policies En5, En6 and En9 of the Huntingdonshire
Local Plan 1995, Policies E1 and E3 of the DMDPD: Proposed
Submission 2010, policies DM13 and DM27 from the Huntingdonshire

146



Local Plan to 2036 — Draft Development Management Policies
(2012).

The impact on neighbours:

7.4

7.5

7.6

The windows on this dwelling will be predominantly on the front and
rear elevations and it is not considered that this arrangement will be
unduly detrimental to the amenity of dwellings to the south of the site.
There are 2 first floor windows proposed on the side elevations. The
window on the western elevation will serve a 1st floor landing area
and the window on the eastern elevation will serve a bathroom. Both
windows will face the gable ends of the neighbouring properties and
are therefore not considered detrimental to the amenity of those
neighbours. Concerns have been expressed with regard to loss of
privacy to no. 26 Bedford Street, however the rear projection and
fenestration is a similar arrangement to existing properties on Bedford
Street and additional overlooking from this dwelling will not be unduly
harmful to the amenity of the residents of No. 26. The proposed
dwelling will stand in line with No. 26, to the east of that dwelling and
therefore have limited impact on sunlight. Also the rear projection is
approximately 3.2m from the common boundary with No. 26 (
inclusive of access). It is not considered that this dwelling will have an
unduly overbearing impact on No. 26 Bedford Street.

Having regard for the impact of the proposal on No. 30, the new
dwelling will stand broadly in line with No. 30 but there will be a 3m
deep 2 storey rear projection the west of that property that may be
some loss of evening sunlight. However, the remaining 2m depth will
be single storey, with the pitch of the roof leaning away from the
common boundary. Again, it is not considered that the resulting
relationship between these properties will be a sustainable reason for
refusal.lt is therefore considered that this proposal complied with
policy H31 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, Policy H7 of the
DMDPD: proposed submission 2010 and policy DM 13 of the Policies
from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 — Draft Development
Management Policies (2012):For the avoidance of doubt permitted
development rights relating to windows shall be removed.

Concerns have been expressed about noise and antisocial behaviour.
HDC Environmental Health advises that deliveries should be
restricted to 07:00 — 19:00 Monday to Friday, 07:30 — 13:00
Saturdays and nothing on Sundays or bank holidays, in the interests
of residential amenity. The applicant advises that deliveries are once
weekly and occur outside peak traffic hours. It is therefore not
considered reasonable to restrict delivery hours to the public house,
having regard to the unrestricted nature of private deliveries to
residential dwellings. It is not considered that the development of the
car park is materially more harmful to the amenity of existing
residents, having regard for the unrestricted movement of patrons in
the car park. Furthermore, the proposal will cease patrons accessing
the public house via Bedford Street. The access will be restricted to
deliveries to the public house and occupiers of the proposed dwelling
except in emergencies when patrons may have to be evacuated via
this access. This can be controlled by planning condition. Concerns
relating to this abuse of this access way could be prevented by way of
a gate or barrier at the back of the footpath, again this could be
controlled by planning condition.

147



7.7

HDC Environmental Health have no objection to this proposal, subject
to the implementation of a robust acoustic fence to ensure noise from
the pub garden will not be detrimental to the amenity of future
occupiers of the dwelling. This proposal will comply with policy H31 of
the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, Policy H7 of the DMDPD:
Proposed Submission 2010 and policy DM14 of the Huntingdonshire
Local Plan to 2036 — Draft Development Management Policies
(2012).

Highway Matters:

7.8

7.9

7.10

This site is close to the town centre and its amenities, and is a
sustainable location. The traffic impact from residential development
will be less than the existing use as a pub car park. The loss of car
parking to the public house is not a significant cause for concern,
given the accessibility by other modes and the availability of public off
street car parking nearby. The applicant has also confirmed that
deliveries to the pub are carried out once a week, on a Monday
morning at approximately 10am (subject to traffic) and usually take
about 15minutes to complete.

The applicant advises that the lorry does not, at present, use the
existing car park in any case due to the size of the vehicle and that
the spaces immediately in front of the car park, on the highway, are
used. If there were no parking spaces available off the road, the
delivery lorry could potentially block the road for fifteen minutes at or
after 10am. Taking into consideration the limited deliveries to this
pub, it is considered that a refusal of this scheme based on highway
safety, would not be a sustainable reason for refusal.

No on-site car parking provision appears to be proposed. This is
acceptable in view of the constrained site and the availability of
informal on-street parking space on the highway, as well as nearby
public parking spaces. Furthermore, the erection of a dwelling would
remove the conflict between on street parking and vehicular access to
the rear of the pub. The site layout plan highlights that cycles will be
stored in the rear garden. It is not considered that this proposal will be
detrimental to highway safety.

Flooding matters:

7.11 The Environment Agency has recommended a condition requiring
finished floor levels to be no lower than 16.03A0D. The applicant has
demonstrated that this can be achieved through careful design.

Conclusion:

7.12 The development of the site is acceptable in principle. This dwelling

has been well designed, will be in keeping with the Conservation
Area, will not be significantly detrimental to residential amenity,
highway safety or flooding matters. In light of National Guidance,
Development Plan Policies and other material considerations,
permission is recommended for approval.

148



If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to conditions to include
the following:

. Time

. Materials

. Boundary treatment

. Additional gate

. Minimum floor level

. Details of cycle store in rear garden.
. PD Windows.

NO AP WN =

CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Clara Kerr Development Management Officer
01480 388434

149



St Neots Town Council

Planning Applications to be Considered

By the Planning Committee on Thursday 30 August 2012

150

Plan Development, Location and Applicant Town Council Recommendations
No
1 1200673FUL — 3 August 2012 Recommend — Approval
16 Savilles Close, Eaton Ford, St Neots, PE19 7GD Proposer — Clir C Thompson
Seconder — Clir A Usher
First floor side extension, including balcony and front
porch/study extension.
2 1201137FUL — 10 August 2012 Recommend — Approval
142 St Neots Road, Eaton Ford, St Neots, PE19 7AL Proposer — Clir A Ruck
Seconder — ClIr A Usher
First floor oak clad, rear extension over existing single
storey extension.
Mr David Langford
3 1201115FUL — 14 August 2012 Recommend — Approval
Land north of Cambridge Road, St Neots Proposer - Clir C Thompson
Seconder — ClIr A Ruck
Splitting up two semi-detached and three terrace
‘London’ house type units to create five detached
‘London’ house type units (amendment approved
scheme 070361REM)
Miss Lisa Stone
4 1201291FUL — 17 August 2012 Recommend — Refusal
Land at the Lord John Russell Street, St Neots Proposer — Clir A Ruck
Seconder — ClIr R Moores
Proposed new dwelling
Over developed. House too
Mr Stuart Bateman big for plot of land. Ideais
good though.
5 1201279S73 — 20 August 2012 Recommend — Approval
British Red Cross Hall, Cemetery Road, St Neots Proposer — Clir C Thompson
Seconder — ClIr R Moores
Renewal of planning permission 0900807S73 for
continuation of use of portacabin by British Red Cross.
British Red Cross
Page2of 3




Development Management Panel

Scale = 1:2,500
Date Created: 26/10/2012

®

Location: St Neots
Application ref: 1201291FUL

Huntingdonshire

© Crown copyright and database rights 2012
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

~T ’ Lol [[[]]] ~
Elsup
st oy
2 “‘%Weston i 7
=73 R i =]
of s FE--L = !
ST -
& g ) " N
I »
[y ;
s =
§ e
& =9 S
"
d j
o
AL
9
G}
The 2 M-..
Grove
z &
A ~
S WAy >
§
N © Amb
m
5
= 2 %
~ * Works
e 2 Statipn  TowEE]
3, 3: 2]
30 Builder's Yart
22 1to
1 a A
D The Sycamorgs
PH °©
d 9
Ek = 3 !
a’
1 S Garna,
B Paines M|
S B 18 <
J Auction Mart N T G
1to 16
Luﬁ i® 1to ©
34 |Maddis PNNe
RN — 5¢1535474 |odof 1 :Q
IRES] b 11742 2 9
N > 3
25 to P a
N,
“ H 7to1 = o
OSYERQ S N b
1 6 L) VIS{ot
< - 2 h
= 3 1 StQCl udeel > Der
P - =z ol v 3 4 0
25
e =)
sl | [2 012310 6] & g 1 )
= G 43| _]39 |3 g
+ glesQQurt
N & e NA UTfieTd Hou
< S e
N &)
5 3 IS
© 9
N B Y 1l3 a
5 2 0 ¥
X 2 Marke @ Ty . o ] 3
o
N 3
ﬁ \k—ﬁ 2 SN 1 2
OBgNNy! N
& Y SN NEASNSTREE
’_\ﬁ P; S 0
\N| 7 Cedar Hou 1
R - N 10 6 & @
o
{ S x Orchar PH LN
TN H M
S Surgery Nt
D Chapel 2 @ 1
& e
e
Bak
;
N Legend chu o
IS
l . r 4 :
/] The Site ® A st
Ban Py
m Conservation Area B 1
ore
\ gL 2% 4 s
203 g to 1o X
ol o




199070001 'ON IDONIADIT LT RANLIALIHIYVY NVIN'IMOd TIAN

OSTIE1 - 3898 PANOL “6¥POTO00] quinu 2ouzar] ‘pansesal siBu IV 7107 WELAOD uno1) 3 £3uang ssuwupi

dewoud VA

wed sed

Hnoo uopsIsaYD

l | &
r £ <
6¢ v

—

diN42341Yyd1y;

NYWIMOQ 113N ©

152



7

o

NOISIAIY aNImvda

ZO/EV9Z/V
"ON SNImMVAa

0

A8 Q3I>033HI

0s§iL 31vdS

SNOILVA3I3

341S/1S3IMm 4V3IY/HLINOS

H_(Qov wosr
41003 INLLSIX3

(O Weo'9l)

H 44 a3sodoud

av
A8 Nmvaa

Z10Z HO¥VW

3Iiva

o riz

o1 sogc

os:1
3Ivas

albus.

auoys abuss

SNOILYA3T3 aNv

BP0

SNV1d 80074 a3sododd
ERFENE

vEl 613d 3dIHS3IOAINEWYD

NOogaNILNAH

S1D3IN 1§

133815 1713SSNY SZ

Hd 773sSnd NHOP a¥on
ONITT3IMA M3IN a3sOdOodd
1o3rodd

‘Al SNOS ¥ NYW3Lvg 39803g
AN3ITO

osooes vsLlO L

668225 £0S1O L 3usvonmoH 2vevis 9Lvio L
SSiios oSt 1 mino Zlzi5E S0Zi0 1

¥N 00°91N}0811YdIB-UBWIMOP[IOUDPIO}IE T
90099t LOSLO 4 E98BES9Y L0OSLO 1
436 ELNT SONM QNDATY  1338LS HINNHD S-b
ALl 3INNLIILIHINY NYWIMOQ TI3aN

0s:L 31vDS

SNV1d 40014

15314 _,l_ aNno¥o

V2

Z

¥N"00°94N}08}IYOJEB-UBW|[MOP[IBU MMM

SjuEysU0D ss800€ | S10kBAINS [lem Apted | siossesse ABIoUS oseWIop
siBeuew joaloid | s1aubisep | sieauibua Buiping
S1s160joUY8] [BINOBIYIE PRISNEYD | SJO8|IYRIR PaIalRYd

N

7Z

0s§iL 31vdS

SNOILVA3T]

og———wzz, 000 A= ]

Buiuig
[uayoyy

3ais/isvi INOY4/HLYON
(oov ween B B

HL¥d100
Caov weogl)
T34 03S0d0dd

T

7008

wooipag

=
|
L

— 11

=g

N

A0s 0F 0528

40 26pu 0} SyGg

Dressing Area

|

26pu 03} GoIB

N

@ Sarz
giy
GL28

“H

N

AN

#

] osae

I R

DA\

N\

oopag

21e00L

290152

153




v
NOISIAIY aNimvaa

EO/EV9E/V
'ON SNIMVY¥Q

0

A8 Q3x03IHIg

av
A8 Nmvya

ZL0Z HOuVK
Iiva

os:it
Ivag

INIOS L133¥LS A350d0ud
ERNENE

VElL 6Ll3d 3¥IHSIATAINENYD
NoaQaNILNAH

S103N ‘LS

L33uls II3ISSNY SZ

Hd 173SSNY NHOP auoT
aNIT73IMa M3IN 03SOdOdd
1o3roud

‘Ol SNOS ® NVYW3LVE 398035

AINIITg

080088 $SL1D 4 ssanoaNs

v 351440 BlnaeS

668225 £DS 1D L 3usvonsoH ZvzviS 9LEID L wyhinveg
Ssiios osia I o ZizisE S0Z10 I Noisod

v 057 B3940

NN 02°8iN}08}|YdIB-UBW[MOP[IAUDPICIIE 3T
9UO0S9v 40S1O 4 E98E9Y 40S1D L
436 £LNT  SONR QNOSTY  133NLS HOUNHD S-b
al’l JAFNLOIHIHIVY NVYWIMOAQ 1IaN

N

YN'00°9IN}08}IYOJE-UBW|MOP[IOU MMM

SuBINSU0D 550008 | SI0ABAINS [lem Aued | siossosse ABIOUS JuSOWOP
sseBeuew pafoid | sisubissp | sieaubus Bupiing
sis160j0uy0a) fRINOBIYRIL PaIBLELD | SJoalyole paiapeyD

v Buueg oo} 13} pEFPY Lo

2ugosz |
: w3
ava  Agd0vR; NOLLAIHOSTA * NOISIAZM

o

s oo

aus jo
150 03 AJadosd

U0 s3h05 0} SIgUEP

U [12q100 ol

0§l 31vIS

INIDS 133¥1S A3ISO0dO0dd

s jo wsam
0} Quadosd o

0} uononate oy

REE e e U il e BT HIE

s ] |

sapadosd
We00(po y2jow )
Joos pasodoid o sejols

woos ai0q0u
Uou D SaAsaS Uotum

154
roJ=r




Agenda ltem 5f

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 19 NOVEMBER 2012

Case No: 1200867FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: CHANGE OF USE FROM AGRICULTURAL TO
EQUESTRIAN TO INCLUDE ERECTION OF THREE TIMBER
STABLES, FEED STORE AND TACK ROOM.
HARDSTANDING FOR PARKING AND USE OF ADJACENT
PADDOCK FOR SCHOOLING, JUMPING AND EXERCISING
OF HORSES.

Location: LAND SOUTH OF BROADPOOL FARM FENSIDE ROAD

Applicant: FERGUSON BROADBENT LLP (FAO MR M FERGUSON)

Grid Ref: 533743 281670

Date of Registration: 02.07.2012

Parish: WARBOYS

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This site lies in the open countryside approximately 3km north east of
Warboys. It is located between Fenside Road and Heath Road, and
has an area of 5.5ha. The land rises from both roads to a high point in
the centre and is presently in agricultural use. It is largely devoid of
natural features although there are some substantial boundary
hedges.

1.2 Development in the area is relatively scattered although there is a
dwelling on the opposite side of Fenside Road, and a property on the
opposite side of Heath Road. On Fenside Road, surrounded on three
sides by the site is a building known as the “Barn”. This is now in
commercial use.

1.3 The proposal, as amended, is to change the use of the land from
agricultural use to equestrian use, and to erect three stables, a feed
store and tack room, and lay out hardstanding for parking use. This
will occupy a small area of the site, and the remainder will be used as
paddocks for the schooling, jumping and exercise of horses. The
stables and other facilities will be located at the western end of the
Fenside Road frontage (they were to be located at the eastern end of
the Fenside Road frontage initially), where a new access form the
road will be provided. The stable block will be “L” shaped, and will
measure a maximum of 14m by 8.5m. It will have a ridge height of
4.5m and an eaves height of 3m. The walls will be tanalised timber
and the roof dark grey profile sheeting. A post and rail fence will
surround the building/ parking area.

14 The site is in the open countryside and there is a public footpath
along the western boundary of the site linking Fenside Road and
Heath Road. Heath Road is classified (A141) as is Fenside Road
(C116).

155



2, NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

3.1 Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding
planning applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building
and Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance,
Planning Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to
Live

3.2 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e SS1: “Achieving Sustainable Development” — the strategy seeks
to bring about sustainable development by applying: the guiding
principles of the UK Sustainable Development Strategy 2005 and
the elements contributing to the creation of sustainable
communities described in Sustainable Communities: Homes for
All.

e ENV6: “The Historic Environment” - Within plans, policies,
programmes and proposals local planning authorities and other
agencies should identify, protect, conserve and, where
appropriate, enhance the historic environment of the region
including Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings.

e ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

3.3 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk

156



3.4

3.5

3.6

follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

¢ None relevant
Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the

Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

o R2:"Recreation and Leisure Provision” — applications for
recreational facilities will be considered on their merits bearing in
mind: advice from sporting recreation authorities on the need for
further provision; the effect on residential amenity; the effect on
landscape, visual amenity, nature conservation and
archaeological interest; access, parking and traffic generation; the
siting, design and materials of any building and structures.

¢ R13:’Countryside Recreation” — provision of facilities for informal
countryside recreation subject to the criteria of R2 will be
supported.

e En11: “Archaeology” — Permission will normally be refused for
development that would have an adverse impact on a scheduled
ancient monument or an archaeological site of acknowledged
importance.

o En17: "Development in the Countryside" - development in the
countryside is restricted to that which is essential to the effective
operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry, permitted
mineral extraction, outdoor recreation or public utility services.

o En18: “Protection of countryside features” — Offers protection for
important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges and
meadowland.

e En20: Landscaping Scheme. - Wherever appropriate a
development will be subject to the conditions requiring the
execution of a landscaping scheme.

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

e None relevant

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

157



3.7

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development.

e CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — states that any area not
specifically identified are classed as part of the countryside, where
development will be strictly limited to that which has essential
need to be located in the countryside.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

o E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

o ES5: “Tree, Woodland and Hedgerows” — proposals shall avoid the
loss of, and minimise the risk of, harm to trees, woodland or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value,
including ancient woodland and veteran trees. They should
wherever possible be incorporated effectively within the
landscape elements of the scheme.

e E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord
with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1
‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities
shall be provided to serve the needs of the development. Car free
development or development proposals incorporating very limited
car parking provision will be considered acceptable where there is
clear justification for the level of provision proposed, having
consideration for the current and proposed availability of
alternative  transport modes, highway safety, servicing
requirements, the needs of potential users and the amenity of
occupiers of nearby properties.

o H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

e P7: “Development in the Countryside” — development in the
countryside is restricted to those listed within the given criteria.

a. essential operational development for agriculture, horticulture
or forestry, outdoor recreation, equine-related activities, allocated
mineral extraction or waste management facilities, infrastructure
provision and national defence;

b. development required for new or existing outdoor leisure and
recreation where a countryside location is justified;

c. renewable energy generation schemes;

d. conservation or enhancement of specific features or sites of
heritage or biodiversity value;

e. the alteration, replacement, extension or change of use of
existing buildings in accordance with other policies of the LDF;

158



3.8

3.9

3.10

41

5.1

52

f. the erection or extension of outbuildings ancillary or incidental to
existing dwellings;

g. sites allocated for particular purposes in other Development
Plan Documents.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 - Draft
Strategic Options and Policies (2012) are relevant:

o Draft Policy 7: “Scale of development in the countryside” - sets
out the limited circumstances where sustainable development in
the countryside will be considered.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 — Draft
Development Management Policies (2012) are relevant:

e DMG6: “Parking provision” — development proposals should ensure
that sufficient parking is provided to meet its needs and minimise
impacts on existing neighbouring uses.

e DM13: “Good design and sustainability” — requires development
proposals to be designed to a high standard which reflects the
surroundings and contributes positively to the local character of
the built area, and has regard to the Design Guide.

e DM14: “Amenity” — requires development proposals to provide a
high standard of amenity for existing and future users of the
proposed development and its surroundings.

e DM25: “Trees, woodland and related features” — A sustainable
development proposal will be acceptable where it avoids the loss
of, and minimises the risk of harm to trees, woodland, hedges or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value,
including orchards, ancient woodland and aged or veteran trees.

o DM27: “Heritage assets and their settings” — to protect and
conserve the district’s heritage assets, including listed buildings,
conservation areas and related assets. A sustainable
development proposal will be acceptable where it avoids or
minimises conflict with the conservation of any affected heritage
asset and the setting of any heritage asset.

The SPD Landscape and Townscape Assessment is a material
planning consideration.

PLANNING HISTORY

None recorded

CONSULTATIONS

Warboys Parish Council — Refuse (copy attached) The Parish
Council has been notified of the revised scheme and has adhered to

the original recommendation.

Environmental Health Officer — manure and stable waste should be
stored in properly constructed bay and should not be burned on site.

159



5.3

54

6.1

HDC Transportation Planning Officer — no objections in principle but
further details required of the internal layout and the access design.
The development must not prejudice the right of way.

Middle Level Commissioners — the applicant has not provided
adequate evidence to prove that a viable scheme for water level/flood
risk management exists.

REPRESENTATIONS

Neighbours — three separate neighbours have responded and the
following points have been raised:-

1. The proposed access is to be located directly opposite the access
serving Broadpool Farm. This access is used by large lorries
associated with the farm and potato stores, and these vehicles
require the full width of the road to swing into the site. These vehicles
will represent a health and safety hazard for people using the stables,
and noise form the vehicles could scare the horses.

2. Fenside Road is seeing a significant increase in traffic, and this is
already restricting access to the farm. The situation would be made
worse by vehicles turning into the stable site, and using the road
generally. The road is single track for much of its length and it is
already well used by heavy vehicles going to and from the waste
disposal site.

3. The proposed use could cause a loss of amenity to the occupiers
of Broadpool Farm due to waste smells, noise and disturbance. This
is likely to be most prevalent in the early morning and later evening.
Activity on the site could upset the guard dogs at Broadpool Farm.

4. Power and water supplies are barely adequate for what is required
of them and may not be sufficient to supply any new development.

5. The application has been submitted by an agent and any
statements regarding the nature or level of the use may be
speculative. The motivation behind the application may not be all that
it seems.

6. A Time Team investigation looked at the site to east of the
proposal (on the opposite side of Heath Road) in 2009. There is
potential for there to be archaeological remains on this particular site.

7. The notice served on the tenant was not correct. This has now
been rectified.

8. There is a lack of information to support the proposal and thus
enable a full assessment to be made. Additional information has now
been submitted. This is referred to below.

9. The proposed use would not be compatible with the adjoining
commercial use. The amenity of the office in this quiet location would
be adversely affected by additional traffic, noise, smells and general
activity. Flies and odour from the manure heaps could be a problem,
especially in summer when greater reliance would have to be placed
on air-conditioning rather than open windows. Flies could carry
disease.

10. The proposal would have an adverse impact on the character of
the site and the landscape of the area in general. The site is visible
from a number of directions and the provision of jumps, railings etc
would have a material and detrimental affect on its overall character
and appearance, and the contribution it makes to the surrounding
countryside.

160



7.1

7.2

11. The size of the site is much larger than that which would normally
be associated with domestic related equestrian uses. The change of
use of the land would remove it from productive use. It should be
safeguarded to ensure its long term potential.

12. The loss of the land from its present use would have an adverse
impact on the tenant’s business.

13. Horses could escape from the site and get into adjacent
properties.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues in this case relate to the principle of the
development, the effect of the proposal on the character of the
landscape, the impact on neighbours and highway issues.

In correspondence with the Agent, he has confirmed that the proposal
is for a non-commercial operation. The application is made because
they believe there is a shortage of equestrian facilities in the area and
the land area lends itself to being of an appropriate size to
accommodate the type of facility proposed. The site will not be used
as a riding school, dealers’ yard etc but is to be used by a single or
shared occupier for non-commercial stabling and the keeping of
horse and ponies. These would need to be locally based to ensure
the proper management of their horses. The stables could be let to
one or two individuals for occupation by their own animals only
although a partial livery use cannot be ruled out. The size of the site
could, theoretically take up to 7 horses, but this may be reduced to 5
to place less of a strain on the grass condition and avoid overgrazing.
The paddock would be sub-divided to enable efficient grazing and
use of the land. The fences are likely to be post and wire or post and
rail in the long term, and electric fences in the short term. All are
standard agricultural methods of fencing. Given the low stocking rate,
the number of mini paddocks is unlikely to be large.

The principle of the development

7.3

7.4

This site is in the open countryside for the purposes of the
Development Plan and emerging planning guidance. The policies in
the Plan and guidance are restrictive, and, generally, will only permit
development which has a specific need to be in a rural location.
Policy P7 specifically refers to the fact that essential operational
development for equine related activities is one of the permitted
exceptions. Both policy P7 and En17 refer to outdoor recreation as
being one of the exceptions to the normal policies of restraint, as do
policies R2 and R13.

In land use terms, there are no overriding objections to the use of this
site for equestrian purposes, and the development proposed will not
prejudice the implementation of the above policies in other cases. An
equestrian use can, effectively, only take place in a rural location,
and, unless there are strong grounds to reject the proposal for other
reasons, it should be acceptable in principle. The Agent has agreed
to the imposition of a condition to restrict the use to private use only
and not for use for any commercial or livery business. The proposed
stables and the ancillary parking area etc. are a relatively small part

161



7.5

of the overall development, and are considered to be essential for the
welfare of the animals.

In principle, the development is acceptable as a permitted exception
to the normal policies of restraint and it does not conflict with policies
En17, R2, R13, P7, CS3 and draft policy 7.

The effect of the proposal on the character of the landscape.

7.6

7.7

This is a large site and it is clearly visible from both Fenside Road
and Heath Road. The conversion of the land to paddocks and the
provision of internal fencing and jumps will have some impact on the
character of the site, but it is considered that this will not be so
deleterious to the visual amenities of the locality that a reason for
refusal could be justified. The site is in the “Fen Margin” for the
purposes of the Landscape Assessment SPD and one of the key
characteristics noted for this area is a matrix of land uses. There is no
reason why a series of paddocks should not fit in with this overall
pattern, although the erection of the fences will add a degree of
formality to the otherwise informal, landscape. The applicant has
stated that the gaps in the present hedges will be filled with new
planting, and, where the hedge is not stock proof, post and rail
fencing will be installed. The form and scale of the proposed stables
are acceptable in the context of this site, and the land take for this
element of the development will be small by comparison with the land
devoted to the paddocks. The design and form of the stables will be
no different from many others which have been approved across the
District.

Overall, it is considered that the development will not have a
significant impact on the character of the site and its environs, and
that it is in keeping with the requirements of policies ENV7, En18,
En25, E1, E5, DM13 and DM25.

Impact on neighbours

7.8

7.9

There are two immediate neighbours to this site - the “Barn” which is
in commercial use and is surrounded on three sides by the site, and
Broadpool Farm on the opposite side of Fenside Road, facing the
proposed access. On the basis of the evidence supplied by the
applicant, the proposed use for equestrian activities will be on a very
small scale, and its effect on the amenities of the immediate
properties is therefore likely to be similarly limited. There will be some
increase in noise and disturbance from the animals and the riding
activity although, it should be noted that the field could currently be
used for the grazing of farm animals without any further need for
planning permission. The use of the field by a herd of cows, say, is
likely to have a greater effect than the proposed riding activities. It is
possible that, on some days, there will be no activity on the site at all,
apart from the grazing of the horses.

The storage of manure could be an issue, although, provided this is
stored in accordance with present guidelines and the advice from the
Environmental Health Officer, this should not pose an overriding
problem. The applicant has stated that manure could be stored at the
opposite end of thee field, away from the immediate neighbours. The
EHO has not objected to the proposal, subject to the provision of

162



7.10

suitable manure storage bins which can be secured through an
appropriately worded condition.

The concerns of the neighbours are noted, but it is considered that a
refusal on amenity grounds could not be supported. The proposal
complies with policies H7 and DM14.

Highway issues

7.11

7.12

713

For most of its length, Fenside Road is a single track with passing
places. Traffic volumes do not appear to be high, although it is used
by farm traffic, and by vehicles going to and from the waste disposal
site on Puddock Road. The likely traffic generation from the proposed
development should be low, possibly no more than 10 movements
per day on a busy day. It is considered that this level of generation
will have a minimal effect only of the free flow and safety of traffic
using the road. The location of the access opposite to Broadpool
Farm should not pose a problem given the limited amount of traffic
generated by both site. There are no specific parking standards
relating to stables in the DMDPD and appendix 1 but it is considered
that the three spaces proposed by the applicant are sufficient for the
number of stables to be provided.

It should be noted that the site is not in a sustainable location in that
all access to it will be by private vehicle.

The proposal does not conflict with policies E10 and DM6.

Other issues

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

Archaeology — the location of the stables and the parking area have
been moved to the opposite end of the frontage at the request of the
County Archaeologist in order to reduce the potential impact of the
development on any archaeological remains. Such remains have
been found in the field to the east of the site, and in a field on the
opposite side of Heath Road (the site was excavated by Time Team).
Should consent be granted for the development, it would be
appropriate to impose an archaeological condition to secure an
investigation. There is no evidence that the application will be
contrary to policies ENV6, En11 and DM27.

Landscaping — there is no need for additional landscaping but the
gaps in the boundary hedges need to be filled to provide enhanced
screening. The proposal does not conflict with policies En18, E5 and
DM25.

Right of Way — there is a public right of way along the western
boundary of the site. The submitted plans do not indicate that the
right of way will be affected by the proposal, but a note should be
placed on any planning permission reminding the applicant of his
obligations to retain it.

Flooding — this site is not in a designated flood area. The comments
of the MLC are noted but there is no flooding issue in this case. The
applicant has stated that water from the roofs of the buildings will be
collected and used for the horses. The water from the concrete

163



7.18

7.19

forecourt will drain into the ground. There is no intention of connecting
the site to the mains.

Serving of notice to tenant — this has been remedied by the service of
a new notice.

The loss of the site from agricultural use — the land is classified grade
3, and whilst a small part of it will be developed with permanent
structures and car parking, the majority will be paddock which can be
easily brought back into productive agricultural use.

Conclusions

7.20

1. The proposal is acceptable in principle and in land use terms.

2. The development will not have a significant impact on the character
of the site or the locality in general.

3. The proposal will not have an overriding impact on the amenities of
the immediate neighbours.

4. There are no overriding highway issues.

5. There are no other material planning considerations which have a
significant bearing on the determination of this application.

Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
considered that planning permission should be granted in this
instance.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

8.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to conditions to
include the following:

02003 Time Limit (3yrs)

NONSTAND - Not commercial or livery

05001 Buildings

NONSTAND - parking and turning facilities
NONSTAND - hedge planting scheme

NONSTAND - no more than 5 horses at any one time
NONSTAND - archaeological work

NONSTAND - manure storage

NONSTAND - maintenance of footpath.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to David Hincks Development Management
Officer 01480 388406

164



To: Hincks, David (Planning Serv.)[/O=HUNTS DISTRICT
COUNCIL/OU=HDC/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DHINCKS];

Subject: RE: Change of use from agricultural to equestrian use - land south of Broadpool
Farm, Fenside Road 1200867FUL

Sent: Wed 10/10/2012 3:27:27 PM

From: Roy Reeves

David,

This was considered at a meeting of the Parish Council’s Planning Committee on Monday evening.

The amendments submitted by the applicant didn’t change the Committee’s view on this application and
the recommendation is still for refusal on the grounds previously supplied.

Regards,

Roy

Roy Reeves,
Clerk to Warboys Parish Council,
2 Blenheim Close, Warboys, Huntingdon, PE28 2XF

01487 823562

From: Hincks, David (Planning Serv.) [mailto:David.Hincks@huntingdonshire.gov.uk]

Sent: 21 September 2012 12:31

To: Roy Reeves

Subject: Change of use from agricultural to equestrian use - land south of Broadpool Farm, Fenside
Road 1200867FUL

Roy

165



| refer to the above planning application and to the Parish Council recommendation dated 10™
July 2012.

I have discussed this proposal further with the applicant, and he has submitted additional
information regarding the nature of the use, and aspects such as traffic generation etc. His letter
can be viewed on the public access website. The position of the building/parking area has also
been moved on the basis of advice received from the County Archaeologist. The plan is also
viewable on the website. | would be grateful if this information could be presented to the Parish
Council at the first opportunity and I look forward to receiving the Council’s comments as soon as
possible. If you would like to discuss the matter further, do not hesitate to contact me.

Regards

David.

Caution: the information contained in this document is intended for the
named recipient only. It may contain privileged and confidential
information. Unauthorised use or disclosure of it may be unlawful.
Any opinions expressed are those of the individual and may not be
official policy. If you are not the intended recipient you must not

copy, distribute or take any action or rely on it without authority.

If you receive this document in error please delete it and notify the
sender immediately.

E-mail is not a secure means of communication. Huntingdonshire District
Council monitors all e-mail. Although this e-mail and any attachments
are believed to be free from any virus, it is the responsibility of the
recipient to ensure that they are virus free.

166



/Hum‘mgdonshlre

DFrSITRICT COuUNCIL

Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street : - -
Huntingdon. PE29 3TN : . . .-~ Tel: 01480 388388
mail@huntsdc.gov.uk : ) Fax: 01480 388099
_ . - www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Head of Planning Services

- Pathfinder House
St. Mary’s Street
Huntingdon
Cambridgeshire PE 29 3TN

Application Number: 1200867FUL Case Officer David Hincks ‘ :

Proposal: Change of use from agricultural to equestrian to include erection of three timber
stables, feed store and tack room. Hardstanding for parking and use of adjacent paddock for
schooling, jumping and exercising of horses. :

Location: Land South Of Broadpool FarmFenside RoadWarboys

Observations of Warboys TownIPansh Council.

Please ¥ box as appropnate

Recommend approval because ...... (please give relevant planning reasons. |n space below)

1 Recommend refusal because.. .(please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

The application as submltted contains insufficient information about access from the 2
hnghway, hardstanding and turning arrangements for vehicles, waste disposal, whether A
the proposal is for personal or commercial use and, if the latter, the volume of '
vehicular movements. : coe

No observations either in favour or against the proposal .

Clerk to Warboys ;ovﬁﬁParish Council.

Failure to return this form within the time indicated will be taken as an ind'icatioh't.hat the Town or
Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application.

(Development Management)

167




Development Management Panel
Huntingdonshire

h Scale = 1:5,000 Location: Warboys DISTRICT COUNGCIL
. . ec ight and database rights 2012
@ Date Created: 26/10/2012 Application ref: 1200867FUL " Ordnance Suey HDG 100022302
! / "3 5 Brog sl S P
if f’h{ }\Eﬁ{:i:t:\!‘)aul ?igz;é: i
X IJ\I\ 4 f//
/
Broadpool #
e . 4 P [

20

K #Chapel ]!
X Wcolvey. RHeag e S
GF% - S
- | =

18,

Y k!
! N

™, Dove|
3 ot
L X vl 5
b v \
- e \OR\\ \
""‘%f }'ﬁ'ﬁonkew Fmv’ \\\
e T
5 u\f’ldley Fen ®
4" Ny,
ﬁ"« \\\4-’6

L
\—V

ENZ

\

Legend
/] The Site

168



dewoid N

00SZ:1 - 3[BIS PANOIA “6#P0T0001 SGUMU DI *PIARII SWAL [V “T10T WAUAdO) um01) o Kaatng asusupi

Bid
Bupasium

169

pecy episusy

¥XZ 823d ‘uopbununy ‘skoqiep
‘peOY apisue4 1e (sinogealay} Jo) seioe g'¢| Bumoys uelq



ZP AT LT

4

- LHLTY

0 wMoUS S5,

Qi AL

Touishy] T 3k 32 TN

hiid el A

AT IS0 AN

nLy. A

T

© gL 19415 0350400 03I

4

~




Agenda ltem 6

AGENDA ITEM NO.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 19 November 2012

APPEAL DECISIONS
(Report by Planning Services Manager (Development Management))

WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS

1. Appellant: Mr Derrick Dorks
Agent: Keith Hurst Design Ltd

Erection of detached home following Dismissed
demolition of builders workshop 18.10.12
25A The Green

Brampton

2. Appellant. Mr Nicholas Bishop
Agent: None

Two storey side extension Dismissed
and retention of fence 23.10.12

1 Talbot Close

Stilton

All appeal decisions can be viewed in full via Public Access. The most notable
decisions are summarised below.

171



WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS

1. 1101749FUL Erection of detached house following demolition of

builders workshop
25A The Green
Brampton

Mr K Dorks

Planning permission was refused by Development Management Panel at its meeting
held on 19 December 2011 in accordance with officer advice but contrary to the
recommendation of the Parish Council for the following reason:-

1. The proposed house would harm the visual amenities of the area and the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. It would result in a loss of
amenity to Nos. 21 and 25 The Green in terms of overlooking and overshadowing
contrary to Development Plan Policy and Huntingdonshire Development
Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010.

The Inspector’s Reasons

The appeal site is located within the Conservation Area facing the village
green. The Inspector considered that the attractive appearance of the area
is not derived from the quality of the individual buildings, but from their
relationship to the village green, together with their informal layout, their
varied nature, and their generally unassuming designs. The new dwelling
would be simple rectangular building with a dual pitched roof, the standard
of design would be more than adequate to hold its own with those around it.
He concluded that, in this case, the effects on the character and
appearance of the area do not give rise to any justifiable grounds to refuse
the application.

The Inspector considered that a window on the first floor would be sited to
give a clear view over much of No 25’s rear garden and conservatory. In
addition, it would face directly towards the garden of No 21 overlooking a
considerable part of the property. He concluded that the significant loss of
privacy caused would result in unacceptable harm to living conditions at
both properties.

The appeal was dismissed

None

FORTHCOMING APPEALS

172



Agenda ltem 7

AGENDA ITEM NO.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 19 November 2012

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
1 JULY 2012 - 30 SEPTEMBER 2012
(Report by Planning Service Manager (Development Management)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report covers the period 1 July 2012 to 30 September 2012 and
compares the performance with the preceding quarter, together with
the corresponding quarter of 2011.

2, DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
2.1 Table 1 indicates the statistics relating to this quarter (column (a)),

the previous quarter (column (b)) and the corresponding quarter of
2011 (column (c)).

(a) (b) (c)
TABLE 1 01.07.12 | 01.04.12 | 01.07.11
to to to
30.09.12 | 30.06.12 | 30.09.11
No. of applications in hand at beginning of quarter. 353 327 377
No. of applications received. 355 419 379
No. of applications determined. 374 357 413
No. of Householder applications determined. 187 149 182
No. of applications withdrawn. 25 35 47
County Matters Received. 5 2 3
No. of applications in hand at end of quarter. 309 354 296
County Council Regulation 3 or 4 Received. 4 3 2

173



2.2 The applications referred to above were determined in the time period
shown in Tables 2a and 2b.
(a) (b)
TABLE 2a 01.07.12 01.04.12
ALL APPLICATIONS to to
30.09.12 30.06.12
60% of MAJOR 11 outof 11 =100% 15 out of 27 = 56%
applications to be

determined in 13 weeks

65% of MINOR applications
to be determined in 8 weeks

80% of all
applications to
determined in 8 weeks

OTHER
be

58 outof 74 = 78%

254 out of 289 = 88%

59 out of 83=71%

203 out of 247 = 82%

TOTAL

323 out of 374 = 86%

277 out of 357 = 78%

(Note: The percentage figures are the % achieved within each target group)

TABLE 2b
HOUSEHOLDER
TYPE APPLICATIONS

(a)

01.07.12 01
to
30.09.12 30

(b) (c)

.04.12 01.07.11
to to
.06.12 30.09.11

0-8 weeks 175 (94%) 135 (91%) 170 (93%)
over 8 weeks 12 (6%) 14 (9%) 12 (7%)
TOTAL 187 (100%) 149 (100%) 182 (100%)

HOUSEHOLDER DECISIONS AS % OF ALL DECISIONS

Householder 187 149 182
All decisions 374 357 413
% 50 42 44

2
174




3. CHARGES FOR APPLICATIONS

(a) (b) (c)
TABLE 4 01.07.12 01.04.12 01.07.11
to to to
30.09.12 30.06.12 30.09.11
Fee Applications 307 360 353
Fees £302,030.00 £208,697.50 £158,270.00
4, COMPARISON WITH BUDGET
4.1 The planning application fee income figures for this Quarter compare
with the budget as follows:
QUARTERLY BUDGET
TABLE 6 INCOME (Revised)
(a) (a)
Planning Application Fees £290,727 £279,396

5. RECOMMENDATION

5.1 That the contents of this report be noted.

CONTACT OFFICER - enquiries about this report to Andy Moffat,

Planning Service Manager (Development Management) on @ 01480 388402.

175




This page is intentionally left blank

176



Agenda Iltem 8

TO: ALL DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL MEMBERS
Dear Councillor,
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL- 19 November 2012

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

Item 4

Change of use from derelict land to staff car park for Ramsey Spinning Infants
School

Additional document:

¢ An additional drawing showing the layout of the car park is attached
(Attachment 1) to supplement the report.

Update to report:

e Paragraph 1.5 - the word “transmission” should be omitted and
replaced by “transition”.

e Paragraph 7.12 — it is reported that there will be a pedestrian gate
between the school and the proposed car park.

Item 5(a)

ERECTION OF TWO, TWO BEDROOM SEMI-DETACHED DWELLINGS - LAND AT
AND INCLUDING 2 MANDEVILLE ROAD BRAMPTON

1 representation received (6 Olivia Road):

*Understand that there is now a proposal which includes the building of the two new
houses so that the new building does not touch our boundary. The houses would not
then align with the houses in Mandeville Road or Olivia Road and would not be in the
building line of any of the roads.

*Would wish the contents of the letters of objection submitted to be considered at the
Panel meeting.

*Local estate agent has advised that building on the application site would depreciate
house value and that no building can be undertaken in such an awkward and small
space.

*Estate agent confirmed that it is unacceptable that obtrusive and invading views would
be permitted into property and privacy.

*Any further windows into the back would be unacceptable, so too is the blank wall.
*Qutline plan show the text ‘site boundary’ and line over our land.

Item 5 (b)
Land At 5, Hall Close, Little Paxton

Policies H32 and H33 from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant to this
proposal.

H32: "Sub-division of large curtilages" states support will be offered only where the
resultant dwelling and its curtilage are of a size and form sympathetic to the locality.

177



H33: “Sub-division of large curtilages affecting protected buildings or features” states
the subdivision of curtilages will not be supported where development will adversely
affect the setting of a listed building.

English Heritage does not wish to comment on this application and defer to officers.

The Parish Council do not wish to comment on the amendment and maintain their
objection to the scheme (Attachment 2).

The following comments have been received from No. 6 Hall Close pursuant to the
section drawing on the 23" October.

o Considers the eye line height should be higher, more like 1700mm to ensure
that there is no overlooking of the garden area to No. 6 Hall Close.

e The dwelling stands well forward of 1,2,3,4 and No. 5 Hall Close.

e The proposal fails to comply with points B and E of policy H7 of the DMDPD:
Proposed Submission 2010.

e Impact on desirability and value of No. 6 Hall Close.
How many changes can be made when applying for approval.

1 Additional letter from neighbours objecting on the grounds of:

e The design is at odds with other dwellings in Hall Close
e Highway Safety.

HDC landscaping have commented highlighting the need to ensure no harm comes to
trees in Grove Court and recommended additional conditions.

e Details of Tree Survey

e Details of Tree protection

e Details of Service Trenches

e Details of foundations.

Mr. Appleby of 6 Hall Close has supplied a copy of the plans subject of the 1999
appeal (Attachments 3 and 4).

Mr. Appleby has supplied a photo-visualisation of his interpretation of the proposed
dwelling from the garden of No. 6 Hall Close (Colour picture attached — Attachment 5)

The applicant has also supplied a visualisation of the proposed perspective from the
garden of No. 6 Hall Close (Black and White picture attached — Attachment 6).

Taking all of these matters into account, the Officer recommendation remains one of
approval as set out in the report, with the addition of the conditions recommended by
HDC landscaping.

Item 5(c)

Erection of occupational dwelling and double garage for existing farm and
fishery — Hollow Head Farm, Hollow Lane, Ramsey.

Amendment to report

178



Paragraph 3.6 — Draft Policy 7 This should be amended to read:-

Draft Policy 7 “Scale of development in the countryside” — sets out the limited
circumstances where sustainable development in the countryside will be considered. In
respect of residential development, a sustainable housing scheme will be required to
demonstrate that the proposed accommodation is essential to the proper functioning of
a rural enterprise and that the enterprise is economically viable. A housing scheme will
only be acceptable where it is to meet the needs of a full time worker and there is no
suitable alternative accommodation in the vicinity. Where a new dwelling is permitted, it
will be subject to an occupancy condition.

Paragraph 7.6 — a copy of the Reading Agricultural Consultants report is attached
(Attachment 7)

Section 8 — Recommendation. Amended reason for refusal to: include reference to the
NPPF; and to reflect the position stated in the Summary of Issues part of the Officer
Report, but not in the reason for refusal, that the proposal has failed to demonstrate
that the enterprise is economically viable:-

“The proposal would be contrary to the provisions of the NPPF, policy SS1 of the East
of England Plan — revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May 2008), policies H23
and En17 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, policy CS3 of the Local
Development Framework Core Strategy 2009, policies E1, E2 and P7 of the
Development Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010, draft policy 7 from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 — Draft Strategic Options and Policies (2012) and
policy DM13 from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 — Draft Development
Management Policies (2012) in that the proposal is for non-essential development in
the countryside. Furthermore, the proposal has failed to demonstrate that the
enterprise is economically viable. The development is not sustainable given its distance
from the nearest settlements and the erection of the dwelling and garage will
consolidate and intensify the amount of built development in the locality, to the
detriment of the open nature and rural character of the adjacent countryside.”

Officers have received a copy of the agent’s 14" November letter to DMP Members.
Matters raised in this letter relating to family history and the need for a dwelling were
taken into account by Reading Agricultural and officers in coming to the
recommendation.

Item 5(e)

Land At The Lord John Russell, Russell Street, St Neots

Proposed new dwelling

Plan with details of the existing block plan and the proposed block plan attached
(Attachment 8).

1 additional condition: The side access shall only be used by patrons of the public
house in the event of an emergency.

Item 5(f)

Change of use from agricultural to equestrian to include erection of three
stables, feed store and tack room. Hardstanding for parking and use of adjacent

179



paddocks for schooling, jumping and exercising of horses. Land south of
Broadpool Farm, Fenside Road, Warboys.

Letter from agent clarifying drainage and flood risk as referred to in paragraph 5.4 of
the report. There is no intention to connect this site to mains water. All water for the
horses will (hopefully) be supplied from water harvested from the stable roofs. In times
of drought, water will be brought to the site for drinking purposes only. In these
circumstances, the risk of flooding is nil, and less water will enter the ground than is
presently the case.

Additional consultation

5.5 County Archaeologist — the County Archaeologist commented that in its original
position, the stable block would have been directly adjacent to an area of
significant archaeological potential. If block could be moved to the opposite end
of the site, the impact on archaeology would be far less. The C.A. has
commented that the revised location of the stable block will still require an
archaeological condition, but that this can be decreased to a monitoring
condition, rather than a pre-commencement condition.

5.6 County Council Rights of Way Officer — Public Footpath no 9 is located inside
the western boundary of the site. If the footpath is to remain outside the
adjoining fencing, a width of 2.5m must be retained for the footpath if walkers
are to be protected from horses leaning over the fence. Informatives should be
attached to any planning permission granted to advise the developer of his
obligations re the footpath.

Clarification

Paragraph 7.2 — the suggestion that no more than five horses be accommodated on
the site was made by the applicant, and, although the theoretical capacity of the site
would be seven horses, it would drop once the stables and yard were in place and the
jumps erected.

Plans — floor plan and elevations of stables attached (Attachment 9).
Plans — plan showing area of site to be taken by stables attached (Attachment 10).

Yours sincerely,

R e -
5Kl

Steve Ingram
Head of Planning Services
Environment and Community Services

180



Gadiufy|Cambridgeshire

‘Land‘at Ramsey | ADD(T_(O N KL /‘\/FD i

N

Scale (at Ad): 1:500 Based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of the
: ler of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.

Cantroller of Her
Date: 12/05/2010 : Unautharised reproduction infringes copyright
By: av106 and may lead to prosecution. 100023205 2010 f / é 5,//

181



Little Paxton Parish Council Q

QUALITY
PARISH
COUNCIL

Ref:LetHDCPIlanning1201455FUL 9th November 2012
MinFCNov12
Case Officer: Clara Kerr

Huntingdonshire District Council
Head of Planning Services

Mr. Steve Ingram :

Pathfinder House HDC DOC. CENTRE

Huntimedon 09 NOV 2012

Huntingdon

PE29 3TN RECEVED
EACSC

Dear Mr. Ingram

Planning Application 01201455FUL
Erection of dwelling- Land at 5 Hall Close, Little Paxton

Thank you for your invitation to the Development Panel Meeting on 19"
November regarding the above planning application.

The Parish Council is unable to send a representative to the meeting and |
would refer you to our comments submitted on the 8th October.

Recommend Objection due to overbearing impact of development and traffic
creation problems in a small cul-de sac.

The Parish Council does not wish to comment on the recent amendment -
section through high level window.

Yours sincerely,

i) C’ldiqi;
Mrs Jennifer Geflatly -

Parish Clerk

Cc
Clir Ken Churchil!

Parish Clerk: Mrs J. Gellatly (MCIBS, Chartered Banker), 11 Hayling Avenue,
Little Paxton, St Neots, Cambs PE19 6HG
Telephone: 01480 470193 e-mail: littlepaxton@hotmail.com
www. little-paxton.org. uk

182




Little Paxton Parish Council Q

QUALITY
PARISH
COUNCIL

Ref:LetHDCPIlanning1201455FUL 9th November 2012
MinFCNov12
Case Officer: Clara Kerr

Huntingdonshire District Council
Head of Planning Services

Mr. Steve Ingram :

Pathfinder House HDC DOC. CENTRE

Huntimedon 09 NOV 2012

Huntingdon

PE29 3TN RECEVED
EACSC

Dear Mr. Ingram

Planning Application 01201455FUL
Erection of dwelling- Land at 5 Hall Close, Little Paxton

Thank you for your invitation to the Development Panel Meeting on 19"
November regarding the above planning application.

The Parish Council is unable to send a representative to the meeting and |
would refer you to our comments submitted on the 8th October.

Recommend Objection due to overbearing impact of development and traffic
creation problems in a small cul-de sac.

The Parish Council does not wish to comment on the recent amendment -
section through high level window.

Yours sincerely,

i) C’ldiqi;
Mrs Jennifer Geflatly -

Parish Clerk

Cc
Clir Ken Churchil!

Parish Clerk: Mrs J. Gellatly (MCIBS, Chartered Banker), 11 Hayling Avenue,
Little Paxton, St Neots, Cambs PE19 6HG
Telephone: 01480 470193 e-mail: littlepaxton@hotmail.com
www. little-paxton.org. uk

183




b 5 "
Pt SN .
v I
LLow o
NENSE i
] o v PR P _
@ W [4« 1o
\) 18 !
\ —— Rad e
& S ! " ~ Luhe L bt G
ST _ 8718
....-u\... ﬂ i _ﬁ FoEe
ek ' g
= Ml---.. - “ oo e R B Lnul y e v .,
£ 03ADW3H 3903H e %
Y34INOD BNILSIX3 I
il J o
| M .1n
ﬁ ]
[ _ R — '
d T H
4 ik g S g |
1 1 et wail | e
| i e ' L
=\ RN -— Ji i '
=1 ! i = \ & :
= 31 - = s = ..ﬁ: / 1 G b
iy ! P !
i I
- - 1 ! -1 1
o Y |
) 4 “ m 1
¥ L "
- S I
n 't ) __ My e o o
iy W i
¢ h BN
" - B met o et “Il |||[th |__ M ” e |
A i
¢+ pBmdy | ! e
- ._ A ;
i
o 03AOW34 3903H : wep i
HIH4INDD BNILBIX3
unash ARn e Y
_ . v Lo
.// g Y / rultl, 2 A
5, cat L ‘ e ]2
ey A &
(a tKt 1rom ' - n .M :m Lo beas 1
s ma e N0 T T water ” A :
D e T o B _..J N B i wa |/
CE B o N - = il o i - b A iy RV
Ly i Bt N G A S e i 37 i @ { g
i n“\AI >|.|.|\~\i:_ S b £ ¥ i - " n.b,_hm“_. - —.w
W A “ - w>. - Q.I\r. \w ~H. *
. A " e &
i J asue LT3 tvw § 1
7 | 2 N CaW E e ey -.D.Iil“vm.u_ .-
A i it |ﬂ>|v./ |7 cemie
Cinler 5 .EM?H.M = b £ Latincriom ™ it i iy LT .
LM 700 N - m ﬁr_...b ..p—h-.mn — nw.a.:hm. / rn—...__n..__.vﬁ-w&_.

3

oo ma

e i A o

TTS



i

i,.
43

i

wid iy

W g

v | & -
D |6 fem
£eel e | OOF -
mﬂo._,-ﬁbwa
esodoad oty -
850 Tref
DIV 4 SN R W a

o
[ .

\ juaudapasp s 7 mmJ ! —

NOLLVATTA QIS
- R
: g2

NOLLVATTE AIS

AapusS) =

AS o=

L E T ==

185

NOLLYAATH INOY.

. | .‘ P ———— 13




9bpLiquieq

ZT0¢ 4390320

9So|D |IeH §
aMp Jo uoiads pasodoud

03 uonejaJl uj uonesiiensip dN

(v A9Y) uapieb woij MIIA JO
uonesi|ensin-0Joyd a1ewixolddy

uoixed a1
9so|D |IeH 9







ohigan,

Reading s,
e Agricultural ¢
e Consultants i

Your Ref: 1201062FUL EGEC“ﬁOd Court
Our Ref: 5693dh-1 ong 1o
Woodcote
Reading RG8 ORR
h
19" October 2012 Tel: 01491 367001 Fax: 01491 6803800

rac@readingagricultural.co.uk
www.readingagricultural.co.uk
For the attention of Mr D Hincks

Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House

St Mary’s Street

Huntingdon

PE29 3TN

Dear Mr Hincks
Application No: 1201062FUL
Location: Hollow Head Farm, Hollow Lane, Ramsey

Proposal: Erection of occupational dwelling and double garage for existing farm
and fishery

| write further to your email of 7" September 2012 requesting an assessment of the planning
application submitted on behalf of Clarke Farms for permission to erect an agricultural worker's
dwelling at Hollow Head Farm, Hollow Lane, Ramsey. Your email requests that Reading Agricultural
Consultants (RAC) undertake an appraisal of the application with respect to national and local
planning policy advice for residential development in the countryside and this report has been
repared by P Williams (Director of RAC).
prep y ( ) S[\ ooer

In preparing this response | have had regard to the documents submitted with the planning
application, including the supporting statement prepared by/Mr A Slﬂma]z%nd comments made
during a site visit on 13" September. | have also had regard to the business accounts that have been
forwarded to me, on a confidential basis.

Background

1. The details of the agricultural (and non-agricultural fishery) activities being undertaken at Hollow
Head Farm are set out in the application documents, and only a summary is provided here.

2. Hollow Head Farm extends to 40.47ha and is owned by Clarke Farms. It was purchased by
Barry Clarke in 1991 although the Clarke family had farmed the land at Hollow Head Farm for
many years prior to the purchase when the farm was rented by Mr Clarke's grandfather. In
addition to the land owned at Hollow Head Farm, a further 32.7ha is rented and all the land is
used for arable cropping.

3. Prior to 2009 potatoes were a significant crop grown on the unit with up to one-fifth of the land
farmed in potatoes at any one time. In 1996 considerable investment was made in the
construction of a large irrigation reservoir (apparently measuring some 10,000m?) that was
needed for the potatoes. This was used up until approximately 2009 when potato production
ceased, due to poor profitability, and the need for further capital investment.

4. Instead the reservoir is now being developed with fish and it is intended to establish a
commercial game fishery. The reservoir was first stocked with fish just after it was built (in

AT ARG

Reading Agricultural Consultants Ltd E}tc )
HECKED |
Registered Office as above ~ Company No. 3282982 Registered in England %Q by R

1500 14001
RECINTERED S Recycied

188

180 9001
LISTT LR AR




Spedusons

1997) and now contains an extensive array of carp, tench and perch etc, and includes a few
catfish that were introduced under licence in 2003. Mr(Slaymaker report states that:

"...impressive individual specimen weights have been recorded in recent years: tench to
10Ib; bream to 131b; catfish to 70Ib. However, the water is dominated by carp which
range from 12 to 45Ib"

During the site visit Mr Clarke was able to bring fish to the surface with feed and, based on the
size of some of the fish | saw, | can accept the statement made: the size of some the fish in the
reservoir is impressive.

And, it is to capitalise on these fish stocks that the Clarkes intend to formalise the unit and sell
rod spaces to local anglers. This has not occurred to date for fear of poaching, and site safety
and security. The issue of poaching was described in detail by Mr Clarke who suggested that
local gangs often target fishing lakes to access carp, which is described as an eastern-
European delicacy. Natural poaching by cormorants and herons is also a real risk.

In order to enable the fishery to be established, the applicants contend that there is a need for a
dwelling to allow Mr Clarke's son, Darrell, to live on site and manage the operations. Mr Clarke
Jnr. presently lives in Ramsey and travels to the farm as necessary. Mr Clarke Snr. advised
that his son works for a number of different employers, ranging from lorry driving to driving
instruction. He is also responsible for the agricultural operations on the farm.

Policy Framework

8.

10.

11.

12.

This application will be determined in line with the Development Plan and this includes the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan (December 1995) with the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration
(December 2002).

However, the recent publication of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has altered
the framework for assessing planning applications for agricultural workers' dwellings and, in
particular, paragraph 214 et seq notes that:

"For 12 months from the day of publication, decision-takers may continue to give full
weight to relevant policies adopted since 2004 even if there is a limited degree of conflict
with this Framework. In other cases and following this 12-month period, due weight
should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of
consistency with this framework (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given)".

Clearly, the adopted policy - from 1995 - considerably pre-dates this advice and recourse is
generally to be had to the new guidance in the NPPF. This document still maintains the general
policy of restraint that seeks to restrict the provision of isolated new dwellings in the countryside
unless there is an essential need for the dwelling (referred to previously as the test of functional
need) as set out in paragraph 55.

There is, though, also an overarching policy imperative that all development should be
economically, socially and environmentally sustainable (set out in NPPF paragraphs 6-8) and to
that end it continues to be appropriate to test:

° Economic sustainability - the financial viability of the business (akin to the former
financial test);

o Social and environmental sustainability - and whether there is other housing available
in nearby settlements that can meet the need.

The remainder of this report assesses the appropriateness of the application against these
tests.

5693dh.1.docx This is page 2 of a letter dated 19/10/2012

189



13.

Crucially, however, there are no different tests to assess applications for temporary and/or
permanent dwellings. In this case the application is for a permanent dwelling to support an
existing, long-term farming business (operating since 1991) and a proposed new venture - the
fishery.

Appraisal

Essential need

14.

15.

18.

17.

18,

19.

Paragraph 55 of the NPPF notes that local planning authorities should avoid new isolated
homes in the countryside unless there are special circumstances such as "the essential need
for a rural worker to live permanently at or near their place of work in the countryside..."

In opening, it is clear that the arable farming operations have been undertaken at this unit since
1991 without a dwelling on site, and there is only a limited, make-weight suggestion in the
application documentation that the arable farming operations require someone to live on site,
though clearly it would be preferable to provide for the security of machinery and farm produce.

The need for a dwelling on the farm is solely driven by the proposed new fishery business. It is
suggested (paragraph 6.2.3 et seq) that the fish and/or fishery require:

o frequent attention throughout the year to monitor their health and well-being;

° adequate depth of water to ensure water temperatures do not reach "lethal"
levels:

° dissolved oxygen levels that are maintained to ensure the fish do not suffocate;
° the fish to be fed twice per day; and,
o any sign of disease or predation to be swiftly and legitimately repulsed.

However, the one thing the report does not address is that this reservoir has been stocked
since 1997, with ever increasing numbers of fish and these aspects have been adequately
managed without an on-site presence. The fish have been monitored as required, and their
needs have been met without needing staff to live on site. Although there are instances where
fisheries require on-site accommodation for weather and oxygen monitoring purposes for
example, this unit has demonstrably operated without such a need for some 15 years.

The only element that really carries weight is the risk of poaching as the lake is developed and
becomes more widely known, and advertised. However, there are other ways to limit poaching
other than the provision of a permanent dwelling, including fencing, alarms and CCTV.

The NPPF poses the simple question as to whether there is essential need for a rural worker to
live permanently at or near their place of work in the countryside. In this case, the need is
minimal, as evidenced by the operation of the reservoir with fish for the past 15 years.

Economic sustainability

20.

21

The second element of any assessment must be to ensure that the business is sustainable to
ensure that any permitted dwelling continues to be needed in an isolated countryside location.
If the business fails (is not sustainable) the need for the dwelling will also fail.

In this instance, farm business accounts have been provided to RAC (in confidence) and allow
an assessment of business sustainability to be determined. In the past the financial test
required evidence that the enterprise:

i) has been established for at least three years;
ii) has been profitable for at least one of them;

5693dh.1.docx This is page 3 of a letter dated 19/10/2012

190



22.

23.

24.

25.

26,

iiiy  is currently financially sound and has a clear is prospect of so remaining.
And, | consider these basic tests remain valid in assessing this application.

For any business to be able to prove its sustainability it needs a) a track record (here taken as
the "old" 3-year test); b) profits; and c) evidence that it can continue to remain financially sound.
In this regard it is critical to this assessment that the part of the business that, it is suggested,
generates a functional need, does not yet exist - and thus cannot be adjudged to be
sustainable.

First though, it is clear that an agricultural business has been established at Hollow Head Farm
for considerably more than three years.

Second, the business accounts (entitled D Clarke, Farmer) show variable profitability over the
past few years, but with over £24,000 profit to 5" April, 2011, and £8.000 in 2010.

The difficulty that arises in determining sustainability is that the Balance Sheet shows current
assets to be worth considerably less than current liabilities; and total assets (including long-
term, broadly unsalable assets) also worth less than liabilities. Such a structure is not evidence
of a sound financial business. | am aware that the farmland (and probably the buildings) are
not included in the Balance Sheet but this is a decision taken by the family. Darrell Clarke is
"the farmer" and his Balance Sheet (which includes a loan to V Clarke) cannot be construed as
sound.

Although the income from the proposed fishing business has the potential to improve farm
profits, the current evidence on viability is not sound.

Other dwellings

Zr.

28.

Finally, there is the issue of whether there are other dwellings in the locality that could meet the
purported need and in this regard it is evident that the farm has been run - with fish in the
reservoir - since 1997. Darrell Clarke lives in rented accommaodation in Ramsey, and this only
approximately two miles from the farm, on public highway.

In such circumstance | conclude:

o there is no essential need for a dwelling on the farm at present;
° there is a limited functional need for a dwelling to service the proposed fishing
enterprise;

the farm accounts show the business to be profitable at present, albeit the profits
achieved are variable;

the Balance Sheet is not indicative of sound finances;

° there are properties available to rent (and to buy) within two miles that are suitable and
available to meet the current, and proposed, need.

I trust that these comments assist you in your deliberations.

Yours sincerely

S

6@ Peter J Williams

5693dh.1.docx This is page 4 of a letter dated 19/10/2012

191



§
El
e NOISIA3IY aNIMVvaa S BN 0L v

te) LO/EV9E/Y
"ON 9NIMVuQa

7

A8 a3INoIHY

00z:L 31VY3S 00zl 31VYdS

av
A8 Nmvaqa

Z10Z Hodvw
FIivag

ogL:t ¥ O0Z: 1L
Fvasg

NVid 3LI5 a3IS0d0dd ¥ SNVId
X0078 03SOd0yd 9 INILSIXT

P
=
ERFRNE 27
k3 7
VBl 61l3d 3AIHSIDAINENVD 5 /4
NOQONILNAH u M
S1O03N "18 ® /0P =
133815 713ss0Y S2 = ¥ I_l
.
o e S 13341S 7713SSNy J341S 7
o g8 aNfMiaMa man a3sodoNa 2 ——— T T = —
R 1ao3aroad T T T e e e e e —— T, N T e .
3 ﬁ ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ - -
LVID  ai1 swos s nvwaiva sosass D — _ ossn
Jowean - Hd lIessny| B 5 b Hd Il Ry
1 \ uyor pio7| . § T uyor pio|
r
| o
2e9TES 42819 1 ey sEsrnzg f | Timm ‘ S
N M

AN°09 61N108} 1Yo R-UBWIMOP[1OUDPIOlE T
90089t L0S10D 4 E98BE9Y 40S1l0O L

436 ELNT SONIT  O¥04TY  133WLS HOUNHD G-t
adl”] JVNLIILIHDIAY NVYWTMOQ 113N

% yn°00°91nj0831ysie

]

SIUENSUOD 558308 | SI0ASAINS [jem Aued | s10ssasSE ABIBUS OBISIWOP
sibeuew 1oefoid | siaubisap | sioaulbUs Buping
S1SIB0jOUYOR) (EANOBYOIE PRISUEYS | SIOBHYIR PaISLIEYD

ygDOQ

xoowm.io‘»

uap.ob
D3 Ul PaLY 2

‘* 415 JO TPIS 1SIM O}
o4 puDYS 2[oA) |

PaUDLUIDW 24 04 342
210G _Jo AJaNi[ap Jo)
552390 ADJp 2PIM WG T

<
£

r/\\?NILJ\\u 2

o .
3.
<

Buljjemp pasodoud o 44 ppsiod
404 4UNo330 04 pauIbiad 2q o} 2dojs
“(u014DAB|3 U0 payp2IPUI SDY ub2u
2y4 04 dn dojs sjaA2] puno.b Buiisixy

| uo499s Aa.ols dmj pasododd Jo
I J2UI0D SUDRJY Gt Y4nog buion)
\OPUIM U00]4 HUNOJB BuiLsixg

mewﬁm d404d3g

.

F?V AV¥Q S$S300y AV

<

iy
40 530 J0 swuaf Ul Loodr 2yL

Hd 404 S

U} 4T 4503 PUTOFOpL
1] R0z IOy Gy

"
I

T
[
i

T
I

7
I
i
I

li

I

J

I

/‘(\! ' s

u(, S0MpE LOREO) dde-

i T eum
Emﬂz zo_z_mummnzgm_zx




m.w.‘m\ B

s







	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 HOUGHTON AND WYTON CONSERVATION AREA - CHARACTER ASSESSMENT AND BOUNDARY REVIEW
	4 DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - OTHER APPLICATION:  CHANGE OF USE FROM DERELICT LAND TO STAFF CAR PARK FOR RAMSEY SPINNING INFANTS SCHOOL - LAND REAR OF 3 TO 11 SCHOOL LANE, RAMSEY
	5a Brampton
	5b Little Paxton
	5c Ramsey
	5d Sawtry
	5e St. Neots
	5f Warboys
	6 APPEAL DECISIONS
	7 DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - 1ST JULY - 30TH SEPTEMBER 2012
	8 LATE REPRESENTATIONS

